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CORPORATE OVERVIEW £EBEE/

Information Technology (IT) services provider since 1973 o B NEt=FREHENRHERG
e Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (SHSE Stock Code: 600410) o LFEEBAKXBEBROHERAR(LFEEFR
becomes the Company’s ultimate holding company in September 2009 ST Z BIDAREE 600410)3’\_237L$j1ﬁ

BWEY NG St NG|
e Dedicated to delivering innovative, industry-specific and one-stop IT o HOABANEFPIRMAIF « 1TE AR —ULT

solutions and services to customers across the region with business BARBEATRENRE  £BEBNES - F
operations in Hong Kong, Mainland China, United States, Europe, A - 26 - BUM - A& - RBPY - BEH - F#H
Taiwan, Macau, Thailand, Singapore and Malaysia, etc. D3 I FS 2R PR S i,
Group Performance Overview
AN I 72 EI—
EEXEERE
. Summary HE i

The Group'’s core businesses (namely in Hong Kong and other Asia Pacific SERLEDR (&S REMD KR 2 215) FEE+4F
regions) recorded a ten-year high performance, Fim o WASRIS 2,215.5 BEBT BEAFER 8.1%
with revenue reaching HK$2,215.5 million, up 8.1% compared to last year

The Group's gross profit was HK$257.6 miillion (factoring out the government 2] EEEBEF A 257.6 BEBT (TEEBRNEHRCITE
grants for wage subsidies), an increase of HK$26.7 million or 11.5% B WEFEREM 26.7 BEB TR 11.5% ° £FH
compared to last year. It is primarly attributable to the growth in orders newly TERRABTBRAEMI AR FIFEREFIER
secured in Hong Kong and other Asia Pacific region, as compared to last year

Adjusted EBITDA of the Group's core businesses recorded HK$128.1 million, a EEZ D XL EBITDA 8215 128.1 BEE T -
an approximate increase of 15.8% compared to last year BEFEEN 15.8%

The Group recorded a profit for the year of HK$101.6 million, u E@/MERNEF A 101.6 BEBT  BEFE FFH 2,358.5% ©
an increase of 2,358.5% compared to last year. The increase was primarily WMETBEEANIESHIEE ZBMEATNEEE B
attributable to the increase in gains from interest in an associate for BT A E IS N A B4 TR EBITDA /818 K
non-recurring items, and the increase in Adjusted EBITDA driven by
growth in orders newly secured as compared to last year

—

Group Consolidated Financial Result £E 4R & MK ¥£4E&

A 8.1% $2,215.5 A 2,358.5% $101.6 12.19 3.0

(2021 : $2,049.6) (2021 : $4.1) (2021 : 0.50) (2021 : 3.0)

(HK$ million BE#T)

Core Business ¥ /0¥

—

e
i
% A 5.3% $1,266.2 A 8.7% $1,156.5 A 8.1% $2,215.5
% (2021 : $1,202.7) (2021 : $1,063.5) (2021 : $2,049.6)
A 15.8% $128.1 A 15.0% $83.7 WV 8.0% $69.1
(2021 : $110.6) (2021 : $72.8) (2021 : $75.1)

Interest in Associates & Non-Operating Items Ef& QA FERZRIIFLELIEE

P

i
5 Net Gain/(Loss) on Deemed
= Sh f - )
Rests of Assodiaes
= FE{aI R AR B EREDTHAES 2P (5
$(62.2) $64.1 Nil £ $16.0
(2021 : $(30.4)) (2021 : $(176.5)) (2021 : $142.7) (2021 : $(4.5))

B EIFIL A2 FE B ARINTEE o Please turn to the last page of the section to read notes.



DevSecOps Core Business Highlights
DevSecOps #0155 Bh

Innovative Solutions Business BT MR RER
Application Development f& F#2 7 f 2% - Enhance Customer Experience with Innovative Applications (Dev) 7| &I3TfE AR IR AR P 525

Win Cases

= Government: Increased its service orders to more than half of the total
= Healthcare: Continued to support the government’s fight against the pandemic and help to improve the quality
of medical services

.. = FSI: Assisted an independent statutory body to achieve full digitalization of its license application
_'“'_ Key Developments
| m  Expanded the Offshore Delivery Excellence Centers’ workforce by more than 70% than last year
| = Successfully maintained a stable delivery capability
Dev

IESY)

= BT RERASRAER EAE L

. BE HEXERANETERBREASEREES
o BEE AEEEREERERABREEG

EXEE

n EINEHERASF(ODEC) WE TABREF ARG REB LA
n ECHESBENRTRESD

Intelligent Cybersecurity Services Business & fEAS#& & 2 RIS £ 15
Cybersecurity 4845 Z2 2 - Protect your Assets with Intelligent Security Technology (Sec) 38 Fi £ & 2 F TR E R B E
Win Cases

= Education: Provision of loT cybersecurity solutions for a university

m  Healthcare: Set up network for a new hospital

m  FSI: Provision of new managed security services and Security Operation Center (SOC) services under the
hybrid cloud environment for a leading fintech company

Key Developments o

==
= Continued to provide multinational network security managed services with high technical thresholds
m  Set up the third SOC outside Hong Kong and Macau
ooy
ISRsESY] Sec

n HE R—ABREHE 0T BEREFR
n B ARl ERA%
n SRE A SRMRATRUNEAERE L2 HAEE R 2 RB REALZZEEPR L (SOC) %

EXIER
n SERHASRMME EREAKZEEERY
. REBRRFIUINELE=ZBERL 2 EEH L (SOC)

Integrated Managed Services Business &l R £ BB RIEEHR

Omni-channel Managed Services 228 & & I AR - Simplify your IT Operations to Increase Efficiency (Ops) B{EAH] IT 448 AR & ik &

Win Cases

= Government: Provided IT support swiftly to the Hong Kong Government in fighting against the pandemic

= Aviation: Successfully forayed into the market with its first order secured through providing ITSM with a
cloud-based environment management system

m  FSI: Received the first order in the provision of application managed services

Key Developments
= Introduced automation services to enable customers to access more convenient and interactive ITSM services
m  Completed service desk services for uninterrupted business operations

oAZIES!]

s B - ARSEARE TEREEAMESE

n MZEE  KEANEREEERGRMITIM REHTH SIS BERTE
s SEE ERERARAEERECTE

EXMER

n HEHAECRYE  ERPAEEEEEBN ITSM R
n EREBIRENE(EZ RIS & R



- Industry Focus, PAAS Model Drives DevSecOps Service Integration
03 Enhancement of “as-a-Service”

BEITHELL PAAS 3 EEE) DevSecOps ARFEE X

B 1L BNRRTS [ as-a-Service

Platform-Driven One-Stop Managed Services ¥ &1t — W X B2 R
Unified Operation Center Z3 & & E 1 (UOC)

Service delivery combined with SOC+
RRFEZASER SOC+ &5

Accumulated rich industry knowledge
E2REEEITERMR

Attained higher-value application
managed service order in the year

FRMERSEARNERREAEEREE

Continued to receive orders from
existing and new customers

SERETERPZAE

Accelerated digital transformation with innovative
technologies and compliance approaches for clients

FMARFTEMAMERIE - IMREF ERAUFEL



Industry Specific IT¥£ A7

ExpanS|on into High-value Financial IT Service Market tFR SEE SR IT Hﬁi%mia

( )
Partnered with leading
global financial technology provider
BIREREZ TR HER
NG J

2.0 ¢

"'@"/ ( p

Jointly promoted open banking solution

Bt BRI TRRIR T 5=

Strategic breakthrough into financial sector

A B <RI AS BB 1 Y 22K

Promoted ASL's DevSecOps service capability and
professional knowledge in the financial sector
EEREEESMITED
DevSecOps ART58E 11 & F 2 F5:

b




Continuous Enhancement of Cloud-based as-a-Service

FRECERIRSE

Launched LearnloT.aaS (loT Learning as-a-Service) and
VEvent.aa$ (Virtual Event Management as-a-Service)

Y B 4B S 22 3R 72 (LearnloT.aas) & £ B &% (VEvent.aas)

MARKETPLACE

Powered by SOLUTION CENTER

Virtual Event loT Learning
Management M ERERE
EECEEE R
AT @
! ey Rli
==
VEvent.aaS LearnloT.aaS

[Eli=RE[E] | For more details, please visit 2181 7% % - B2

(Q https://marketplace.asl.com.hk/ )

Industry Awards

ERETRER

“10 Best IT Solution Providers of 2022”
[2022 FE+ KRBEIT RS RHFER ]

“Greater Bay Area Corporate — Outstanding Awards”

[RKEBERZE - fRHE ]



B N REBRIR

Business Performance of Associates

An Associate with business in Europe and the U.S. Bi X B 1 7]

Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“GDH")

(HK$ million, USD/HKD exchange rate of 7.85 is used for conversion B&EIT * L& 1 ELK 7.85 BuhE)

Revenue Non-GAAP EBITDA
WA 3B A& %R EBITDA
A 48.0% A 49.9%
$2,431.8 $456.9

Business Developments

Total revenue was US$310.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,431.8 million), up 48.0% YoY, and nearly triple since 2020

The number of new corporate custmers reached a new record high in the

fourth quarter

Progressively build and expand offshore delivery resources in India, Mexico
and Poland to support business development

Continued to receive orders from major customers: Apple, Nike, AEO,
Google, etc

Amounts stated were extracted from Form 10-K for the year ended
31st December 2022 of GDH published on U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission website

Non-GAAP Net Income

FEAETELER
A 52.6%
$287.5
EBBRE
n BRAR 3105 BEXIT(HERL2,431.8

BEBIT) FIER 48.0% BT _F
FREEF3E

A ERFHEAFNERRT S Z —
BERTMNEDE  BEFMEEOEER
RHER - LERHEBER
BEEEFEEPA]E, 81 Apple * Nike
AEO * Google &
HETHMEGDHTHERERESFRHE
BeME HE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—H
FEIEZ R 10K

One of the Major Associates in Asia Pacific = E 11 K& D Tz —

i-Sprint Holdings Limited (“i-Sprint”)

(HK$ million, SGD/HKD exchange rate of 5.68 is used for conversion BE&HBIT * AE 1 FIWITH 5.68 Hrid)

Reu‘ﬂ“e EBITDA
V¥ 3.4% A 23.6%
$115.4 $24.6

Business Developments

New customers in the second half of the year increased by approximately
30% compared to the first half

The number of the returning customer was almost doubled from last year
Launched AR code (anti-counterfeiting and copy-preventing QR code) and

obtained patents in several countries

Net Profit
A
¥ 86.2%
$0.3
EBRR
n N FMEERPR EFFEAN30%

Ol 8 5 B 5 S AR UL RSB N — 18
T E D RPIE R — 45 - AR B
NZEBERERER



05 pop
RAERE

m  Seize the opportunities in the post-pandemic era and expand the m IEEBZIEHROKE  HEEBEER
Group's business

= Continue to promote industry-specific and high-value added DevSecOps  ® FHARHEN AT R R E A/ DevSecOps =i (A

professional services, strengthening its market position as a Unified FREAMBERY - s tR AR RGeS
Technology Services Provider Z gL
= Accelerate platform-driven DevSecOps services = fEF &1t DevSecOps AR7%

m  Focus on the industries in which the Group has competitive edges so as m BXEEREEAETITELIEATSEEX
to increase market coverage

= Continue to optimize the partner ecosystem and support the dual- & AL A RRE K SR BIA KIS an i

line development of suppliers from mainland China and the rest of the HAEERER
world
= Adjust the Group’s resources and expand regional talent pool » HESEARLEABRSIEATE
m  Enhance self-branded ASL Marketplace cloud-native as-a-Service = DEBXMIE ASL Marketplace ZR 4 BIARES
= Closely monitor the opportunities brought by the HKSAR Government’s — u Y& EEBERBUTN [ EBEIFREERE
initiatives in the “Hong Kong Innovation and Technology Development B [E | YWEEER S
Blueprint”

m Actas a bridge in the Greater Bay Area to seize business opportunities s EEXEEANBRACAMREE

m  50th Anniversary marks a new milestone . KA TAF  BRFERE

o

/‘d

Strive to be a Professional and Trustworthy Unified Technology Services Partner

To integrate various technologies and products using our rich industry domain knowledge and provide it in platform-driven
basis so as to fit customer application scenarios; to use regional layout for market expansion adhering to the footsteps of
customer’s business growth

HHRAEETENMAR KRB

FMASENTERCARESERRERRFPECEERMAER  REFFZERES
EBEARUBERTSEHLER ST F NWEBHELT M

o O EJ
< Sk
ol -

Industry-specific Integration Platform-Driven

1T 304 F¥a1k

Regional Expansion

Bk




Adjusted EBITDA: Adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, and
Amortisation (Adjusted EBITDA) is calculated based on profit for the year excluding
interest income and expenses, tax, depreciation and amortisation, fair value change
on investment properties, equity-settled share-based payments expense, government
grants, share of results of associates, gain on disposal of partial interest in an associate,
gain on additional interest in an associate, net (gain) / loss on deemed disposal of
partial interest in an associate and one-off professional fees.

Adjusted Net Profit: Adjusted Net Profit is calculated based on Adjusted EBITDA
adding back depreciation and amortisation and income tax expense and tax
adjustments from the gain on disposal of the partial interest in an associate (except for
the tax effect of a subsidiary’s interest income not related to the core business).

Adjusted Operating Cash Flow: Operating cash flow of core business is calculated
based on net cash from operating activities of the Group excluding tax paid in relation
to disposal of the partial interest in an associate, overseas withholding tax and
government grants.

Adjusted Investment Activities: Mainly represent the gain on disposal of partial
interest in an associate, gain on additional interest in an associate, related professional
fees, tax impact related to investment and overseas withholding tax.

Adjusted Incomes/(Costs) Related to Corporate and Others: Mainly represent
the fair value change on investment properties, equity-settled share-based payments
expense, government grants, tax adjustments from the gain on disposal of the partial
interest in an associate and finance costs and income, the one-off professional fees
are excluded and disclosed as Adjusted Investment Activities.

System Integration & Other Businesses: Being the business of information
technology in supplying of information technology and associated products carried
out by the Group, and Professional Service carried out by subsidiaries, other than
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited.

Unified Technology Service: Being the business of information technology
in providing systems integration, software and consulting services, engineering
support for products and solutions and managed services carried out by a subsidiary,
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited.

*: The information is not a measure required by or presented in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The use of this non-HKFRS measure
has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation from,
or as a substitute for analysis of, our results or operations or financial condition as
reported under HKFRS.

KTAEEBITDA © &KHFAEKRED - TE LB HAFE
© %8 (LT EBITDA) Th & F Wim F 1B F 8 LA
A FE - EREN  REVEZAREES
g - BRARRENRG AR ARY - BFEE -
EAEBE A REE - HEBE QAR s -
Héﬁ;—:@?aﬁ?l\ifg F‘éEZH&m RIELEBE QAT
DR F () BER N EEEEAE -

EREBA - EREBERN 22 BIIERETFE EBITDA
mEFEREE MERERLRHEHERRED
Mg 2 ISR (B —F R RO RS IFERE 2 F8
WA ZBRBHE)

RABKLEHERE MO EBIKERERE

HENASBEEEBRe 2R WAFENBREHE
BENRHoHRAEZENTIR B TEMB R

BB

@ﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬁ P EE2REEMERRI BRI
CBPERRRIMERELS 2 W HEEXER -
Eﬁi&éﬁ%ﬁzmi‘%%‘i TBSNEHIE ©

RAREEREMEREBERA S (BE)  TERE
BREMEZ AABEES - BREOARD BER
MRS BUFHEE) - HER S R BA D s 2 B
HE N IFRARIA - —RIEBEZXERTBER I
BB WIAKRRREEBHE -

EERRAMELR  ASEHEERARMRERR
HRERZ EMMBREB BT ARBESRGE(EE)
BRABAINEADF R 2 FRRTS o

BMERERY : A FARBB AR (FE)BRA
REZBER BHRBERRS  EmRBRTE Z
TR EMEERE 2 EMMEES -

* BRI ERIBEE BV BIME LR ([ FEMBRE
R ) R BRI IFRIBRE B SRS LR 2T
ERZIFEEF B WMELAEFTBIERO T TAFLERR
- ME T ERAR EGAB N R PIREEEY
ISR PT 2 M EERI TSN AR T AR
DM BRFEEISIROERTA -
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Customer Service Excellence with Sustainability
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Quality Policy of ASL
BEIRSGNEERE

We are committed to be the excellent IT services partner by providing
customers innovative, quality and integrated one-stop IT services and
solutions. We aim at satisfying our customers’ business needs through forging
strategic alliance with our business partners and the core values of the Group
— "SPACT":

“S" — Strive for Excellence
Perform work with best effort and the highest standard. Always looking for
ways to make further improvement.

“P" — Problem Solving

Solve problem with effective solutions in a timely manner and be able to
identify the core of the problems and provide workable solutions in an honest
manner.

“A" - Accountable

Be accountable for one’s area of responsibilities whilst working towards the
goal of the company, be responsible for managing and following up with the
work until complete success.

“C" — Courage

To change and innovate — respond timely to change and to enable the
company to become efficient and competitive. Eager to invent new ideas and
new ways of work to advance in a leading position.

“T" — Teamwork
Work as part of the team, co-operate and contribute to team effort and
success. Willing to offer help, share ideas and knowledge.

RMEAERAREFNEABERBEE - AEFRUA
5 BEEHROGA EANERERRATR - RME
BT BB AR BN EE  BORRERENE
BEE-

AREH - UERANB HNESORETK T - R

SRR - AR ERKRARME - 68 5RE RSB
FfE - A B RO R R LD Rl TRV AR TS 5 ©

RECHE - EEANBESEEARRCE  RERRNER
MBNHMEE - EIRMRETEZEIRAKDY) ©

EERE - BROUERAN - SRREERA AR DNE
HBFEN - BRAE - BREFOIIESK - b

RFEFIAL o

BEZN - RCREBN—OF  BEEEHEAE BB
& BEEBBEUEERD - £E4H TRER
B REGEED Z A -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited and Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited

HERASGEEERARAREMNREXESEENRERLA

Capability Maturity Model Integration for Development (CMMI)
Version 2.0 without SAM -Maturity Level 5 -DEV
Software Development and Support Service Organization

BB R EREAS

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
BBRSK(EB)ERLA

I1SO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 1505
Service Delivery
BRAS 3 A3

ISO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 5337
Sales Operation Division

SHEEER

ISO/IEC 20000-1:2018
Certificate No.: CC5406
IT Service Center
Security Operation Center
EARHRIRES
ERZ2EERL

Annual Report 2022 4%

ISO/IEC 27001:2013
Certificate No.: HK12/00068
Security Operation Center

ERR2EERL R AT

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
RMMEMRB R ERAR

3%

(

“r _SGS|

1ISO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 3268
Service Delivery




Customer Service Excellence with Sustainability

MAOFEERR - IBREBEFTFPRE

ASL is committed to creating value for shareholders, customers, employees, and
the wider community in the longer term. We have demonstrated resilience amid
COVID-19, sustaining operational excellence and continuing our commitment to

caring for our employees, environment and society.

EBERBAIRBER - EF BETRHEAERY
EfE - R COVID-19 & BHH - RMRRERTEHHE
T MR EMEE  FHEBOIBIEE T BERME -

In order to set the stage for a series of celebrations in 2023, ASL organized its first 50th anniversary celebration event successfully

BB REGRBMREESORFENERE - IR -2 - =F —ZJEHTH

Team building event that included
movtivating and fun-filled activities, such as
war game, BBQ, and interactive discussion
panels
FmAEEREBNEFKERES - B
BRI BRI - BERE g/ MR

A
Clii)

-

|
Team Building Activity of Offshore Delivery
Excellence Center in Mainland China

FR B A A S R SR R 2 S ST B
BYERFRES

N

Organized a graduation ceremony

to congratulate ASL talents for their
completion of the “ASL 2020 Intake
Graduate Trainee Program”
BREXHREUMBEEPRHEAT TK
[2020 FEE 55 512

N

Hosted an indoor war game in which
teams were encouraged to foster corporate
team spirt

BRI T —SERNEF B SHEBEE
EEGES

-

For the third consecutive year, ASL
sponsored and was invited as a judging
panelist for the final of the “CoolThink@JC
Competition 2022"
BERGEE=FEY [ 2B 2L EBE
BHLLE 2022 - WEBEFRAETSE

Management team was invited to

provide interactive training programs on
service standard and soft skills for talent
development

E1E B E S RIS IR R A S
MR EERIEIIFBIAEE AS

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z 5B ER A A

3



Corporate Information
ARER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WANG Weihang (Chairman)
WANG Yueou (Chief Executive Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CUI Yong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

PAN Xinrong
DENG lJianxin
OR Siu Ching, Rerina

AUDIT COMMITTEE

DENG Jianxin (Chairman)
PAN Xinrong
OR Siu Ching, Rerina

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

PAN Xinrong (Chairman)
DENG Jianxin
OR Siu Ching, Rerina

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

WANG Weihang (Chairman)
PAN Xinrong
DENG Jianxin

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

WANG Yueou (Chairman)
WANG Weihang
CUI Yong

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

WANG Weihang (Chairman)
WANG Yueou

PAN Xinrong

DENG Jianxin

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

NGAN Wai Hing
LAU Nga Ting
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

SOLICITORS

Jones Day
Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

AUDITOR

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited
Victoria Place, 5th Floor,

31 Victoria Street,

Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road,

Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 771

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor,
31 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza,
11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories,
Hong Kong
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Ocorian Management (Bermuda) Limited
Victoria Place, 5th Floor,

31 Victoria Street,

Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda
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Financial Calendar
B 7% B %

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

XELE

08/2022 03/2023

INTERIM ANNUAL

(for the six months ended 30th June 2022) (for the year ended 31st December 2022)
24th August 2022 29th March 2023

el FE

(BHEZTZ-—F X A=1+HIE~EAR) (HE-T-—F+-A=+—HIFE)
—EZ"HENAZ+WEA —B-=f=A=t+hH
DIVIDEND

BE

06/2023

Proposed final dividend

(3.0 HK cents per share)
21st June 2023

BERBRE
(95305501

—®=-=%xB=+-H

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

TEREROBRER

05/2023 06/2023

19th May 2023 to 24th May 2023 2nd June 2023 to 7th June 2023
—E_=FERATAAZEZZE-=FRA=+WEA CEC=EXAZHEZE-=FxAtH

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
BRBERE

05/2023

24th May 2023
—E-=%7A-+WmA

OR Annual Report 2022 4%




Financial Summary

MR

RESULTS
&
II\E
For the year ended 31st December
BZ+t-A=1-ALEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ZBCCE | ZB--% ZT-TF ZZNF ZT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TEn AT AT AT
From continuing and RERFELCE
discontinued operations REALREER
Revenue LN 2,215,486 2,049,620 2,155,459 2,828,773 2,344,457
Profit before income tax BRI AT A 119,386 29,909 1,143,206 139,381 127,335
Income tax expense FfERAS (17,801) (25777)  (287,064) (39,073) (43,002)
Profit for the year R 101,585 4132 856142 100,308 84,333
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to FEERE RN
non-controlling interests FR(ER),/EF - - (156) 7,032 -
Profit for the year attributable to KARREHEEA
equity holders of the Company IR 101,585 4132 856,298 93,276 84,333

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERER
At 31st December
R+=A=+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ZB-CE ([ ZB--% —T-TF ZZNF ZTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR FET TET TET
Total assets BERE 3,032,283 2,886,677 3,247,997 2,798,592 2,381,032
Total liabilities BEE 972,464 896,352 1,054,204 1,345,810 1,168,155
Equity attributable to equity ARRREHBA
holders of the Company fElhER 2,059,819 | 1990325 2,193,793 1405272 1,212,877
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present to
the shareholders the annual report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited

(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “ASL" or the “Group”).

In 2022, many parts of the world are gradually returning to normal from
COVID-19 pandemic, but external turbulence still poses a threat to the
market. Despite this, the Group capitalized on the business opportunities
brought about by the pandemic, with the business recording a stable
performance, sustaining growth momentum and achieving the best
performance in the past decade. The Group’s total revenue in 2022
increased by 8.1% to HK$2,215.5 million. The Group recorded a profit for
the year attributable to the Company’s equity holders of HK$101.6 million,
representing an increase of 2,358.5% over last year’s HK$4.1million. The
increase was primarily attributable to the increase in gains from interest
in an associate for non-recurring items and increase in Adjusted EBITDA
driven by growth in orders newly secured as compared to last year. The
Group’s financial position remained healthy, with net cash of approximately
HK$547.6 million. The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a

final dividend of 3.0HK cents per share.
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The Group’s overall revenue growth was driven by an increase in orders
newly secured in Hong Kong and other Asia Pacific regions as compared
to last year. ASLs three core businesses — Innovative Solutions (Application
Development, Dev), Intelligent Cybersecurity Services (Cybersecurity, Sec)
and Integrated Managed Services (Omni-channel Managed Services, Ops)
— all achieved growth in its service revenue when compared with last year.
Growth in orders from the public and private sectors was outstanding, and
the growth of service orders newly secured from the Intelligent Cybersecurity

Services business was particularly prominent.

The pandemic has led to a significant increase in demand for one-stop
managed services as the enterprise embraces digital transformation,
boosting the growth of the Group’s DevSecOps, integrated IT services. The
Group had integrated the overall service delivery with the Unified Operation
Center (UOC) and the Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+), and continued
to promote platform-driven services, so as to help customers accelerate

digital transformation deployment.

In the past year, the Group has successfully tapped into the high-valued
application maintenance services market by integrating its unified technology
services, enhancing the quality of delivery, and remaining steadfast in
driving DevSecOps services throughout the entire customer’s IT lifecycle. ASL
Marketplace, our self-branded cloud-based comprehensive online platform,
which has been launched for a year, is committed to optimizing multiple
cloud-based as-a-Service covering DevSecOps. During the year, we have
launched two new products, LearnloT.aaS (loT Learning as-a-Service) and

VEvent.aa$ (Virtual Event Management as-a-Service).

The Group is dedicated to delivering high-quality services and solutions
to our customers. This year, our software development capabilities were
certified at CMMI at Maturity Level 5. CMMI is a worldwide model to
evaluate the maturity of the enterprise’s software development capability,
and Level 5 is the highest accreditation of this evaluation model. In addition,
the Group has been partnering with various IT technology providers from
mainland China and the rest of the world to offer diversified IT services.

During the year, we received a number of the most outstanding partner
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Chairman’s Statement
EFERE

awards from afore-mentioned partners in recognition of our excellent
performances in various scopes, including network security, management,
sales and services. In addition to our outstanding performance in
collaborating with partners, the Group was also recognized as the “10
Best IT Solution Providers of 2022” by a renowned magazine and received
the “Greater Bay Area Corporate — Outstanding Award” in the “2022
Standard Chartered Corporate Achievement Awards” organized by Standard

Chartered and co-organized by Hong Kong Economic Journal.

As a leading unified technology service provider and corporate citizen
in the Greater Bay Area, the Group has been devoted to giving back to
society through innovative technology. During the year, the Group received
numerous orders from the government regarding public health, supporting
the development of public health and the fight against the pandemic,
fulfilling its corporate responsibilities. ASL has been accredited as the Caring
Company for the 13th consecutive years. In addition, the Group attaches
great importance to the personal development, physical and mental health
of its staff. To create a pleasant workplace environment, the Group offered
various team building and recreational activities, and training courses for

employees in different regions.

Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“GDH"), an associate of the Company with
business in Europe and the U.S., has successfully withstood the impact of the
Russia-Ukraine war by relocating part of its delivery resources. GDH recorded
a total revenue for the year amounted to US$310.5 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,431.8 million) and the non-GAAP EBITDA for the
year was US$58.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$456.9 million),
according to Form 10-K for the year ended 31st December 2022 of GDH
published on the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission website. GDH
expanded rapidly this year and established its first engineering center in
India, which has helped to attract more talents and enrich its services and
strengthen its customers’ confidence in their business. The business of i-Sprint
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“i-Sprint”), one of the major associates
in Asia Pacific, recorded a revenue of HK$115.4 million. The AR code
released by i-Sprint has been patented and its products have won numerous

industry awards, and well recognized in the market.

Annual Report 2022 4%

THENHSERBEE  AEETRFRLE
MERMEEIERN (2022 FE + ARETHER

SRR | REABITRITED - (ERITEH
B)W ey BT ER M AEE2022] 2 TXE
EEE —GEE] .

AEBESNERANBILHES BB
EELR > RABANREIF R OELE - F
A REBAE T PO BN A KB LR
AE XRAABEEREARTE  BITR
¥R TEEFET=FERUVABARME
HiE - SN KRETOERETHERRKLS O
2R 8T REEBEREE  RELTBHR

JIRRRHFZHE T2E - sk TR
$ o
B} 3<% /2 7] Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc.([GDHJ)

RAFBY RIFERER - WK ESH T H&
SEFAERMEE - GDHEFRRAZES10.5
EE%%WE%E’:\%’UZ,@LSE%}%%) ik
FIMAGHENMNEBITDAASS2E B E T
(7@%‘5%%@456 9B EHEIT) - L JyAR 1R GDH T
ENEBRBARSGZEGREZBE_T =
F+=-—A=+—H JtiFZm- K& o N
€ GDHRIEMHRBAR - WHENEFRR T HE—
EIFZFL - ﬁﬂﬂﬂ&éﬂ%y/\ﬁngaﬁﬁ%m
B REPHAEKNEL FEDAKE
AR Z —H)i-Sprint Holdings Limited X EHE A
Al ([i-Sprint]) BB W A $%15 1154 B BB T ©
i-Sprint 24 &) AR (RIS AT B ERE F - HE RN
RERERLITEIIE - HXTI5RP




Looking ahead, the Group will continue to optimize the partner ecosystem,
actively introduce more industry-specific solutions, promote high value-
added, industry-oriented DevSecOps professional IT services, and support
the dual-line development of our suppliers from mainland China and the
rest of the world. We will also leverage Hong Kong’s role as a bridge and
capture opportunities in the Greater Bay Area. In the future, we will deeply
cultivate the Group’s focused industries through the provision of its one-stop
managed services and platform-driven DevSecOps services. The Group will
adjust its resources to overcome the challenges posed by uncertainties, while
investing in the expansion of the regional talent pool and also supporting
sustainable development in society. As the Group celebrates its 50th
anniversary in 2023, we will continue to expand the Group’s business and
strive to become a leading unified technology service provider in the region

by adhering to our customer-centric mission.

Despite the uncertainties in the market and economic outlook in 2022,
the Group still managed to ride out the storm and achieve a record high
performance of its core businesses in the past decade due to the efforts
of the management and staff. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
express our appreciation to our valued customers, business partners, and
shareholders for their support to the Group during the year. Finally, | would
like to extend my sincere gratitude to all the directors for their dedicated

service and support.

Wang Weihang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Results

For the year ended 31st December 2022, total revenue of the Group was HK$2,215.5
million, representing a 8.1% increase from the last year, in which product sales was
increased by 3.7% to HK$1,090.8 million and service revenue was increased by 12.7%
to HK$1,124.7 million. In addition, product sales and service revenue contributed
49.2% and 50.8% to total revenue respectively, compared to 51.3% and 48.7%
respectively of last year.

For the year ended 31st December 2022, commercial and public sector sales
contributed 37.8% and 62.2% to total revenue respectively, compared to 39.5% and
60.5% respectively of last year.

Gross profit for the year ended 31st December 2022 was HK$257.6 million, an
increase of HK$26.7 million or 11.5% compared to last year, factoring out the
government grants for wage subsidies. The increases were primarily attributable
to growth in orders newly secured in Hong Kong and other Asia Pacific regions, as
compared to last year.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a profit for the year attributable
to the Company’s equity holders of HK$101.6 million, an increase of 2,358.5%
compared to last year of HK$4.1 million. The increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in gains from interest in an associate for non-recurring items and the increase
in “Adjusted EBITDA" driven by growth in orders newly secured as compared to last
year.
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For the year ended 31st December 2022, orders newly secured by the Group’s
amounted to approximately HK$2,422.7 million. As at 31st December 2022, the
Group's order book balance was approximately HK$1,395.6 million. The Group’s net
cash stood at approximately HK$547.6 million with a working capital ratio of 1.8:1.
The Group maintained a healthy financial position. As at 31st December 2022, the
outstanding borrowings amounted to HK$56.3 million.

Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended 31st December 2022 was HK$128.1 million, an
increase of 15.8% compared to last year. The “Adjusted EBITDA" excludes certain
items that are non-cash or non-recurring in nature. It is a non-HKFRS financial
measures used by the Company’s management to evaluate the operating performance
and trends of the Group’s core business, to make strategic decisions regarding the
allocation of capital and investments. “Adjusted EBITDA" is not a measure required by
or presented in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS").
The use of it has limitations as an analytical tool, and should not be considered in
isolation from, or as a substitute for analysis of, our results or operations or financial
condition as reported under HKFRS.

The reconciliations from “Profit for the year” to “Adjusted EBITDA" the year ended
31st December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:
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Year ended 31st December

BE+t-A=+—HLEFE

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Profit for the year — HKFRS measure FREFN — EBUMBHREELTE 101,585 4,132
Interest expenses FELZH 3,545 3,956
Interest income FEUA (398) (43)
Income tax expenses BB 17,801 25,777
Profit before interest and tax R BB AT 122,533 33,822
Adjustments for non-cash items: FRSBFH AR !
Depreciation and amortisation PrEe RS 24,672 23,513
Equity-settled share-based payments expense LARR 19 RERE ST N X 53 282
Share of results of associates iy N 62,196 30,427
Fair value loss on investment properties "EME 2 AAEERE 2,300 —
Adjustments for non-recurring items: FEREE ZRE
Gain on disposal of partial interest in an associate HEBE QR R 2 W — (129,617)
Gain on additional interest in an associate Hih &N )RR M R EE A 2 Wam — (25,909)
Net (gain)/loss on deemed disposal of partial RIELEME N RH DR
interest in an associate F (), EE (64,063) 176,471
Government grants TR B (19,607) —
One-off professional fees —RMEXER — 1,640
Adjusted EBITDA — Non-HKFRS measure RFAEEBITDA — BB BREEAFE 128,084 110,629
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Core Business Review

The market and talent environment remained volatile in 2022, but the Group
demonstrated resilience in its overall business capabilities while capturing business
opportunities brought by the COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”) with a strong
performance in its core business, best in a decade. Adjusted EBITDA increased
approximately 15.8% compared to last year. The increase was mainly due to the year-
on-year growth in the orders newly secured in Hong Kong, Macau and other Asia
Pacific regions.

The Group recorded orders newly secured, revenue, adjusted EBITDA, and adjusted
net profit of HK$2,422.7 million, HK$2,215.5 million, HK$128.1 million, and HK$83.7
million respectively, representing an increase of 6.9%, 8.1%, 15.8% and 15.0%
respectively over last year. The Group’s three businesses, namely DevSecOps, recorded
growth in service revenue compared to last year.

Innovative Solutions Business

(Application Development — Enhance customer experience with innovative
applications; Dev)

Innovative Solutions Business became the largest business unit in the core service
business for the first time, with an increased service orders newly secured as compared
to last year, and service revenue reached HK$460.6 million, representing an increase
as compared to last year. The main growth drivers came from orders for professional
services and application development, and were attributable to the establishment of
a sizeable talent pool at the Group’s Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC) in
Mainland China. ODEC had 70% more staff as compared to last year, successfully
maintaining a stable delivery capability and expanding human resources continually.

For industry performance, government, healthcare, and financial sectors delivered
outstanding results in particular. Regarding to the government sector, the Group has
successfully increased its service orders to more than half of the total, proving the
Group's ability to improve IT service is aligned with the government’s requirements
for related services. In the healthcare sector, the Group supported the government’s
fight against the Pandemic and assisted in improving the quality of healthcare services.
In the financial sector, the Group achieved a major breakthrough during the year in
assisting an independent statutory body in achieving full digitalization of its license
application, which further strengthen Hong Kong’s status as an international financial
centre.

Intelligent Cybersecurity Services Business

(Cybersecurity — Protect your assets with intelligent security technology; Sec)

In regard of the Intelligent Cybersecurity Services business, the service orders newly
secured recorded a double-digit growth compared to last year, with service revenue
reaching HK$168.8 million during the year. The growth momentum was fuelled by the
digital transformation of enterprises and strong demand for network security and new
managed security services in the wake of the Pandemic.
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During the year, the Group made multiple breakthroughs: in terms of technology, it
successfully satisfied the market demand for hybrid cloud platforms and new network
security solutions; in terms of geography, it continued to provide multinational
network security managed services with high technical thresholds; in terms of
hardware, it established its third Security Operation Center (SOC) outside Hong Kong
and Macau.

For industry performance, the Group has been providing quality networks to clients
across various industries, such as a complete network upgrade for over 10 campuses
of an international school and the installation of a brand-new hospital network. In
addition, the Group provided maintenance and security managed services, including
a new managed security service on a hybrid cloud environment for a leading financial
technology company.

Integrated Managed Services Business

(Omni-channel Managed Services — Simplify your IT operations to increase efficiency;
Ops)

The service orders newly secured in the Integrated Managed Services Business
presented growth compared to last year. The service revenue recorded HK$457.5
million. The key growth engine was driven by Information Technology Service
Management (ITSM) and orders benefiting from government policies.

For industry performance, orders from the government, financial and aviation sectors
have accounted for more than half of the overall service orders. The Group continued
to support the government’s fight against the Pandemic with information technology
services, provided ITSM services for the first time in a cloud-based environment
management system for a client in the aviation industry, and received its first order for
application managed services from a major financial institution. The Group has also
launched automation services to complete its service desk services for uninterrupted
business operation, so as to optimize the customer experience.

Platform-Driven DevSecOps Services, Deep Penetration of
Focused Industries, Enhancement of “as-a-Service”

The Group’s combines its holistic service delivery with Unified Operation Center (UOC)
and Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+). Both platforms are service-oriented, the
Group’s self-branded, automated and hybrid cloud platforms. During the year, the
Group continued to enhance the two platforms and promote platform-driven services
to meet our clients’ need for cloud-native and microservices, increase delivery speed,
and accelerate digital transformation with innovative technologies and compliance
approaches for clients.

The Group's service competencies are reflected in its ability to provide DevSecOps
services throughout the customer’s IT lifecycle. UOC, as the Group's integrated
operational service delivery platform, not only received orders from existing and new
customers, but also continued to provide application maintenance services which are
in higher value for a government authority and financial institution, closely following
customers’ needs and reinforcing customer loyalty in the long run, which will be
beneficial to the Group’s further development in these industries.
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Moving forward to the provision of industry-specific solutions, the Group partnered
with Finastra, a leading global financial technology provider, to deploy Finastra’s
treasury and capital markets solution in Hong Kong and Macau. The partnership will
combine ASL's professional experiences in DevSecOps services and Finastra’s proven
industry-leading trading system to optimize and promote open banking in helping
banks drive digital transformation.

The Group launched “ASL Marketplace”, an integrated cloud-native online platform
for a year. During the year, we have continued to expand and have launched two
new products, LearnloT.aaS (loT Learning as-a-Service) and VEvent.aaS (Virtual Event
Management as-a-Service).

Business of Associates

Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“GDH", NASDAQ ticker symbol: GDYN), an associate
with business in Europe and the U.S., has successfully withstood the impact of the
Russia-Ukraine war by terminating its offshore delivery operations in Russia and
relocating most of its Ukrainian delivery resources to neighbouring countries and
South America. In addition, GDH established its first engineering centre during the
year in Hyderabad, India’s premier innovation hub, which is home to top-notch
engineering talent, leading technology providers, and financial services companies,
further reinforcing our confidence in our customers’ commitment to accelerate global
growth and development.

According to Form 10-K for the year ended 31st December 2022 of GDH published
on the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission website, the annual total revenue
of GDH reached US$310.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$2,431.8 million)
and non-GAAP EBITDA was US$58.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$456.9
million). With approximately 3,800 employees, GDH's revenue share in the technology,
media and telecommunications sector in 2022 was close to one-third of overall
revenue.

The business of i-Sprint Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“i-Sprint”), one of the
major associates in Asia Pacific, recorded its revenue and EBITDA reaching HK$115.4
million and HK$24.6 million respectively. i-Sprint's new customers in the second half
of the year were up approximately 30% compared to that in the first half of the year,
and returning customers approximately doubled compared to last year’s total. During
the year, i-Sprint’s products continued to receive industry and market recognitions, and
won numerous industry awards. As for the AccessReal product identification solution,
i-Sprint released AR code, an anti-counterfeiting and copy-preventing QR code, which
has been patented in several countries. In the fourth quarter of 2022, i-Sprint was
actively involved in marketing campaign to strengthen its market position as a leading
international provider of management, unified authentication and access control
solutions.
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Outlook and Prospects

With the relaxation of customs clearance and the Pandemic precautionary measures
between Mainland China and Hong Kong, Hong Kong started with a series of
positive economic news in 2023. However, under the multiple impacts of inflationary
pressures, geopolitical tensions, supply chain challenges, migration waves, and
technical talent poaching waves leading to further cost increases, thereby also posing
challenges to the Group’s business. Nevertheless, we will fill the talent gap and closely
monitor the business opportunities brought about by the gradual return to normalcy
in Hong Kong, Mainland China, and the rest of the world.

In face of the uncertainties presented by the pandemic and intensifying outflow of
technical talent in Hong Kong, many companies are compelled to accelerate digital
transformation, thus driving an increased demand for one-stop managed services. The
Group, as one of the few one-stop managed service providers, are well positioned
to meet the anticipated surge in demand. In the future, the Group will make greater
efforts to adjust its human resources strategy and resources and leverage international-
level services and innovative technologies to act as a bridge for customers in building
the application, thereby further strengthening its market position as a Unified
Technology Services Provider, with Development, Cybersecurity and Omni-channel
Managed Services (collectively referred to as, “DevSecOps”) as its specific business
models.

We will focus on industries in which the Group has particular competitive edge,
deeply cultivating in these industries to provide innovative solutions to meet
different customers’ needs, enabling them to improve their products and services
value. In terms of partnership, we will continue to optimize the partner ecosystem.
For technology, we will use cloud-native technology as the underlying technical
foundation and application scenarios for innovative technology and, to support the
dual-line development of our suppliers from Mainland China and the rest of the world
so as to address geopolitical risks.

In addition, the Group will leverage various delivery centers and service centers,
such as the Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+) and the Group’s unique Unified
Operation Center (UOC), as platforms, complemented by multi-channel and multi-
national human resources, to form a professional technology service capability based
on industries where we have an advantage and provide automated, platform-driven
and industry-specific centralized IT managed services. Meanwhile, we will drive growth
by enhancing our technology and lifting automation goals, capture new potential
project-based business, and continue to focus on specific areas of IT professional
services and expand our market coverage.

Furthermore, the Group will continue to enrich the self-branded ASL Marketplace’s
as-a-Service, actively invest in the launch of hybrid cloud services, and optimize its
platforms to accelerate customers’ access to data and data-driven decision-making,
thus enhancing customer experience and customer loyalty.
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As the Group celebrates its 50th anniversary in 2023, we will continue to pivot
towards a customer-centric and “Industry-Specific + Integration + Platform-Driven
+ Regional Expansion” strategy, as well as to adhere to the direction of continuous
transformation. The Group will also closely monitor the opportunities brought by
the HKSAR Government’s initiatives in the “Hong Kong Innovation and Technology
Development Blueprint”, such as expanding the innovation and technology talent
pool, promoting the development of digital economy and building a smart Hong
Kong. At the same time, keeping pace with its customers in the development of the
Greater Bay Area, we will serve as a bridge between Mainland China and the world
with our technology. We believe these measures will enhance the sustainability of the
business. Finally, we will continue to pursue opportunities for inorganic growth in the
Greater Bay Area in order to become a leading unified technology services provider in
the region.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st December 2022, the Group's total assets of HK$3,032.3 million were
financed by current liabilities of HK$800.9 million, non-current liabilities of HK$171.6
million and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$2,059.8
million. The Group had a working capital ratio of approximately 1.8:1.

As at 31st December 2022, the Group had an aggregate composite banking facility
from banks of approximately HK$301.5 million (2021: HK$346.6 million). The Group
had pledged land and buildings in an aggregate amount of HK$159.6 million (2021:
HK$166.7 million) and investment properties with a carrying amount of HK$52 million
(2021: HK$54.3 million) to secure the Group’s bank borrowings. The performance
bonds issued by the Group to customers as security of contracts were approximately
HK$112.2 million (2021: HK$102.5 million) as at 31st December 2022. The Group's
gearing ratio (bank borrowings over equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company) was 2.7% as at 31st December 2022 (2021: 5.1%).

Material Acquisition and Disposal

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 28th February
2022, 3rd March 2022 and 30th November 2022 in relation to, among other matters,
discloseable transaction in relation to the acquisition of a property in Guangzhou by
Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company).

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31st December 2022, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had other material acquisition or disposal.
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Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated resources and
credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available for the Group include trust
receipt loans, clean import loans, overdrafts and term loans. The interest rates of most
of them are fixed by reference to the respective countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The
bank deposits are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United
States dollars (“USD"). The bank borrowings are denominated in HKD.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and USD. Foreign exchange
exposure to USD of the Group will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to link HKD to USD
remains in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
and therefore no related hedging financial instrument was applied during the year
ended 31st December 2022 (2021: same).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2022, performance bonds of approximately HK$112.2 million
(2021: HK$102.5 million) had been issued by the bank on behalf of the Group to
customers as security of contracts.

Capital Commitments

As at 31st December 2022, the Group had contracted capital commitment in respect
of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$1.4 million (2021: HK$0.4
million).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 32.4% and 17%,
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue. The five largest suppliers and single largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 40.2% and 13.6%, respectively, of
the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2022 did a Director, their close
associate or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) has an
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December 2022, the Group, excluding its associates, employed 1,474
permanent and contract staff (2021: 1,294) in Hong Kong, Mainland China,
Taiwan, Macau and Thailand. The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, working experience and the prevailing market conditions. Bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include mandatory
provident fund, insurance, medical coverage and share option scheme.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
2023 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on Wednesday,
24th May 2023. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 19th May 2023 to Wednesday, 24th May 2023, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 18th May 2023.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The record date for entitlement to the proposed
final dividend is Wednesday, 7th June 2023. For determining the entitlement of the
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 2nd
June 2023 to Wednesday, 7th June 2023, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the final
dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 1st June 2023. The final
dividend warrants are expected to be despatched to the qualifying shareholders of the
Company on Wednesday, 21st June 2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Annual Report 2022 & %R

M_B_=FRRBFASE
FMERDBFEETTFE

ARBBR T =FRAA-+HA (2H=) BITE
ERRBFERS °§#mﬁfﬁ?ﬁx$i@$ﬁ%&b‘é

BLEREZEN ARRKER T _=FAHTNH
(E%@ﬁ)i—g::ﬁziﬂ “tmE(EHS) (B

BEMAD) LHHEEMHEREELTFE - PRI ERE
T ERERGBEEL - BTEEREAELFERE
ERFEFASENE FREZEK - IBEEZZ
BEXHERABBREVEN-_T=_=FAA+/\H
(E2EIM) TH U=+ H AR ERR R ZEBR DB
PEEORLZEERERARAR (MU AT BERE
16 RRE A O T7E) IHEE L FE -

REBREREGEHERG
ﬂﬁﬁ%?m

BRERPKRESASNEREREF RS ERERRL
o BEEB RS BN 2B R—T =
NALRA(EH=) RETAEEZRHAREZE
B ARAEER_E_=F AR (EPR)E_F
TZFERACR(EHD) (BREEMA) LHHEE
EHERRELTE - NULHE TR TS RER D BP
BRTE RTINABERBREZER  FAEEE
‘Z%Zi@ffY#EEJ%E%%%’%Z\ZEEA:;E:EE/—\H—
B (2H) THME =+ K ERAR R 2 B BN
BFELIERSEEERERA T(ﬂﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁzﬁ‘

16HAREEA L 1718) WEEDTE - KMREE
o A
AREERBER -

BE HEIEODLHES

HE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HLFE AARHHE
ERMBARMERE - HEXERARRMER LT

A °




EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

As at the date of this announcement, the Directors are not aware of any significant
events related to the business or financial performance of the Group after reporting
period.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, risk management and internal
control systems and financial reporting matters including the review of the audited
annual results.

By Order of the Board

Wang Yueou
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29th March 2023
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Activity Highlights
EETER

Despite the volatility of the pandemic in 2022, the Group made remarkable
progress in its business operation, including enriching services offerings on
“ASL Marketplace” with the launch of two new as-a-Services, LearnloT.aaS
and VEvent.aaS, promoting industry-specific solution in the financial sector
with a new partner, Finastra, and hosting various events to promote ASL's
innovative solutions. As a leading global IT solutions and service provider, the
Group has continued to harness its DevSecOps capabilities to promote digital
transformation and deliver industry-specific solutions to our clients.

BE_T_FRERE  BRERFREREENGHE
R B [ASL Marketplace | i 7 ¥iEt 820 E28 72
(LearnloT.aaS) FE#DEB) EFE (VEvent.aaS) WA ZHT
[BNARTS ] SRR ER - BAZREVEREHE Finastra K& RULFHEZE
DTERRNEAN R  TRHSEEHHEEEBRFEN
BIFTRREAT R - EEERRIRELMEMBHREATRR
ARFSHLFER - 4245 T F H DevSecOpsAE (2 BRAEEEAY -
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Launched two new "as-a-Service” solutions — loT Learning To celebrate the 1st anniversary of ASL Marketplace, the Group
(LearnloT.aaS) and Virtual Event Management (VEvent.aaS) on “ASL kicked off a series of celebration campaign and recorded a success.
Marketplace”, a cloud-based comprehensive online platform to cater This year, the Group continued to enhance Marketplace’s platform,
the needs of STEM education and distance business facilitating its clients a greater achievement in digital transformation
[ ASL Marketplace ] Eim4r A4 EF AHEHMAZH [BIAR | BED [ASL Marketplace | EItt—EF - ZEBEM T — RHIEMR
FRRTT R — WER A2 ARAE (LearnloT.aas) EEKUE BN B IR EE) - WEREAKD) © EERNFRFHFEE Marketplace 81 & - BI N
(VEvent.aaS) * LAME STEM # B MER AR R E EPEIEEA P EEE AR

Hosted “ASL Innovation 2022" webinar for the third consecutive year, gathering I.T. industry elites in sharing the latest I.T. solutions and
approaches. Mr. Dominic Shih, the CTO and Senior Vice President of ASL, and Teresa Lau, the Senior Vice President of ASL have shared the

company’s latest news and future plans
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FINASTRA

Newly Added Industry-Specific Partner
LUTER AN SR

ASL and Finastra inked partnership, laying ASLs
strategic breakthrough into financial services
sector with industry-specific solution through
the collaboration between the two parties.
During the year, ASL joined forces with Finastra
to promote DevSecOps services and financial
solutions for banks to carry out open banking.
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Activity Highlights
EETER

[
A FinTech Week 2022

BREHRE 2022
<« "The Future of Finance is

Opening Banking” Webinar

[ The Future of Finance is
Open Banking | #8&HsT &

Participated in the “Huawei Hong Kong
Partner Summit 2022", ASL received six
awards from Huawei and was once again
awarded “The Outstanding Contribution
Partner”

B8 Z# 2 [Huawei Hong Kong Partner
Summit 2022 | - WEEERNEZIR - F
TREBEES [FHERAERHE]

Hosted an exclusive private screening of
the "Warriors of Future” with Nutanix
and TriTech Distribution to appreciate the
continued support of customers

HE)Z 4 + Nutanix Fl TriTech Distribution
BT 35 BB | RABRKERE A
R —E AR

-

Introduced STEM courses and demonstrated
smart home teaching materials in the
"OGCIO IT Innovation Lab & Knowing More
About IT Programmes Sharing & Solutions
Show" with EDUperience and 60 Pins

#4A EDUperience & 60 Pins * 1A [OGCIO
IT Innovation Lab & &7## IT 52 M Sharing
& Solutions Show | M 48T ET EHFT R 6
STEM # B 2 ME RIE RS SR B B

-

Mr. Kenny Mak, Vice President, Solution
Division of ASL, shared how ASL worked
together with IBM and chose IBM Instana
Observability to optimize customer
experience

H &) X4t Solution Division A9 Vice President
Kenny Mak 7 % B 8) £t 4a0{e E2 BM & 1F
K232 1BM Instana Observability 8/t & F

S

N

Co-hosted a webinar on “When Cyber
Attacks Reach New High: How and Why
Managed Security Is The Way Out for HK
Online Businesses” with F5

B2 F5 431 T [When Cyber Attacks Reach
New High: How and Why Managed Security
Is The Way Out for HK Online Businesses |
e

ASL sponsored “PAIB Conference 2022,

in which the event took a deep look into
the sustainability agenda and shared how
business leaders can steer their organizations
towards sustainability

B E) Z 4 EBh [PAIB Conference 2022
ZEBFARN T RERRERE &
PXEEMRS D Z WS BHAZER
AIHERE
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

REAMEZEEZSH

CUSTOMER
'R

A famous life insurance company in Taiwan
—BEAEERAT

A government department
—BURTEBFT

A government department

— AT EBFT

A government hospital in Thailand
— BT BB

A Hong Kong independent statutory institution

—BRBIDEE RS

A leading fintech company

—EEHN TR AT

A leading telecom service provider in Macau

—MBRPIEA B AR
A local hospital
— K Hb 2R

A local university

— KR

A multinational enterprise
—BEI{E

Google, Apple, PayPal and Macys
AR - FAR -~ PayPal MIIEFE B E

One of the largest independent air cargo handlers at
the Hong Kong International Airport
BRI R B BT ER s —

One of the largest local charitable organizations

AR AR EWIEZ —

Top three renowned local banks

Bl =B A MIRTT

Two governmental disciplined forces

BB A A R BB
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SCOPE OF WORK
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Provision of security managed services including data loss prevention,
endpoint anti-virus and driver encryption

RER2EERRTY - BREHESEER - nHERS RBEEIEF NE

Continued to support government’s anti-epidemic work

BESFBURHUR T

Provision of Application Maintenance Services

FE A2 M AR TS

Utilization of artificial intelligence to create smart hospital
MAALEEITESEER

Provision of a digital platform and application maintenance services to
enable customers to fully digitize licensing services
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Provision of new managed security services under the hybrid cloud
environment (including the Security Operation Center (SOC) service)
RENEAERSE LA EEL2RE (EREEMEZE2ZEP L (S00)
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Provision of load balancing devices with 5-year parts and 7x24 maintenance
support services

R B FIGE R B AR 5 F 0 7x24 i SR IR TS

Provision of network for a new hospital
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Provision of loT network security solution
REITHBBRLE2HE

Provision of multinational cybersecurity managed service
RHUBEEAPE L2 TR RE

Provision of digital transformation services
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Provision of ITSM services under a cloud-based management system
NERFERZ G ITSM IR%

Provision of cybersecurity solutions featuring micro-segmentation
under cloud environment and DevOps integration
REERBEMDE - EF DevOps WPEB L EFHRTR

Provision for AccessMatrix software maintenance, implementation and
deployment services
PR AccessMatrix 3014 4 7& - BHEAEBE IR

Provision of application development services for the enhancement of digital
government services
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HTES

Mr. WANG Weihang
THEMEE

Chairman

E:

Mr. Wang, aged 56, has been the Chairman of the Board of the
Company since May 2019 and a Director of the Company since
September 2009. He has been a director of Grid Dynamics Holdings,
Inc., an associate of the Company which listed on Nasdaq (ticker
symbol: GDYN), since March 2020. Mr. Wang is currently the chairman
of Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”), the Company’s
ultimate holding company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600410.SH) and the sole director of Teamsun Technology
(HK) Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun”), the Company’s immediate
holding company. He is currently a director of certain subsidiaries
of Teamsun. Mr. Wang was the vice chairman and general manager
of the first board of directors of Teamsun, the vice chairman and
president of the second to fourth board of directors of Teamsun, the
chairman and president of the fifth board of directors of Teamsun, and
the chairman of the sixth board of directors of Teamsun. Mr. Wang
was also the president of the seventh council of Beijing Software
Industry Association. Mr. Wang holds an Executive Master’s Degree
in Business Administration from Tsinghua University in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and a Master’s Degree in Semi-Conductor
Materials and Microelectronic Technology from the Information and
Electronic Engineering Department of Zhejiang University in the PRC.
Mr. Wang was awarded as H BIEX {4 2 248 1 3 5K (China Software
Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur Laureate®) and A1 [ &k {4 & 215
B) A (China Software Industry Prestige Award Laureate®) by China
Software Industry Association in 2009. He was also awarded the
“Innovation Outstanding Personality of Chinese Brand Award” in
2011.
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EENGREEAESEHN

Mr. WANG Yueou
FTEBExE

Chief Executive Officer

TR

Mr. Wang, aged 48, has been the Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director of the Company since September 2016 and
September 2015 respectively. He joined the Group in 2011 and was
the Financial Controller, the Chief Financial Officer and the Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Wang has been a director
of Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc., an associate of the Company which
listed on Nasdaq (ticker symbol: GDYN), since March 2020. He is
currently director of certain subsidiaries and associates (i.e. i-Sprint
Holdings Limited and i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd) of the Company.
Mr. Wang was a director of Teamsun, the chief financial officer and
a director of Carnation Software Ltd., a subsidiary of Teamsun, a
supervisor of Victorysoft Technology Ltd, the joint venture company
of the Company in the PRC, the chief financial officer and a board
secretary of Guangzhou Headway Technology Co., Ltd. and the
regional finance manager (China) of Wistron Information Technology
& Services Corporation. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
International Accounting from Jinan University in the PRC, a Master's
Degree in Business Administration from University of Wales in the
United Kingdom and an Executive Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Research Institute of Tsinghua University in the
PRC.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREBEAEB/N

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FUTES

Mr. CUI Yong
EBRAE

Mr. Cui, aged 55, has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company
since September 2015. He joined Teamsun in March 2005 and is
currently the general manager of key client accounts business (division
1) in Teamsun. Mr. Cui was a director and the executive vice president
of Teamsun. During his tenure with Teamsun, Mr. Cui was also a
general manager of various divisions, including the system information
product (plate) and service (plate) division, the telecommunications
industry and value-added storage business division, and the system
product business division. Mr. Cui holds an Executive Master of
Business Administration from Guanghua School of Management in
Peking University in the PRC.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BYFHTES

Mr. PAN Xinrong

Mr. Pan, aged 69, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since September 2015. He is currently an independent
director of Shanghai Bokesoft Information Co., Ltd.* (L/B1BRIE
AR BBRZAF]). He was an executive director and the deputy
chairman of Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 934) from 2004 to 2007 and was the chief executive officer
of Petro-Cyberworks Information Technology Co., Ltd. from 2006
to 2014. Mr. Pan also held financial positions in various companies,
including China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (“SINOPEC"),
China Petrochemical Corporation, China Eastern United Petrochemical
(Group) Company Limited and SINOPEC Anging Company (formerly
known as China Petrochemical Anging Petrochemical Plate). Mr. Pan
graduated from China Huazhong University of Science and Technology
with a profession in Quantitative Economics. He was awarded the
"Outstanding Management Award” by China Petroleum and Chemical
Industries Integration of Informatization and Industrialization in 2011
and the First Prize of SINOPEC Technology Advancement in 2014.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESERESREEAEBRBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

BIYEHITESE )

Mr. DENG Jianxin
HEIFEE

Mr. Deng, aged 58, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since September 2015. He is currently an executive
director of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan Capital Investment Management
Co., Ltd.* (RYITTETEBRIEEBEAMRARA]), an executive director
of Shenzhen Zhuoyi Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* (FIIT &
Iz EBEREMR AR, an executive director of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan
Enterprise Consultants Co., Ltd* (FITH 2T EER AR A A]) and
the chairman of Shanghai Debimai Enterprise Management Consulting
Co., Ltd* (LBEMUIKRDEERAAABRAT). Mr. Deng was a
supervisor of Shanghai Dobe Cultural & Creative Industry Development
(Group) Co., Ltd., a partner of Beijing JD Capital Co., Ltd., a partner
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“Deloitte”), a full-time member
of the 7th and 8th Stock Offering Approval Committee of China
Securities Regulatory Commission, a director of Shandong Bori
Bioenergy Co., Ltd., a company listed on the New Third Board (Stock
Code: 871585.0C) and a non-executive director of Jiangxi Bank Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock Code: 1916), the chairman of Shanghai 4Smart
Technology Co., Ltd.* (L/8FEE gERHZ AR A7) and the chairman
of Hangzhou Zhuoyuan Ledao Holding Co., Ltd.* (ffi/N & T4 @5
f&EBRAF]). Mr. Deng was mainly responsible for managing and
auditing the listing of companies as well as the merger and acquisition
services in Deloitte. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in the PRC and an
Executive Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in the PRC.
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Ms. OR Siu Ching, Rerina
mNEZE

Ms. Or, aged 53, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since April 2017. She was a senior vice-president
of Schneider Electric SE (collectively with its subsidiaries, “Schneider
Electric”), a company listed on the Euronext Paris Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: SU), from 2019 to 2021. She joined Schneider Electric
in 1994 and retired after 27 years of services. She held various senior
management positions with Schneider Electric, including director and
the president of Schneider Electric (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric between 2015 and January
2019, a vice president of global purchasing of Schneider Electric
between 2012 and 2014, the president of Schneider Electric Taiwan
Co., Ltd. between 2008 and 2011 and director of certain subsidiaries
of Schneider Electric. Ms. Or was a member of Energy Advisory
Committee of The Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region from 2016 to 2022. She has over 20 years’ management
experience in energy management and automation industry. Ms. Or
holds an Executive Master’s Degree in Business Administrative from
the Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University in the
United States of America and the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology, and a Master's degree of Science in Management
from ESSEC Graduate School of Management in France.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREBEAEB/N

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SREEAS

Mr. NGAN Wai Hing
BEERLE

Chief Finandial Officer and
Joint Company Secaretary
BIBRBERBELARE

Mr. Ngan, aged 51, has been the Financial Controller and the
Company Secretary of the Company since September 2016 and was
re-designated as Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company Secretary
of the Company on 1st January 2022. Mr. Ngan joined the Company
in 2009 and was a financial controller of a subsidiary of the Company.
He was also the Joint Company Secretary of the Company from
September 2014 to August 2016. Mr. Ngan holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Financial Administration (major in accounting) from University
of New England in Australia and is a certified public accountant of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a certified
practicing accountant of CPA Australia.
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Ms. LAU Nga Ting
2MEZ L

Joint Company Secretary
BEAEDRE

Ms. Lau, aged 36, joined the Company in 2019 and has been the
Joint Company Secretary of the Company since January 2022.
Ms. Lau is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance
Professional and an associate member of both The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance
Institute in the United Kingdom. She holds a Bachelor’s Degree
of Arts in Business Administration from the Birmingham City
University and a Master’s Degree in Corporate Governance from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate governance to the
Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to identifying and
formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are made pursuant to the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). During the year ended 31st
December 2022, the Company has complied with all the code provisions, save and
except for code provision C.1.6, details of which are explained below. The Company
regularly monitors and reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure these
continue to meet the increasing stringent regulatory requirements and to improve its
practices.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its board of Directors (the “Board”)
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and transparency and
accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarized as follows:

THE BOARD
Corporate Culture

The Board leads to establish, promote and continually reinforce the desired corporate
culture of the Group which is underpinned by our corporate values of committing
highest standard of business ethics and integrity. Our sound corporate culture reaches
all levels of the Group, and aligns with the strategic and core values of the Group. For
detailed information about the strategic and core values of the Group, please refer to
the section headed “Quality Policy of ASL"” on page 2 of this annual report.

Responsibilities

The Company has formalized and adopted the written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a view to
enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the Company are
delegated to the management.

The Board reserves its decisions for all major matters of the Company, including
the approval of long-term objectives and strategies, changes to capital and overall
corporate structure, risk management and internal control systems, material
transactions (in particular those which may involve conflicts of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice
and services from the Joint Company Secretaries, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Responsibilities (Continued)

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals have to be obtained
from the Board prior to entering into any significant transactions by the above-
mentioned officers.

The Board has the full support from the Chief Executive Officer and senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of two Executive Directors, one
Non-Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors. The number
of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents more than one-third of the Board
as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Weihang (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Cui Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Pan Xinrong

Mr. Deng Jianxin

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina

None of the members of the Board has any financial, business, family or other material
relationships with each other.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 25 to 28 of this annual report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules and is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Annual Report 2022 4%
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

The Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through active participation in Board meetings and affairs of the Company,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflicts of interests and serving
in Board committees, all Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Directors make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures for the
appointment of Directors.

The Company has adopted the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company. These procedures are available and accessible
on the Company’s website at http://www.asl.com.hk.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
are as set out in the Bye-laws of the Company. The Board established a Nomination
Committee to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at least
annually, identify suitable candidates for the Board, and to make recommendations
on any matters in relation to the appointment and re-appointment of members of the
Board. Appointment of new Directors is reserved for the Board’s approval.

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Board comprises members with a diverse
range of skills and experience with the appropriate knowledge necessary to oversee
the business development, strategies, operations, challenges and opportunities of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Nomination Committee takes that
person’s skills, qualifications and expected contributions to the Company into account
before making any recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment or
re-appointment of members of the Board.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process,
with the advice provided by the Nomination Committee, by making reference to the
proposed candidates’ skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments as well as the needs of the Company and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to
carry out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM") one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as additional Director shall be subject to re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
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TEERRE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

Each of the Non-Executive Directors is appointed under a specific term and they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company.

The Company has formal service agreements or letters of appointment for all Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive
Directors) which setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment and
the terms of references have set out the work scope of the Board committees and
delegation were made by the Board in respect of the responsibilities of the Non-
Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors) in such Board
Committees.

In accordance with the Bye-law 99 of the Company, Mr. Wang Yueou, Mr. Pan Xinrong
and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these Directors standing for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company's circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming AGM contains
detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company. Each newly-appointed
Director receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for its
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors are
continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and the
business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for Directors are arranged where necessary.
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THE BOARD (Continued) Exgw
Training for Directors (Continued) B2l

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the Company organized a video #BE_ZT__F+_A=+—HILFE ARAN=
training in December 2022 titled “Anti-corruption”, and provided the Directors with T —F+ZA8RHE T —XFTBEA [ REEE] 18
relevant training materials. All Directors have provided the Company with records — #EF3) + WA ZEHREMBEIIME - frEESHM
of the training during the year. According to the training records maintained by the — ZN2A RlRE TR FRAETFIFEER o IRIEA D FURTH
Company, the types of trainings received by each of the Directors during the year are  F#llitek - FEERFRNAE X WIBIIERIBE N

summarized as follows: I
Types of Training
EINER
Attending seminar(s)/
conference and/or
forums conducted
Receiving updates and by the Company or
briefings from the external parties
Company/self-study HERAKAR
WERER A A ] HIMEBE{L
RENEFERR BMRNHEE
Name of Director EEgE [CHVA=E B3R RwE
Executive Directors HITES
Wang Weihang FHEMm v
Wang Yueou TEB v/
Non-executive Director FHITES
Cui Yong EB v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Pan Xinrong EREE v/
Deng Jianxin ik v/
Or Siu Ching, Rerina IEGAN - v/
Insurance Cover for Directors EENRETHE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action ~ARBIEEERAIGL @MU EETHLH TAM
against its Directors to comply with the requirement of the CG Code. IR - AFE(REBRTRADZ T -
Attendance Records of Directors and Committee members BRESRZEEHEHERHE
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance BENEREFLEAE
The Board has at least four regular meetings a year and holds additional meetings on ~ EFENEGFERBITRIOAGH WHRAFTE
other occasions as needed. B EMEERITEINIGE
During the year ended 31st December 2022, the Board held four Board meetings. HEZZ-_F+-A=1T—HILFE ZExgH#R

TR &R ©
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ERERRE

THE BOARD (Continued)

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee members
(Continued)

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued)

The individual attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings, meetings of
Board committees and/or the general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31st December 2022 are set out below:

BEEgw
BEERZEEREHFEH(®)

B U R H A ()

EEENBE T —Ft-BSt—ALFEEST
MAATEEE &E%T?E@ FHRIEEA
& 2 [E5) s #5m

Attendance/Number of Meetings held during the tenure of directorship

REZEDALE BEAEERY

Remuneration Audit Nomination ~ Management Investment 2022 AGM
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee ZBICF
Name of Directors E3pf £ HHEES ENZEE RtZEE EEZEE REZRE  RRAFAS
Executive Directors BTES
Wang Weihang T 44 N/A N/A 7 414 20 n
TER A
Wang Yueou TER 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 4/4 212 "
TR TEA TER
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Cui Yong EE 0/4 N/A N/A N/A 0/4 N/A 0N
TER TaR TER TER
Independent Non- BUKHTES
Executive Directors
Pan Xinrong B 44 n 4/4 7 N/A 22 n
TR
Deng Jianxin k=i 44 n 4/4 7 N/A 2 n
TR
Or Siu Ching, Rerina g 44 i 44 N/A /A /A N
TEm TER TER

None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate Director.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with
the Independent Non-Executive Directors without the presence of other Directors
during the year ended 31st December 2022.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum attendance of
the Directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board meetings and Board committees meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days before (or other period as agreed)
each Board meeting or Board committees meeting to keep the Directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them
to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Practices and Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

The management has provided all members of the Board with monthly updates giving
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

The Joint Company Secretaries are responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board
meetings and Board committees meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a conflict
of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered by the Board
and dealt with by a physical board meeting rather than a written resolution. The
Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance of power and authority.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Wang Weihang
and Mr. Wang Yueou respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined
and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning of
the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the support
of the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-
day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible
for developing strategic plans and formulating the organizational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective since 30th August 2013. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. All board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered based on objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

According to the board diversity policy, selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge, independence
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six Directors. One of
them is female. Three of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The Board is
also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender,
professional background and skills. The Company considers that there is gender
diversity on the current Board and in considering director candidates in the future, it
will continue to identify and select female individuals with a diverse range of skills,
experience and knowledge in the field of the Group’s business from time to time, for
promoting gender diversity of the Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the diversity of the Board. Furthermore, the Nomination Committee will
monitor and evaluate the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to
time to ensure its continued effectiveness. The workforce of the Group (including its
senior management) comprised approximately 75% male employees and 25% female
employees as at 31st December 2022. Due to the nature of work in information
technology industry, the Group mainly considers factors such as the candidates’ ability
and experience, rather than their gender, in recruiting employees.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy effective since 31st December 2018. This
policy aims to set out guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are
to be declared and paid, and the level of dividend to be paid to the shareholders
of the Company. The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board should also take into account, inter alia,
the following factors:—

(@) the actual and expected financial results of the Group;

(b) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of the Group;

(c) the Group's business strategies, including future cash commitments and
investment needs to sustain the long-term growth aspect of the business;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders;

(e) the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital requirements of
the Group; and

(f) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Subject to the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any applicable
laws, rules and regulations, dividends may be paid in cash or be satisfied wholly
or partly in the form of allotment of shares of the Company. The Board may also
consider the issuance of bonus shares on a basis permitted by the applicable laws
and regulations. The dividend shall include scrip dividends, distributions in specie or in
kind, capital distributions and capitalization issues.

The Board may from time to time determine and pay to the Company’s shareholders
interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the position of the
Company. The Board may recommend the payment of final dividends which are
required to be approved by shareholders of the Company in general meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five committees, namely Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Management Committee and Investment
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of reference.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange and/or are available to shareholders upon request.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from time to time to
facilitate the Company’s operations.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pan Xinrong, Mr. Deng Jianxin and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina.
Mr. Pan Xinrong is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The primary
objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations on and
approving the remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages of all
Directors and the senior management and share options matters. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual remuneration
packages of all Directors and the senior management and other related matters. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman of the Board and/or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company about these recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31st
December 2022. At the meeting, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the
Directors’ remuneration packages (including their service agreements) and bonuses
payable and determined, with delegated responsibility, the change and remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management. Remuneration Committee has
reviewed the share option schemes of the Company and relating matters. There was
no grant of any share option and no material matter relating to share option schemes
of the Company during the year.

To recognize and support the Group’s strategic directions and align the interests of the
Directors and shareholders, the remuneration policy for directors setting the procedure
for fixing remuneration package for Directors, including Executive Directors and all the
Non-executive Directors, chairmanship fee of the Board and Audit Committee and so
forth. The remuneration policy for directors states that the Company seeks to offer
competitive and fair market remuneration to attract, retain and motivate the directors
while avoiding paying more than is necessary for this purpose. Remuneration of each
director is determined based on individual duties and responsibilities, experience and
prevailing market condition, with reference to remuneration offered to comparable
position in the market and advice of independent professional consultants where
appropriate. No Director shall be involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
Company also recognises the importance of a formal and transparent remuneration
policy covering its Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

EEEBETZESw»

Remuneration Committee (Continued) FMEES (9

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated — EEB&FIF aﬁ‘JﬁAﬁéﬁﬁ%#&ﬁﬁTIM LA -

financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the CG Code provision E.1.5, the annual TFJJ:%%:T&?EUMY%E gzzfgiifﬁ‘f'_

emoluments of the members of senior management (except Directors) by band forthe ~ A=+—HILFE - 2K EBE A8 (BRESI) FEH

year ended 31st December 2022 are set out below: SOWES|OT

Emoluments bands: Number of individuals BM&Z4& : BAH
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 - 4,000,001 77T 2 4,500,000 8 70 -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 1 5,000,001 CE 5,500,000 7 7T 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 1 5,500,001 % 7CZ 6,000,000 7T 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 1 7,000,001 7 T2 7,500,000 77T 1
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 1 7,500,001 7L 2 8,000,000 7T 1

Further details of the top five highest paid individuals are set out in Note 15 to the A& &mmEEE ZME BRI RIRE VSRR

consolidated financial statements. 15°

Audit Committee ENEEY

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Pan Xinrong, Mr. Deng Jianxin and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina, among
them one Independent Non-Executive Director possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. Mr. Deng
Jianxin is the chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company'’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the management, internal auditor or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the relationship with the external auditor with reference to the work
performed by the auditor, its independence, fees and terms of engagement, and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor;

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems and associated procedures;
and

(d) to report the findings and make recommendations to the Board for improvements
or implementations in relation to the above matters.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31st December 2022.
At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the following:

(a) the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures;

(b) the reports from the external auditor, management letters and management
response;

(c) the corporate governance matters;

(d) the matters in relation to the risk management and internal control systems as
well as internal audit function; and

(e) the re-appointment of the external auditor.

Annual Report 2022 4%

EREREBRRA=RBIIENTESEK - DR AE
fREQSEE - @M AELERANELL  RERE %
BAEE X ERAG AR EEER BT
FEHTES - RN ALERERZEG IR - HER
REEGZKETIRRRRBIMNEZEE 2 A TSR
Ao

EREEGTERABETIIRE

(F) B BIWMRRIE  SEAEERE - AEBEE
BM Sk SMNEAZ BN IR ) 2 (EAEAR S HEIE
NRIEREFE

() BBIMNEREENEIT 2 TIE - B WBR
ZHBIGR - AT AR EAD 2 B - LRS-
BRERERINERER 2 FEH - AEEFRE

,,,,,,

(M) WA AR RSB HRE F5 - BREIE R ARPEE
REmAMBEEFRE RBNAR - &

(T EENEESERT AR - WiRHBCE
S B2
BET-—F+-_A=t+HLFE FEZZEE

BITMREH - ERS e L FRZEERHMES
HERATEIR

() M RERRE  BBRHREARER

(2) SN BB BN  EIRIE it ) B IR B DI E
(R)EEREE:

(T)ﬁ@@ﬂ EE&W"KEF%I/\/JLLA&WEB%*?DJ

Z2EH K
() HNEBIZ S = fE S -




BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor three times via video conference
during the year ended 31st December 2022.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st December 2022 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises the chairman of the Board and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Pan
Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

() to access the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman of
the Board and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31st December
2022. At the meeting, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the following:

(@) the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;
(b) the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;

(c) to make recommendation to the Board about the proposed re-election of
Directors who were due to retire at the AGM; and

(d) the time spent by Non-Executive Directors to fulfill their duties.

A set of nomination procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of the
Company has been adopted by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

A nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”) has been adopted by
the Board on 31st December 2018 and will be reviewed by the Board annually. The
key nomination criteria and principles of the Company for the nomination of Directors
constitute the Nomination Policy as set out below:

(@) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive;

(d) before recommending an appointment, to evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity on the Board, and, in the light of this
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for a
particular appointment. In identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall:

(i) use such method or methods to facilitate the search as it may deem
appropriate;

(i) consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds; and

(ili) consider candidates on merit and against objective criteria and with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, taking care that candidates
have enough time available to devote to the position; and

(e) to ensure that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive
a formal letter of appointment setting out clearly what is expected of them in
terms of time commitment, committee service and involvement outside Board
meetings, where appropriate.

Management Committee

The Management Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and one
Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Wang Yueou and Mr. Cui
Yong. Mr. Wang Yueou is the chairman of the Management Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and reviewing
the Company’s day-to-day operations and financial reporting, and making
recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies of the Group. The
Management Committee meets as appropriate and when required to discuss the
related issues.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Investment Committee

The Investment Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Wang Yueou,
Mr. Pan Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the
Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee is primarily responsible for identifying and evaluating
existing and potential investment opportunities for the Company, and making
recommendations to the Board. The Investment Committee meets as and when
required to discuss the related issues.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
December 2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has delegated the duties and responsibilities in performing its corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is responsible for
corporate governance functions with the following duties:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2022.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements of
the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The Board has received from the management explanation and relevant information
which enable the Board to make an informed assessment for approving the financial
statements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of external auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages
90 to 94 of this annual report.

The remuneration paid and payable to Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited and
Grant Thornton network firm, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31st December 2022 amounted to HK$1,968,000 and HK$950,000
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of review of interim financial
information and other reporting services.

Other audit firms provide local audit services at a fee of HK$215,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The main features of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which consists of the
Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the senior management. The Board
has evaluated and determined the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and has overseen the senior management
in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy in providing direction
in identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis,
the senior management identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of
the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks according to a
set of standardised criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners are then established
for those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent professional advisor to assist the
Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of internal control systems
of the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal controls are
identified and recommendations are proposed for improvement. Significant internal
control deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely
basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

Risk management report and internal control report which covered financial,
operational and compliance control for the year ended 31st December 2022, has
submitted for the Audit Committee’s and the Board’s reviews. The Group has an
internal audit function in place to provide an independent appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems in
accordance with the CG Code. The Board had performed an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems during
the year, including but not limited to the change, since the last annual review, in
nature and extent of significant risk, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and external environment; the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risk management and internal control systems; the extent and
frequency of communication with the Board in relation to monitoring result of risk and
internal control review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rules compliance. The Board considers the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate. The Board in particular considers
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The risk management and internal control systems above are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")
and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the Safe Harbours
as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that
the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the information
to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear
and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is essential
for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other general
meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Executive Directors, Non-Executive Director,
Independent Non-Executive Directors, and the Chairmen of all Board committees or
their delegate(s) will make themselves available at each AGM to meet shareholders
and answer their enquiries.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

The 2022 AGM was held on 30th May 2022 (the “2022 AGM"). CG Code provision
C.1.6 stipulates that the Independent Non-Executive Directors and other Non-
Executive Directors, directors, as equal board members, should give the board and
any committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and active participation.
Generally they should also attend general meetings to gain and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. A Non-Executive Director was unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30th May 2022 due
to other commitments. However, the chairmen of the Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Management Committee and Investment
Committee or their delegate, and the Company’s external auditor have attended the
2022 AGM to answer questions.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy in 2014 (the
“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) setting out the Company’s procedures in
providing the Shareholders with clear communication and easy access to information
about the Company. The Board will review the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
annually to reflect current regulatory, community, investor requirements. Below is a
summary of the Shareholders” Communication Policy.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at http:/
www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, circulars, announcements, notice
of general meetings, corporate governance practices and other information are
posted. Such information will be also released to the website of the Stock Exchange in
accordance with continuous disclosure obligations.

During the year 2022, the Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholder Communication Policy. The Company’s website was updated on
a regular basis to maintain an effective ongoing communication with shareholders
and shareholders could access the latest information of the Company through the
same. Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange was also posted
on the Company’s website as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter. Shareholders
were provided with the opportunities to communicate with the Directors and senior
management directly at general meetings. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in
an informative and timely manner. Based on the above, the Board was of the view
that the Shareholder Communication Policy was effective.

Constitutional Documents

On 30th May 2022, an AGM was held at which a special resolution was passed to
approve the amendments to the Bye-laws of the Company in substitution for and to
the exclusion of the existing Bye-laws of the Company to (a) bring the constitutional
documents of the Company in line with the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules
(including the core standards for shareholder protections set out in Appendix 3 to the
Listing Rules) and the applicable laws of Bermuda; and (b) allow a general meeting
to be held as an electronic meeting or a hybrid meeting and to incorporate certain
housekeeping changes. Further details of such amendments were disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 27th April 2022. Save for the aforesaid changes, there
are no other changes to the constitutional documents of the Company. An updated
version of the Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is proposed
for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors. Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote
at the general meetings of the Company (other than procedural matters) are taken
by poll and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange after the general meetings.

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

Under Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”), shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
may convene a special general meeting (“SGM") by written requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned, must state
the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses incurred in
giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under Section 74 of the
Companies Act once a valid requisition is received.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The Companies Act allows certain shareholders to make requisition to the Company
to give notice to the shareholders in respect of any resolution which is intended to be
moved at AGM of the Company or circulate a statement in respect of any proposed
resolution or business to be considered at a general meeting of the Company.

The number of shareholders necessary to put forward such proposal for consideration
at a general meeting of the Company shall be:

(a) either any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting; or

(b) not less than 100 shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued) RRERER ()

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by BRERBRASREZBZZEF @)
Shareholders (Continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders concerned and ~ #& B BARR FXEZBWHIARZRZN B KERTZR
together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter ~ — T FRAMIE R FTil 5 B A2 BB 83X X AN A R) #E
referred to in the proposal, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company.  #EEE - NARIEREEEICUFEREGEE TS &
The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and ~ {ER M EZHE - MABBREARBERRDEE7IRE
unless the Company otherwise resolves, the shareholders concerned would be responsible 80§88 E * BE X METZEITE M THE £
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements X+ AR B SEZRERRSIN o

under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents are received.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board mMEESHEHER

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may BRI EA QAR ERSEHTMER - AJABER
send written enquiries to the Joint Company Secretaries who will direct the enquiries R EFEEHEEH - BELIWES TR TE
to the Board for handling. The contact details of the Joint Company Secretaries are as ~ B&EIE - N alME ZBI&FFBUOT ¢

follows:

Contact Details BasEEE

Joint Company Secretaries R YNCIE

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BEBEREEGRAF

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong BEMFADBROE 11 REIERZS 1518
Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Eah : (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2608 6585 fEE& : (852) 2608 6585

Email: ir@asl.com.hk FBIHL - ir@asl.com.hk

For avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed A& AEE - BRERER Lt FE FNFENSHR
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above 3k + AL EARKE R (BIERME) 2 EAMEZE
address and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give ~ I[EAREZE Filttit - WIRHEZENEE - BiEFES

effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law. B LAMEARATRCIE - RRER S SRIBEDIR
EMMFIARE -
JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BEARME

The Joint Company Secretaries, Mr. Ngan Wai Hing (“Mr. Ngan”) and Ms. Lau Nga ~ Bf/F AR EREARELE([EBELE]) REFHIER
Ting (“Ms. Lau”), both are full time employees of the Company, who are responsible £ [ 2%z 4 ) (T - ML ARARZ 2BIEES - &
for advising the Board through the Chairman of the Board on governance matters EBEBEESEFEIEFETNESCRESL I
and facilitates induction and professional development of the Directors. The Joint WEIEEMINFEER - BE A WERNESSE
Company Secretaries report to the Chairman of the Board. All Directors have access e - 2 EEE B A EHE AR WMEREE R LR
to the advice and services of the Joint Company Secretaries to ensure that Board 7% ' LERETEESRFUALEBERESG - A
procedures, all applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. R o

Mr. Ngan and Ms. Lau were appointed as the Joint Company Secretaries of the  EBSEAERBILZTEEZARAARZEREARWE © 8

Company with effect from 1st January 2022. For details of appointment and re- Z—ZT__F—HA—HAR4EN - FRLZELRFATEHER
designation of the Joint Company Secretaries, please refer to the announcement made ~ RIMEXFHIE - FLHEARAAABHA_ST—_—F+=
by the Company dated 28th December 2021. AZ+N\BzZRE -

The Company has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules since Mr. Ngan and ~ HREZERI LT RNBE_T_—_F+-_A=+—
Ms. Lau have undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training B ItFEHEEZ AR T HE/EHNEBEES

during the year ended 31st December 2022. Al - ARAREET ETRAIE 329104 -
On behalf of the Board REEFE

Wang Yueou TER

Chief Executive Officer TTIECAREE

Hong Kong, 29th March 2023 &8 —E-=ZFZA=-TANA
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Group is dedicated to creating long-term, sustainable value for our stakeholders
and strive to integrate this objective into our practices and governance to promote
social and environmental sustainability.

For any organization committed to being responsible and sustainable, Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG") reporting is important because it allows organization
to demonstrate, with facts, what it have achieved and how it plans to meet the
challenges ahead. Not only that, but through the ESG Report we also want to share
our vision with all our stakeholders, providing them with a better understanding of
the Group’s progress and direction on sustainable development, and gaining their
commitment and support. As without them, it will be difficult for us to achieve
sustained growth.

Reporting Scope

Unless otherwise stated, the scope of this ESG Report include environmental and social
issues relating to the Group’s core business operations at the Hong Kong headquarters
for the year ended 31st December 2022 (the “Reporting Year”). Such scope has
included all operations and businesses under the Group’s direct management and
control that have a significant financial and operational impact.

Going forward, the Group will continue to determine the scope of reporting in
accordance with the “materiality” principle and improve our internal data collection
systems to provide stakeholders with more comprehensive and accurate information.

Reporting Standards

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Recognising the importance of being accountable to
our stakeholders for the information disclosed, we adhere to the following reporting
principles.

e Materiality: The Group continually communicates with stakeholders to
understand and identify the ESG areas that are most important to them.

e Quantitative: Where feasible, information is presented in a quantitative manner
and accompanied by narrative, interpretation and comparative analysis.

e Balance: The ESG Report is prepared in an unbiased manner, with clear
explanations of positive and negative impacts, enabling stakeholders to make a
reasonable assessment of the Group’s overall performance.

e Consistency: The ESG Report presents information on a consistent basis, enabling
stakeholders to analyse and assess changes in performance over time.

I«‘&iﬁ X‘ié&kﬁ- YA-‘F& [
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RIE - HERERBRE

Confirmation and Approval

A system of internal oversight, review and risk management has been put in place by
the Group to ensure that all information presented in the ESG Report is accurate and

reliable.

The ESG Report was confirmed and approved by the Board on 29th March 2023.

Feedback

If you have any questions about the content of the Report, please feel free to contact

the Group.

Address: 15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: ir@asl.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance. The Company’s

Board is responsible for decision-making, strategy and risk management, and oversees

our ESG matters. Our Joint Company Secretaries are the coordinators of specific ESG

issues, helping the Board develop strategic ESG programmes, assess and manage

ESG risks, as well as set targets and review progress, while communicating ESG

management plans to other departments.

As an integral part of corporate governance, the Group believes that risk management

and internal control systems have a key role and importance in achieving business

objectives. Our identifying significant risks related to ESG matters relies on evaluation

of management of the Company. During the Reporting Year, the Group has identified

the following major ESG risks and ensured that the corresponding measures are

adequate and effective.

Major ESG risks
FTERE HERELAE

Impact

B/
2

R R At

AEEDRETAKNES  FHARERERGIE - A5
RIRE - LB REBME 2T Z A BB R
=

BEEER T =F=-A-tNLABIRIERS
HERERRE °

&’

fisi P TR E AR B IR - BUDBE A EE

ik - BAEFTRD AL OLE 11 REIEES 1548
EIH : ir@asl.com.hk
FE:E 1 (852) 2601 6998

ARFERRER
AEEBNNERRKTEEER - AAREESZE
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Control measures

B

Health epidemics

2
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The COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”) has had
a severe and negative impact on the Chinese and
global economy since early 2020. Health or other
government regulations adopted in response to
an epidemic may require temporary closure of our
offices or institute travel restrictions which could
adversely affect our ability to provide services to our
customers throughout the world. Our operations
could also be disrupted if any of our employees are
suspected or confirmed of contracting a disease,
which could require us to quarantine some or all of
these employees or disinfect our offices.

B 2020 FHIE - COVID-19 1 ([ 15 ]) ¥ B K
PREBEEEBRENAETE - RELHEEMERKE
0 187 A= Bl EL At IURT AR 151 AT 2 22 SRS ok [ T s R BA A
RESE IR G - bt AT 8 AR E At RS
MR PIRHERENENEETRIZE - MAEEZ
E e B St LAk i RRRAESE - LA AR ESkAREE
fREEE DK HEMESRERATHITES - K
KB @A e o

The Group strives to reduce the possible Pandemic
impact on operations and employee health by the
following means:
REBFBUTARB R Z B 2E REEREN
BETE

— Implementing flexible and remote work options
B s R e T1E%IE

- Sharing the up-to-date information about
Pandemic symptoms and disease prevention
recommendations among employee
WMEB 2 BN ZFEBRS ZER MK RED EEN
B E R

- Ensuring the safety of working environments by
thoroughly cleaning and disinfecting workplaces
FBRAEBFEES TESAARRIEREN R
ES
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Major ESG risks Impact
FTERE  HEREREE &

Rk - HERERME

Control measures

Ry

Shortage of IT talents in Hong Kong has made great strides in driving the

Hong Kong development of the IT industry over the years.

BAEMBHIAL R Owing to the rapid development of Fintech, big data
analytics, artificial intelligence and cyber security
in the industry, the related demand for manpower
with comprehensive knowledge and experience has
increased. While competition for recruiting IT talents
has intensified due to the huge demand in the
market, the political unrest and Pandemic over the
past few years has undoubtedly caused an outflow
of local talent and limited inflow of talent to Hong
Kong. Since the customers’ demands are growing,
the talent shortage poses a challenge to meet the
rapidly growing manpower.
EEZFRERDEACHITEER A — IS
RENES - ERNERBEE - REUEST - AR
R T ENRRER - SULEARRAN
BRAEHE NN OBBRE RGN - EEATISRE
AT REEHIEE AR B35 MK MR 2
B ﬂi%imﬁﬁﬁg&fﬁﬁEEM%ﬁﬁm
AT RERATRABBNBEAZLDIRS - HRE
PHERTEEE I%Aﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁi% RIZRE
AN TTEERCHREL o

There are also ESG-related policies in place across the Group covering areas such as
employment and labour practices, business integrity, environment and community.
These policies help us to optimise our internal management system and ensure the
protection of our stakeholders. For example, a series of well-established employment
policies safeguard the rights of employees, regular training programme to employees
for providing high-quality products and services to customers to maintain sustainable
business growth, and the compliance with applicable laws and regulations to maintain
healthy business development and strengthen confidence of shareholders and
investors in the Group.

The department heads are responsible for overseeing the implementation of the ESG-
related policies, ensuring ongoing communication with employees and reviewing
the policies on a regular basis. All employees and relevant stakeholders should be
informed of any changes to the policies.

With enhanced sustainability governance in the Group, we intend to continue to
assess our ESG performance and global trends from time to time and plan to set ESG
targets in the near future.

To manage such risk, the Group has actively explored
ways to close the skills gap, expand talent pool and
embrace new work models by:

REBEHARR  AEEBRBEBUATHFAFZERS
EHERRREE R  EAAS B R BRI TIER

—  Talent training

AT

—  Expansion of service centers (i.e. acquisition of
property in Guangzhou as the headquarters of
the Greater Bay Area)

B RGO (BN BN R e R R 42
&)

— Introduction of automation to improve service
quality
SIABBEURSRBE R

REBTGITFRRE 8 REREBNRE - RE
ERRSETIER BEAE RERMEBSEEL - 1
FRRAPAEEECAFEERLS - WRERERD
EHRE - BPIfF - — RN EENRBEKIARE
EEMNEN TR RBETHEIINATPE{ES
PVE M ELIRTS - DA TS AR R - A ROEST
R EDER TR PIUA RSB E R RE - WA R
FARBEHARENED -

MATEBEEERE Ti‘“%&e./u*ﬁ%ﬁiﬁlﬁﬁ’ﬁh
17 - FEfRE 1@5 B ERE  WEBRNBE - G
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Rk - HERERME

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values the participation of stakeholders' and strongly believes that building
a relationship of trust not only enables stakeholders to understand the Group's
work and performance in promoting sustainable development, but also enables the
Group to understand stakeholders’ opinions and needs so as to examine potential
risks and opportunities. We regularly engage key stakeholders in daily operations
through meetings, events, and other communications and feedback channels. The key

BHESER

stakeholder groups and methods of communication are illustrated in the table below:

Stakeholders
BHE

Shareholders and Investors

R EE

Customers

5P

Employees

(=35

Suppliers
fHrEm

Community

G

Government and supervisory institutions

BT ERE B HE

Note:

1. Stakeholders refer to groups and individuals who have a major impact on, or are impacted 1.

by, the Group’s business.
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Methods of communication with stakeholders

ERHENEELTRX

Annual General Meeting and special
general meetings

REBFRG MRRERIRE

Notices, circulars, and announcements
BE - BREAS

Regular corporate publications (including
financial reports)

ERCETY (BEMB®RE)

Satisfaction survey
MEEAE
Customer service hotline and email

P IR 2R S B A

Regular meetings

EH g

Annual performance appraisal
FERREZ

Internal memos

AR =85k

Tendering

Bz

Business meetings

A E®E

Charitable activities and donations
BEFR LB

Statutory filings and notification
EEFRE B

Regulatory or voluntary disclosures
EE B AT

o

AEERSERFNE 228 BRERIEEHED
ERSHNETRARENMUGERFERRIEN T
ERRE  MASAEETHSNEZZREFE -
femEREGERRERS - AEEBBEHE  FBHR
HiBBERERE  THSIBERNEL2EATE
B FERMHEERRBERT AN TREL :

Corporate website

NSIF S

Press release

e

Enquiries or feedback to the Board via
the Group’s Joint Company Secretaries
FRAEECBEAGINERNESEEE
sk EE

Customer direct communication

HEFPHERER

Training sessions and orientation
B S
Employee activities

(3= VETE)

On-site assessment
T
Vendor evaluation exercise

HEmTh

Community volunteering events
HEETES

Conferences and workshops
DR

Tax return

EG)

FNERYAEEAXBEEEAYE  AREBTEN

BREREA -
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To the Group, material issues are those that would affect the decisions, actions and
performance of our business and stakeholders. In preparing the ESG Report, the
consultant designed a survey to assist the Board in reviewing ESG issues against
the ESG Reporting Guide and industry trends, and identifying material issues based
on their importance to stakeholders and the Group. Below are six material issues
identified by the Board:

e Anti-corruption e Product Responsibility
RES EmBE

e Customer Satisfaction ® Innovation
BEMEE BIFT

The Group believes that stakeholders’ views can provide management with a
comprehensive understanding of sustainability risks and develop improvement
measures accordingly. Going forward, We will continue to strengthen our interaction
with stakeholders and expand more channels, such as conducting questionnaires
among more stakeholders to increase opportunities to understand their expectations.

COMPLIANCE AND INTEGRITY

The Group recognises that breaches of laws and regulations will have a significant
impact on our business operations, performance, financial position and reputation.
Our business is governed by various laws and regulations, including but not limited to
the following which have a significant impact on the Group: the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, the Employment Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, and
the Competition Ordinance. Measures are implemented to keep abreast of the latest
regulatory developments to ensure compliance.

Meanwhile, all operations are run with a high degree of ethics, transparency,
responsibility and integrity. To meet the fair and ethical requirements, the Group has
established a Code of Conduct (including the anti-corruption system and anti-bribery
system), Competition Compliance Policy, Whistle-Blower Policy and Gift and Donation
Policy to ensure that our operations are free from all forms of corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud, money laundering and anti-competitive practices and that employees
are aware of and comply with these requirements and do not engage in any improper
activities.

Rk - HERERME

BARKEME - EARBREHEANEEZ B RFHD
FHORE - THRRBABUFZENRRE - RERS
HEREAREE - BRI ATSUABHEZSRE
RS HEREAMEEIRTEBEEERE H
ghERRAR  UREFABHEFNERAEE EE
HRAIEREE - U T AEZEFRAINNAERHE

&

e Cyber Security
Mgz

e Training and Development

BN ER

AEERE HHEZBRANSEEERE TR AR
BRRER - WHEHIFTREREE - RERK - B
B MR SN EZEE) - URIRESRE
W E SR EETRERS - BN TRSHEZ
HLEmke -

SRERE

AEERR BRERRBROICHAER ZXBE
BAM UBRRARBEELERYE - AEEZ
EBZRIRARRAOEE - BRETRNATEAR
SEAFEATENERRAD  EANER (FLER)
&)~ CRIEEDD - CREMERED)  (BEZE2R
BEERMRBI) - B3 LERERR 1B RCEF&HI) - REE
REEHEA R T RN EEERIAERER -

BN FRERBIARKINERER  BHE &
ERBEZE - RRRAFREBEFBRER K&
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Rk - HERERME

Management Approach

EEG

Description

Code of Conduct
17/5FR

Competition Compliance Policy
BRI E ARIER

Whistle-Blower Policy
BRRBR

It is based on the Group’s values and aims to promote honest behaviour by all those
involved in our operations.

HUREEZ BEBAER  EEREMALEAEEZE ALTHHETR -
Employees must not solicit or accept an advantage as a reward or inducement for doing
any act or showing favour to any person or corporate without the permission of the
Group.

REAREEIE - EENSEE RS Z RS ERBRMSANT - REMALICEEE
HEAERITTAR  SEERE -

It encourages employees to actively report any malpractice and misconduct that may be
detrimental to the interests of the Group to the Senior Legal Manager and/or Head of
Human Resources.

HetEE B e EB R/ AN EREE T8 FREM A EEARE N 2 A
TIRETETR-

All potential corruption cases reported will be recorded and assessed. Upon receipt of
the report, the Senior Legal Manager and/or Head of Human Resources should promptly
initiate an investigation of the case, identify the issues, facts and any remedial actions.
FTE FEEZRS MRS R - @ REABEBER/IANERTEEREERE B
KEMERAT - SRS - SEMTAHKEE

All investigation will be reported and informed to Chief Executive Officer and/or the
Chairman of Audit Committee. An investigation report will be issued and recorded.

PIERERMSIWBMTRERN/HEREERLE - BHAREMEWCHASR -

It has been adopted by the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong.
REBFAREBEENNBAREIERMEFECR -
Its aim is to prohibit any conduct that prevents, restricts or distorts competition.

HEEZIEMDE - RESBHEFZTR

It encourages employees to actively report any malpractice and misconduct that may be
detrimental to the interests of the Group to the Senior Legal Manager.

HeBE EMEAUEBKR 8 FREMAIEBEEAREN G2 NETRARIETR
Anyone can report in real name or anonymously. The whistleblower’s identity will be kept
completely confidential, and his or her legitimate interests will be protected.
ERMATHATEEHELRE - RAZ A DB TR2RE - BHEEERHZRE
All cases reported will be recorded and assessed. Upon receipt of the report, the Senior
Legal Manager should promptly initiate an investigation of the case.

PG Eme (EZ S Bac ek Mt il - RAUESEERERER - BERKRERERHZE

A briefing session on the above policies will be organized for employees upon their — ANEEEHEE ARE - REBITER DB ME
commencement of employment. These policies are also available on our intranet for ~ & © LEFER RN AEE 2 NE4 - UEREES
easy access by employees. Any employee who is in doubt about the legality of any &5 ° fi{E B SHEREE TN S AETFEIEL - A
business activity can seek advice from the Senior Legal Manager. In addition, during ~ M@&AEFHLLIZS SKHEZ kb - M&iiﬁm N

the Reporting Year, an anti-corruption video training and relevant training materials S ERE FRMH KR EIF1E/EHE Iﬁ%$%ﬁsf
provided to our Directors to further enhance their relevant awareness. Also, a one-  HHEAE IR - bl — ﬁ%ﬁsﬂ%%Z*ﬁﬁﬁ o it
hour anti-corruption training session and training materials were provided to our ~ #b * &I REESRM T —/ N REITIE N&tu Ell
employees to reinforce their awareness on the updates of the Company’s existing M %} - LAINag s P13 2 51 4F A 2 B ¥ 2 3B BUK (B
policies, i.e. Code of Conduct, Whistle-Blower Policy and Gift and Donation Policy. TTRYER ~ BRIRER A RIS mABREIER ) M= ©

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws ~ REEFEA - 45 B 8 AFE ARG EFEDEE
and regulations. There were also no legal cases of corrupt practices against the Group ~ R&FRBI o WHNIMES EAREE R EE 2 BE/51TAERE

and our employees.
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CONTRIBUTION TO SUSTAINABILITY

The Group desires to unite all our staff members in working towards a common
goal - to participate in building the community in which we conduct operations and
protecting the natural environment from which we obtain resources, while always
meeting the expectations of our stakeholders and bringing them mutual benefits.
To this end, we seek to create value for each of the five capitals important to our

business.
Produced Capital Social Capital Human Capital
BEEEXR HEER ABEXR

While the financial capital is already reflected in the Group’s financial statements, we
highlight our performance in the other four capital areas in this ESG Report.

Produced Capital

The Group’s mission as a service provider is to create value for our customers by
providing them with quality and value-added services and solutions. Our produced
capital lies in the creation and management of knowledge and technology in the field
of information technology. In the ongoing digitalisation process, we are committed to
continuous innovation to better assist our clients in their digital transformation.

Quality Assurance

The Group places great importance on ensuring the quality and reliability of our
services. Through regular quality reviews and internal audits by the Quality Office, we
take initiative to identify potential areas for continual improvement on our services
provided to customers in the context of quality management standards. For any risks
that may affect the quality of our services, the Quality Office proposes risk mitigation
plans and monitors the effectiveness of the corrective measures taken.

Over recent years, our main subsidiaries, Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited (“ASLHK")
and ELM Computer Technologies Limited (“ELM"), have been recognised for the
following quality achievements.

Rk - HERERME

HAGEER 2B

AEBBHEFEMAEEIHZARBERES ) - 2R
RAEEETEBAAENME - RRERNEHENE
R BARE - WHRERRF DA ZHERERH
me Rt AREEARSHEBEMEENAREAS
BlEEE -

Natural Capital Financial Capital

BRER MBER

MHERERARE 2B HHRRARMR - EMIRE
AEFRFRRUNAIRE - £ & REARMENRA -
EEEX
AEBERRBGHRER 2 EhEBREFPIRAES
FIEEZRBRBARATR - REAIEEE - AKEZ
EEERNERAEREIEEMB AL ERX
e RIFBEHEIE(LBRES - REBBORTEA
¥ LAInSa iR B E P AETTEAS (L ER -

i B RAE

AEEBRBRERAEERE CEERAISE - 5
BRERFETEMEEFELANRESR  EEEE
ERENRET  ARETEHAESMRRHENRSE
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Major Subsidiaries

W

Quality Achievement

Type of Service Provision

Awarding Bodies

FTEWB AT =029 RALAR %3 B TR
ASLHK ISO 9001:2015 Quality Enterprise Information Technology Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Services
ISk IS ISO9001:2015MEEE A& RIRE EREMERER
R
ISO/IEC 20000-1:2018 Service Desk Operation, Hosting Services, Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
IT Service Infrastructure Hardware & Software
Management System Maintenance Services
ISO/IEC 20000-1:2018 RBEER, FERBEMERRED EEmERER
EERMRGEIRRE RS
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Information Security Monitoring Service  SGS Hong Kong Limited
Information Security
Management System
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 ERZ2EERE EEBEAARERRAF
BT R EERER
Capability Maturity Software Development CMMI® Institute
Model Integration® and Support Service
(CMMI-DEV) Organization
Version 2.0,
Maturity Level 5
Capability Maturity BB R SR ARG A 4 CMMIP B
Model Integration®
(CMMI-DEV) 2.0 i
ERRTIR
ELM ISO 9001:2015 Quality IT System Integration, Software Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Development, Installation and
Maintenance Support Services
TR ISO 9001:2015 BRI RS - AR HEMERER

Owing to the nature of information security involved in IT services, the associated risk
assessment and management are of paramount importance. The Group has developed
and implemented an IT Security Policy which requires relevant staff to comply with
regulations in relation to physical security, access control security, data security and
network and communication security, to protect the customers’ information. To
address security incidents, such as network or system software failures, the Group
has adopted a set of reporting and handling procedures, which are implemented by

mEERER

relevant personnel and a Customer Care Unit.
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Intellectual Property

The Group is committed to protecting intellectual property of the Group and our
partners from infringement and to complying with non-disclosure agreement and
licensing system. Employees are reminded that the Group has exclusive ownership of
the intellectual property and that all material produced or edited by them in the course
of their work is the property of the Group, as set out in the Group’s Code of Conduct.

Innovation

The Group has strived to drive developments for its DevSecOps, integrated IT services,
by integrating our unique advantages — application development (Dev), cybersecurity
(Sec) and omni-channel management services (Ops) into “Unified Technology
Services”, to meet market needs.

Following the successful introduction of DevSecOps into the enterprise customer
scenario, the Group made substantial breakthroughs. The managed security services
have been upgraded to the next level, from the previous delivery in Hong Kong,
extending to the Asia Pacific region and even as far as European and American cities
for the first time. Among them, the delivery advantages comprise of integrating the
Group’s two major managed services platforms, Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+)
and Unified Operation Center (UOC), as the central automated management.

The Group also launched “ASL Marketplace”, our self-branded cloud-based
comprehensive online platform. Leveraging its own unified technology services, the
Group launched the platform to the market in an as-a-Service business model. The
orders newly secured bundle covers DevSecOps, so as to satisfy customers’ digital
transformation needs in efficiency and automation under the new normal, thus

bringing new experience to customers.

Moreover, the Group has successfully introduced new technologies, which drawn
market attention, such as the Internet of Things and automation to improve service
quality.

Supply Chain

A good supply chain management enables the Group to provide high quality products
and services to our customers. Under the Vendor Management Policy, the Group has
established a vendor selection mechanism to assess, including but not limited to, the
background and specialty of the vendor and years of experience, recommendation
from the customer or head office, assessment by a recognised authority to a
National or International Standard e.g. ISO 9001, product certifications obtained and
information on potential business engagement. The policy also includes other controls
over vendors, including monitoring, suspension and blacklisting where necessary.
The certification of our vendors in various management systems demonstrates our
commitment to high standards in the vendor selection.

Rk - HERERME

HIHERE
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We recognize that our supply chain can have significant environmental and social ~ BFIABEEIRMOHEESEHRIBTR Y SERERY
impacts, and we are committed to identifying and addressing these risks. To identify £+ EERMEDRERFEAZERR - BMEEKE
environmental and social risks along our supply chain, we have implemented a range T —RAEE - UH#BIFRMOHERS ZIRERT S
of practices, including conducting risk assessments, engaging with suppliers to & * B EIE ETRBRE - BEERAENLT
understand their sustainability practices and monitoring supplier performance. We  fEAFIR) A] #5485 R BB FIESIT (EFE P 2 455K © AP
are committed to continuous improvement in our supply chain management practices B AR TETSGE B RAHESEE IR 2 B - I 1 4R
and will continue to work with our suppliers and other stakeholders to promote  FFIHEEEFI E A FFnE & 1F - LARERKPIFLFEsE
sustainability and social responsibility along our supply chain. By doing so, we aim  HAJFEMFLE ST - B BRANEZAEZER
to minimize our environmental and social impacts, improve our reputation, and A ERMEBRBERMEEHFE  BEaRMNEE WA

contribute to the transition to a more sustainable and equitable global economy.

BREAFENATHEEEBEEL TR -

Number of vendors with certifications EERBNMHERHE
ISO 9001 — Quality management systems ISO 9001 - B EIE R 26
ISO 27001 — Information security management systems ISO 27001 - B L 2B R 18

ISO 20000-1:2018 — IT service management systems

ISO 45001:2018 — Occupational health and safety management systems

ISO 14001:2015 — Environmental management systems

ISO 20000-1:2018 - EFEHE RIS EE R
ISO 45001:2018 - B2 REALT 2 ERER
ISO 14001:2015 - IRI[ERRZL 1

In our supply chain management, the Group closely monitors risks that may involve — #ESHEIRF - REE T B A] 8805 R A1l &2
cost control and procurement schedules, and takes appropriate countermeasures. For — BREE#E [E &) R b2 - W BUHEE #) & L1 4E o 2201
example, as a result of the ongoing global shortage of semiconductor components & ' $&PAHE 2 HIFRHXBIE R 2 T SR A R
due to the tech war between the US and China, we have informed affected customers 52k * AEBBEAZ AR P & B AT HFE R 51 &
of the current supply constraints and the actual lead time required. At the same time, P BB BR AR o B L AR - AN 52 B B A E PR
we have maintained contact with vendors to obtain the latest information and work — FFH% - DUEEUS AR - KRFFRER

together to resolve difficulties.

Additionally, given the increasing global focus on sustainable development, the — IL5h R EFREAIFELRE BT - AEEER
Group recognises the importance of managing environmental and social risks in our ~ BIRHEEARE R SRR EEZE - XEEEH
supply chain. We have incorporated ESG factors, such as the implementation of ESG AR - g RERAEZR (WEEEREE g RESG
policy and ISO 14001 management system, into our annual top 15 product vendors B8 & ISO 14001 B E ) 2FE + A KE ML FE
evaluation to promote better ESG performance in our supply chain. Going forward, — EaEfh - IR HER 2 RE M REREN - &
the Group will continue to monitor our supply chain against environmental and social ~ R - ZRE&E B EIRIEIR T Rt IR AL E

standards and expand the scope of our ESG evaluation in due course.

o WERBEARER RN g RERTHE
o

Supply chain constraints are starting to improve by the fourth quarter of 2022 and ~ HEEARHIN S —FEZMFFIAKRE - WK
relieve material shortage slightly. We keep sourcing alternative brands with similar YRR RGN - MBEMTEETISSHABE
capability and quality in the market. It gives us opportunities to bring other alternatives BN MEENERMIE - BEAEEEKE A
for our customers. Vendors also help recommend new models after redesigning their — EV% P f R E (32 12 o RN B3 REHE @ AR
products to solve current backlog. Accurate sales forecast and lead time can make the ~ ERITEEMER - B2 ABMIHEBHELRER o £
project on time to decrease unforeseen factors. We are happy to be informed that #3588 T8RRI 32 1< 0 ] T LA(R I8 B 2R 58hK - BAUR A
our top 15 product vendors are committed to high standards of ESG performance ~ FEFEZRHIR - KR EEE - AEE+ A KEM
after includes in vendor evaluation exercise. It brings our awareness of ESG to our  fFERITEAN A S RE R ST (h R FE E B S IR MER IR IR
procurement team as well and understand direction of our Company for this action. MHEREREN  cthBERMORBERE 7THIR

Social Capital

B ueakEn YTHRAKERILZTR -

HEES

Against the background of global interconnectedness and integration brought about ~ RERRBRNEREMERE R — B2 BER7 T -
by the information age, the Group recognises that any individual or group in the ~ AEER AR _EEMEALEE - ERANIFH
world, no matter how large or small, has an impact on others. It is only through I AEAFE - EFBBEERE—FPHEER 7
solidarity and greater understanding that solutions to the multiple problems facing  B(ESHEFEEGEZ EME 2 FRFTE - Al - 8#37
society can be found. Therefore, building trust and fostering long-term relationships ~ EERIEERABEENAIFHELEZWEE -

are essential for sustainable development.
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Customer Engagement

The Group understands the importance of listening to our customers, and their
opinions can help us to continuously improve our services. We have launched a
policy with a set of procedures to handle customers’ feedbacks or complaints in a
professional manner.

Customers can file complaints in writing or verbally. Upon receipt of a complaint or
feedback, the acknowledgement of complaint case shall be given on receipt of the
complaint by a member of the Customer Care Unit and subsequently our Customer
Care Unit must arrange for it to be dealt with by a dedicated person and give the
customer a response in due course. If necessary, it will also escalate the feedback
or complaint to the appropriate level of management. During the Reporting Year,
there were no substantiated complaints received relating to the provision and use of
products and services.

Customer surveys in forms of paper or electronics are available for customers to
express opinions on regular basis. The Group treasures every survey and open to listen
customers’ voices. With data collection by relevant parties, the measurement result of
customer satisfaction will be reported to senior management.

Privacy Protection

The Group places importance on customer privacy and all data must be collected,
held, used and processed in a lawful and discreet manner. In accordance with the
IT Security Policy, our employees are required to observe and comply with the non-
disclosure agreement entered into with the Group and the agreements entered into
from time to time between the Group and our customers.

Besides, the Group may collect personal information of different parties through the
enquiry box on the Company’s website, and information of candidates or employees
through recruitment or employment. The Privacy Policy Statement and related Personal
Information Collection Statement are set out and uploaded to the Company’s website
so that interested parties are notified in a timely manner before providing their
personal information.

Community Investment

The Group takes its commitment to social responsibility and is concerned with helping
the disadvantaged in the communities in which it operates. Our core subsidiary,
ASLHK, has been awarded the Caring Company Award by the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service since 2010. During the Reporting Year, the Company has donated and
sponsored the personal protection equipment to Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare
Council Limited.

For more activities, please refer to “Customer Service Excellence with Sustainability”
on page 3 of the annual report.

Rk - HERERME
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Human Capital

ABER

A skilled and stable workforce is the engine of value creation for our stakeholders.  ##EBENE THh I AAEE 25 HEEEERE
The Group therefore makes significant efforts to attract and retain talent, including ~— EVH#EEIE 2 « Eit - ANEEB AW RIREAL - B
investment in capacity building, fair remuneration and management, and a safe and ~ EIREREENEY ~ R THMRERR - AREZ2EE

healthy working environment.

Development and Training

TR »

&R K1

The Group believes that the development of a corporate is inseparable from the AEERAE  GCEZBREBEHEB ZIFBEHEZTA
continuous development of its employees. With this in mind, the Group offers reqular % ° FEItt » A% E ARSI T EEI - HRTEIX
training, development programmes and training sponsorship to our employees. BEHIE) o

Orientation training
AWHTIE

Internal on-the-job training

A ERFE BRI

External training

ShERIES

Staff training for the entire Group amounted to 3,320 hours during the Reporting A%

Orientation is provided to new employees covering the corporate culture, corporate systems
and policies to give them a basic understanding of the different positions.
RETABESRERECE L - DEHIE RBEE RIS U HETRBGZABER
THR

Regular training programmes are designed for our employees to support current and future
business development needs.

TEHEIE B RAEE 2 BB R  ASH B AT ROR R TR K -

To raise the professionalism of IT staff, the Group promotes an e-learning platform where
they can learn hard and soft skills, and are required to take tests related to the learning
content. For the development of non-IT staff, we encourage department heads to maintain
close communication with them to assess their training needs in order to better assist their
professional development and competence.

RIBABMBREIMNFEREKT FEEHLEEHZTE  EARKEIARTA 28
IERAE - WHELMESBNTEBE AR - ERFEARREINERE - NEBSEEM
FEHESRFEIER  SHAHEIER - E— S RBRAEE 2 FEHRRET -

Additionally, workshops are offered to management and supervisory staff with the aim of
enhancing their management skills and career development.

o ARETREREREEABRMANE  EERSETERDMERRE -

The Group encourages employees to participate in training provided by external organizations
based on their needs. Sponsorship is available to employees who meet certain conditions set by
the Group.

REBEEEEERESZELMINBEBRENE - FEREERENETRGEZEERE
FER -

BEEE 2 8 THEFIE 3,320/ 6 ©

HEFEEAR -
Year. Going forward, the Group will establish a more systematic training management ~ E2AR®K @ K& H#E_LEM ZHEEREIERE R
7t

system, further standardise staff training programmes and formulate relevant  #t °

management policies.
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Employment System

As of 31st December 2022, the Group had 1,179 employees in the reporting scope. HEZT-—"F+-A=+—H  AEERBREHE
The following table sets out the number of our employees by employment category. WHEE1179EEE - TREIIAEE ZESEH

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRE

EFHE

B o

DZEEHE -

Number of empolyees

Employment category EEE5 EEHE
Senior Manager AR AR 3
Middle Manager KR 10
Manager e 208
Supervisor *E 92
IT professional BB EEAL 763
Others HAh 103
Total #Hat 1,179

The Group believes that we maintain good working relationships with our employees ~ ZA&EEIE{E - AEBEESEF RO TEREK - K
and we have not experienced any major labour disputes or difficulties in recruiting ~ SEIWELBREMNERLEUHINBEE T HEHE
staff. This is thanks to the Group’s employment system which respects and safequards @R o WHEEAR A EEEERREEEL THZ 2

the labour rights of our employees.

EEBHIE -

We have internal policies such as a series of Employment Policies that strives to ~ AEEIEHlE —RINMERBEEZ AR - BUE
improve the employment relationship and promotion mechanism, and protect the — {EEREE R EFA#E] - KIREE(E B BOEF Kz o A
rights and interests of our employees. The Group’s employment-related management  =EHREEEENEREFIFMAT

practices are detailed below.

Employment-related management practices

B{EEHENEEES
Recruitment

R

Remuneration

o

Promotion

B

Termination of employment

RIEEM

All acts of recruitment are subject to employment-related legislation. Contracts are signed to
protect the rights of both the employers and employees.

FIERBITRBZEREMENNR - BT RO ARERET RERET 2R -

Different remuneration policies formulated and reviewed by the Human Resources (“HR")
Department are adopted for different categories of employees. In general, employees’ salaries
include a percentage of performance incentives, the amount of which will be adjusted based
on the Group’s performance and the results of the employees’ appraisals.

TEERIESRBIRFMEE - HEBRAANER(TANER] BHIE RERH - —K
MmE - EEFHFHEIEE THANKRERE  Hef Mg A SBNRE M ESZRESETH

o

The Group follows the principles of consistency, objectivity, fairness and impartiality to conduct
regular performance appraisals for employees as a reference for their promotion. Employees will
be promoted based on merit, with due consideration given to their ability, past performance
and potential to take on new job roles. Department Manager shall submit detailed justifications
to support the employee’s promotion.

REEERE-3 FH ATRRAENRY  THHEEETREZZ FREANZE -
REMBRBESET  URDEEELN  BEXRAREEHILEACHEN - HPIEIRE
RRFAABIEAFHERNETT -

Generally, either the Company or employees should terminate the employment by giving the
other party a notice period according to the agreement set out in the employment contract and
completing the handover procedures by the last working day.

—RME - AARSEEERBIRERSHMEZHTE - BRiE TS HBAN  WR&RE—
ETIEHRTTERRETFE - URIEEBER -
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Working hours and rest period
TR KRB

Other benefits and welfare

HAb M gs K A8 F

Equal opportunity, diversity and anti-
discrimination

THERE  STCRRER

Child labour and forced labour
S

Communication

3

The Group is committed to managing employees'working hours, rest periods and leave in
accordance with our contracts and internal policies.

AEBEFNRREESORAMBKREILER 2 TERRE - KRERERERES -

Employees are entitled to paid time off such as annual leave, bereavement leave, marriage
leave, examination leave, jury service leave, maternity and paternity leave. Completion of the
leave approval process is necessary for the approval and payment of paid leave to employees.
BEZESHRR  WFER =R BHR - B3R BEER EBRLKRER - THARE
BUAR PP RHLE AN B THFHRBRZ B ERM -

The statutory benefits for employees, including the Mandatory Provident Fund, are paid in
accordance with local policy requirements and the Group’s relevant systems. We also offer job-
related allowances, insurance schemes and share option scheme as company benefits.
EBEZETEN(BIEatEAES) DIREA MBI T RAEE 2 EEHE T - A%EE
T TEMRE 200 - RIBATEI MR RER A RIEF) o

The Group recognises individual differences as a driver for sustainable development and
emphasises equal opportunities in recruitment or promotion, without discrimination against
individuals on the basis of age, gender, race, family status, sexual orientation, disability,
nationality or region.

AEEREREZRER/FHBEER 2EPRE - TRARBEXEARETSHS
B MR R REMR - R B - EAASRAE IR o

- RERF

The Group prohibits child labour and forced labour. During the recruitment process, each
candidate’s personal details are confirmed.

AEEZIBT RRESEE - RBIBIET  SRENEZBABRHIERER -

All employees who are required to work overtime or on holiday must be approved in advance
by their supervisors and compensated accordingly.

FrEREER TERNKROES - WRFEESIEIR - WESHEME -

There is an open dialogue maintained between the Group and our employees to promote
transparent two-way communication. If there are any comments or suggestions on
management and administration, employees can provide feedback to their supervisors or
relevant departments.
REEEES 2 FRFARYE - UEE
shiEsk - AImEE SRR RPN EE -

In future, the Group will improve its employment-related policies, including more
specific guidelines on equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination, to better
maintain a diverse and equal working environment.

Health and Safety

Work related injuries and occupational health issues are not significant risk factors
due to the nature of our business. Nevertheless, the Group places importance on
providing a safe, healthy and high-quality workplace and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

With the view to ensuring the safety of our employees, the Group has defined the
safety responsibilities of the Administration Department to identify dangerous risks
and factors in the workplace and to take effective preventive and control measures,
including occasional monitoring and review of safety and security management and
regular inspections of the entire office to ensure that furniture, fixtures and equipment
are well maintained and replaced when necessary to avoid unnecessary physical injury.
In addition, first aid kits are available at an easily-accessible location on every floor of
the entire office.

Annual Report 2022 4%
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On top of this, the Group wants to evolve from the traditional focus on the physical
safety risks towards a concept of a healthy and pleasant working environment in
our occupational health and safety programme. We prohibit smoking throughout
the office, including enclosed offices, meeting rooms and other open areas, while
maintaining proper lighting and ventilation to safeguard the health of our employees.
In addition, we promote health awareness and habits among our employees through
internal training and newsletters. The Group has also organised events to improve
work-life balance and strengthen employee relations.

Natural Capital

The community has called on business to engage in the implementation and
achievement of the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), specifically
Goal 13: Climate Change, to promote greater global ambition in mitigation and
adaptation actions. In the face of Hong Kong'’s 2050 carbon neutrality target, the
Group is also stepping up efforts to address the challenge of climate change, using
resources responsibly and wisely, and managing our impacts vigilantly, in the hope to
run our business sustainably.

Management of Emissions and Use of Resources

The Group is committed to complying with all applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Waste Disposal Ordinance, the Air Pollution Control Ordinance and the
Water Pollution Control Ordinance, and to going beyond minimum requirements to
manage and reduce environmental impacts of our day-to-day operations, fostering an
environmental responsible operating culture at each of our sites. To this end, we have
established specific management guidelines and measures based on our Environmental
Policy.

Rk - HERERME
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Emissions of Greenhouse Gases and Air Pollutants

We generate greenhouse gas emissions mainly from purchased electricity and fuel
consumed by company vehicles. During the Reporting Year, we engaged a consultant
to assess the Group's greenhouse gas emissions, including carbon dioxide, methane
and nitrous oxide.

BEREBRZRITRMIFR

AEEZRERBHFREIZRNRBEE NN QR ER
EFEMEL - RIREFENR - NEBZRBEREARE

ErREREENE (BE Ak FREERAE
&) -
Emissions

(Tonnes of CO? Equivalent)
e (M_StnEE)

Scope

wE

Scope 1 Direct Emission HE 1 BN
Scope 2 Indirect Emission #5[E 2 B HERR
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions RERBELENE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity BEREHEREE

(W—atiREE /ER)

(tonnes of CO? equivalent/employee)

1.60
985.30
986.90

1.5183

Since vehicle use also generates air pollutants, the Group has also quantified the
relevant emissions to monitor our impact on the environment.

HREREANSELEZRSARY  AEEFEEL
RSN ENEEAEERHRECHE -

Type Emissions (Kilograms)
B HHE (D)
Nitrogen Oxides RED 0.81
Sulphur Oxides R 0.01
Respiratory Suspended Particles N IR SRR F 0.06
As the Pandemic continues in 2022, the Group has further adopted a work- from- ~ BEZZIER 2022 F134E - AEEE—FPHALERT
home approach and video conferencing system to replace its previous physical {ERIFRRBEEERS - UERBENEEEH
meetings. In addition, half of the company vehicles are electric. These measures have L5 + KRR —F M EEAEE)E o I SHEHEHE—
further reduced our emissions. WO REB 2 HERE -
Waste BEEY)
For the disposal of hazardous waste generated in Hong Kong, the Company has BREEREBSELENBEEEEYME - AAFER
registered as a Chemical Waste Producer under the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) — E(EVIRE ((LE2EY) (—R) HHDELAL2EY

(General) Regulation and sends the waste to specialists for recycling. In addition,
under the principle of waste reduction at source, the Group has promoted various
waste management measures and ensures that relevant employees are aware of the
disposal requirements for hazardous and non-hazardous waste. During the Reporting
Year, we have taken the following measures to minimise the waste generated from
office operations.

e Applied the “3R" principle of “reduce”, “reuse” and “recycle” to manage

wastes;

e  Redeployed usable and suitable office furniture within the Group to reduce the
amount of material going to landfill;

e Sent used batteries to specialists for recycling; and

e Reused or recycled computer parts through the selection of a team of engineers,
and sent parts and materials that the Group cannot reuse to specialist for further
recycling.
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The Group analyses the use of resources and the generation of waste on a regular
annual basis. During the Reporting Year, the Group’s office operations generated 1.47
tonnes of hazardous waste, consisting mainly of used batteries and fluorescent light
bulbs, which were collected and disposed of by qualified contractors. As for non-
hazardous waste, it mainly consisted of paper and used computer parts, with a total
weight of 56.72 tonnes, lower than in the previous year.

Energy and Water

A range of internal control policies and procedures have been adopted to improve the
efficiency of our resource consumption, including energy. For example, we promote
green office practices such as using high-performance and high-quality all-in-one
“multifunction printers” that combine the functions of printer, scanner and copier
in one device to minimise the power consumption of a large number of devices; and
using energy-efficient lights in all office areas. Environmental Policy is available on the
Company’s intranet which is accessible to all employees.

During the Reporting Year, total electricity consumption of our offices in Hong Kong
was approximately 2,441 MWh. Compared to last year, total energy consumption
increased due to increase in manpower and electrical appliances. In terms of water
consumption, the Hong Kong office operations consumed a total of approximately
212 m? of water, which represents a 61.2 % decrease compared to 2021.

Moving forward, we will further strengthen education on resource conservation and
emissions reduction and will continue to monitor resource consumption and make
improvements to the policy, such as conserving water management, based on the
principle of “materiality”. At the same time, we will use the data from the Reporting
Year as a basis for setting improvement measures and energy conservation and
emission reduction targets.

Management of Environmental Risks

The Earth’s climate is changing. Average temperatures rise, climate science finds that
acute hazards such as heat waves and floods grow in frequency and severity and
chronic hazards, such as drought and rising sea levels, intensify. To address the climate
change, we identified that environmental conservation is the most important part to
our society. An Environmental Policy has been established and the Group is committed
to take all possible actions to reduce the impact, such as conserving resources,
reducing carbon footprint, minimising waste. The Environment Policy will be reviewed
once annually so that the Group may assess any updated environmental risk of our
business and, where necessary, take preventive measures to mitigate them and ensure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
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Rk - g RERERE

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Environmental

Key environmental performance indicators

REBE

BiR

BRRBERER
Unit 2022 2021
By —E-CF —E-—F
Air Pollutant emissions?
ERSRYBERE?
Nitrogen oxides kg 0.81 1.12
E=tl 4] Ny
Sulphur oxides kg 0.01 0.01
ie=Rla7)] NI
Respiratory suspended particles kg 0.06 0.08
P ORBRFRLF NI
GHG Emissions?
AERBHERE?
Scope 1 Direct emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 1.60 2.46
E EEYEN ME—SbIREE
Scope 2 Energy indirect emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 985.30 921.84
#[% 2 g RN M ffbirEE
Total GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 986.90 924.30
BERBEEENE WE—StiREE
GHG intensity (by area) tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/sgm 0.1234 0.1156
REREEE (RHEE) WU ARE R, TR
GHG intensity (by employee) tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/ 1.5183 1.4220
RERETE(REE) employee
WA tiEE R
Hazardous waste
BEEEY
Total hazardous waste tonnes 1.47 1.67
BEEREDES 145
Hazardous waste intensity (by area) tonnes/sgm 0.00018 0.00021
BEEEZEDEE (REE) g, K
Hazardous waste intensity (by employee) tonnes/employee 0.00226 0.00257
BEEBERNEE (REES) mEE
Non-hazardous waste
EmEBRREY
Total non-hazardous waste tonnes 56.72 67.43
BEBERYEE 4E
Non-hazardous waste intensity (by area) tonnes/sgm 0.00709 0.00843
BEEZDEE (RAE) a7
Non-hazardous waste intensity (by employee) tonnes/employee 0.08726 0.10374
BEREEDEE (KRES) g, 128
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Key environmental performance indicators

BRREENIER
Unit 2022 2021
By —EICHF —EZ—fF

Energy Consumption

HETRHAE

Petrol MWh 6 9
b JKELEF

Electricity MWh 2,441 2,310
ES IR

Total energy consumption MWh 2,447 2,319
BEIREFEEE JKFLBF

Energy intensity (by area) MWh/sgm 0.3060 0.2900
BERHERERE (RETE) JERIE, 7K

Energy intensity (by employee) MWh/employee 3.7649 3.5677
BEREREEE (RES) JEK,(BE

Water Consumption

FEK

Total water consumption m3 212 546
BFEKE SR

Water intensity (by area) m3/sgm 0.0265 0.0683
FREE (JRHE) SRR

Water intensity (by employee) m?/employee 0.3262 0.8397
FREE (REE) SR EE
Notes: Ffi5E

2. Emission factor is referenced to HKEx “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: 2. HFBEATSEWRPT [ MAGBERS - 1 & REAHRE
- i8R 2 - BRBRERIRIZERIES! ] -

Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”.

3. Scope 1 includes emissions from the consumption of fossil fuels by vehicles; Scope 2 includes 3. #[E 1 BREEFBEFCAMBELOTHNRE © E2E

emissions from the consumption of purchased electricity in offices. Emission factor is BRAEERBESHEENHENRZ - A T2ES
BRGF IMARERE - B RERRE - Mk2 - R
BRASHEBUBIRIERIES| | R P B 2022 Al FHE R RS -

referenced to HKEx “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” and CLP 2022 Sustainability Report.
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Social He

Key social performance indicators

BRELSEMRIEE
Total employees*
EEHAAE
Male 879
By gender St
=R Female 300
egis
Below 35 502
35AT
By age group 35-45 350
RERRAER 35 E 4558
Above 45 327
4555 BA £
Full-time 1,146
By employment type £
RIEIRIRE Part-time 33
B
Total 1,179
st
Total other workers®
HibE8 T A8
Male 121
By gender S
=R Female 27
=gl
Below 35 83
355A T
By age group 35-45 33
REIRAER 3558 E 45B%
Above 45 32
455%A &
Full-time 136
By employment type g7
ZIEEEA Part-time 12
e
Total 148
#aEt
Notes: Bi3E
4. All employees were in Hong Kong. 4. FIBEEHLNESE -
5. All other workers, i.e. secondment staff, worked in Hong Kong. 5. FEHMET (AERRATEI) AONEBIE-
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BELEERIER
Turnover Rate
K=
Male 38%
By gender S
bicq izl Female 43%
7t
Below 35 53%
355A T
By age group 35-45 31%
RERAR 355 E 4558
Above 45 28%
4555 bA
Total 40%
Bt
Health and safety®
REEEZ 26
Work-related injuries (employees) 2
ITEEz(EE)
Lost days due to work-related injuries (employees) 68
HITBMEE(EE)ELATIEAH
Percentage of employees trained
ZIHEEEDL
Male 77%
By gender B
bicq izl Female 23%
7t
Senior Manager 0%
mARAER
Middle Manager 4.5%
g
Manager 25%
By employee category e
ZEBER Supervisor 5%
B
IT professional 61%
AR EEAL
Others 4%
Hit
Total 19%
5t
Notes: Ffd5E
6.  There were no work-related fatalities in the past three years (including the Reporting Year). 6. MBE=F(REREFE)N  TERTEREERD

SLT{EZ -
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Key social performance indicators
BRLSENER

Average training hours

5932 5 B B

By gender
Ecq il

Male
B

3.02

Female

pogid

2.23

By employee category

ZEB

Senior Manager
= ARAEIE

0.00

Middle Manager
gL

4.70

Manager
FESE

17.55

Supervisor
B

IT professional

AP EEAL

Others
HAh

Total
st

Total suppliers

fHFE RS A B

By region
biogei] i)

Australia

BN

Belgium
il

Canada

JIIEVN

Mainland China
R A b

Denmark
G

Germany
2E

Hong Kong
B8

India

ENE

Ireland
B

Macau

P

Philippines
FERE
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Rk - HEREREHE

Total suppliers

IR AR

By region
i E

Romania
wEREE

Singapore

g

16

Taiwan

AN ]
=/=

Thailand
ZE

United Kingdom
2=

USA
£

Finland
oy

Cambodia

TR

Maylaysia
SR PEE

Netherlands
Gl

Russia

By type
HgR

Service

i

423

Hardware

R

274

Total
st

697
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX Hﬁﬁ?cﬁﬁ(igiﬁ HERERRE
BalYRBRZES|

Aspects Description
Em i pus
A1 Emissions
A1 B
General Disclosure | Information on: 61-63
— R E ERERIORERBEHEN - MK REHHEDS BEREEEEDH
EESH
(@) the policies; and
B R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BIHBETAGERYENEMEELRPINEHR -
A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 62, 64
PRI RRAR S AR BB R
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas 62, 64
emissions and intensity.
B (HBE) RapREE (BE2) AZREHNERTE
A13 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. 62-64
MELEEREENRENEE -
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. 62-64
FELEZEEYHEENEE -
A15 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 62-63
R PTET SZEVHEE B IR M i E S B A B IRPTEREREY P58
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 62-63
and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

R ERIE A E R EEEENNITE - R FAETSIERE B R R &
250 B ARPTERENAO P8R -

A2 Use of Resources

A2 BiRfEA

General Disclosure | Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and 63

—MRFEE other raw materials.
BikiERER (BIEER « K REMFEME) BECR -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. 63, 65
REBRE SO ERE R KEEEREEERTE

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 63, 65
BREKEREE -

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to 61-63
achieve them.
R PTRT SV AR IRME Ak ES B 1R M AR E R G B B ARPAEREREY 2258, -

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for | There were no issues in
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. | sourcing water fit for
e sREUE KR ERTE EAIRE - SRR AR =B IR A purpose.
ERBEERMETRIA TR o EEEGERKRA E

I AEFIRE -
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RIE - HERERRE
Aspects Description Remark Page
EmE i pu o BR
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and per unit| The use of packaging
produced. materials is irrelevant to
BNRFTABEMBNEERGEESBL(LE - the Group’s operating
businesses.
BB E AR
REENEER
MR o
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 BIRERRAREIR
General Disclosure | Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment 61
—ARIEEE and natural resources.
BIEEETT ABIRIBE R RN E REK EATEER -
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment 61-63
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
B EBEDEHIRRERARE RN EAZERDRNERE AT EN
178 -
A4 Climate Change
A4 BIREL
General Disclosure | Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related 63
—MRHFEE issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
BRI REHE AR g HETAELEYENERRREFEFENR
5 o
A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 63
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.
HMBERAIEEHBETAEEZENERRGHEBER - RIELHT
& o
B1 Employment
B1 {Ef%
General Disclosure | Information on: 51-52, 58-61
—RIEE ARG LR BEREF  TERE  RE - TERE - 27
b~ RIEAR A R EoA 15738 B A A EY
(@) the policies; and
B K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
BTHETAREAZENHBEEIRDINER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 59, 66
geographical region.
IR~ EBIFEE - FERAR Rt R B DM ES MBS -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 67
RIER - FRARIREE D MEBMALE
Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z 5B ER A A
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Aspects Description
=] i pu
B2 Health and Safety
B2 @RHEZE
General Disclosure | Information on: 51, 60-61
— R E BERRHZETHEREMRERSBRRENEEN
(a) the policies; and
126 N3
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
BIHBETAGERYENEREELRPINEH -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past| There were no work-
three years including the reporting year. related fatalities
BEZF (BEERFE) BFRT TR ABRLLE - in the past three
years (including the
Reporting Year).
RBE=F (BRE®RE
FE)RN - WEETIE
B FRERESE T AR -
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 67
EIGELIIERS -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and 60
how they are implemented and monitored.
R P ER B BB S R B e 24 B - DA NI T R B T o
B3 Development and Training
B3 & RiEF
General Disclosure | Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging 58
—ARIEE duties at work. Description of training activities.
BRARTHE BB 1T TIER R A0 M B R A B » RTINS S -
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee 67
category.
IR R EEFRIBONZIEET S
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 68
employee category.
ZIERI R EERRRIE D - FEEBTHZ I TR -
B4 Labour Standards
B4 5 T %4
General Disclosure | Information on: 51-52, 60
— R E BREAYIEE TRk T
(@) the policies; and
B R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
BTHETAGEAZENEBEENRDINER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child 60
and forced labour.
e T RIS B DIl B0 R b AR S 2 T 58 mI45 T -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. The Group did not
FEETE RIS N HR A ISR TR A S8 - encounter such
practices during the
Reporting Period.
REEPN RSN
WA IR L FEEMR o
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Description
i pu

B5 Supply Chain Management

B5 LIRS EE

RiR -8R

Remark

B

BEREE

I=py=

Page
BR

General Disclosure

—RIEE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.

BIRHERARE M ERBRIBER -

55-56

B5.1

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

iR E DR ERRIE -

68-69

B5.2

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R AEARERNEN  mERTEREMNNHREREE - UKk
HERITRERITEA -

56

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
G SR EE S RN RE M G RREIED] - ARAERIH
TRERAE -

55-56

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

A BRE BB S (8 2 AIRRE m RRSVER - LARBBEHT
REERFE o

56

B6 Product Respons
B6 EMEE

ibility

General Disclosure

—RFEE

Information on:

BRFMRMERFMRBHERERZ S -

R AR

(a) the policies; and
B K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

WTH BT ABERZENEMERRRIINEH -

EE - REEALEEEARHE

51-55, 57

B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety

and health reasons.
BENDEXEMBET AL EERERMALKNE DL

The issue is irrelevant
to the Group's
operating businesses.
b R R A £R [ Y
EIE TSR -

B6.2

Number of products and service related complaints received and how

they are dealt with.
BERENE m M RISHIFE B AN EE T

57

B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
Tt BA 4 R R ARBE AR E A EAIE R -

55

B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
RS BT AR REMDKIERF o

The Group was not
involved in any recall
procedures.

RS BN S [ A (A
EmEYAERF ©

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z 5B ER A A

73



74

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

Aspects Description Remark Page
EmE i pu i E BR
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how 54,57
they are implemented and monitored.
RHE B ERMRIERALBEER - WERBEBRITRERE
B7 Anti-corruption
B7 RET
General Disclosure | Information on: 51-52
—RRIREE BRABIEHERR - 91R - BRFRAREN
(@) the policies; and
B K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.
BTHETAREAZENEBEEIRDINER -
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought 52
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERAALE T AR EEREIEFENESHFARMTNVEE &
AFAAESR o
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, 52
and how they are implemented and monitored.
e A R WIRT - AR T RER X
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 52
it REE R B TRENREFEI -
B8 Community Investment
B8 i ERE
General Disclosure | Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 49, 57
—RFEE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.
B E2ERTREEMEHERTENBRRELEFESHGE BT
(& MR B
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 57
I EEEE -
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 57

EEIHBAPAER -
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate management
services. The principal activities of its major subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 46 and 22, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 95 and 96 of this annual report respectively.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) recommended the payment of
a final dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share held by the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members on Wednesday, 7th June 2023 for
the year ended 31st December 2022 (2021: 3.0 HK cents per).

2023 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on Wednesday,
24th May 2023. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 19th May 2023 to Wednesday, 24th May 2023, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the branch share registrar and transfer office of the
Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
18th May 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year, a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2022 and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business as required under Schedule 5 to
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Chief Executive Officer's Statement”
on pages 8 to 11 and 12 to 21 of this annual report respectively. For the financial key
performance indicators for an understanding of the development, performance or
position of the Group’s business, it can also be found under the same sections and the
“Financial Summary” on page 7 of this annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 47 to 74.
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EEEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group. During the year, there was no materials breach
of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

To achieve the Company’s vision of becoming the most competitive entity in
Asia information technology (“IT") sector, strengthening business practices in
environmental protection and corporate social responsibilities are always an integral
part of the Group’s corporate business strategy.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year ended
31st December 2022 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
on pages 99 to 100 of this annual report.

As at 31st December 2022, the Group’s special reserve and retained earnings totalled
approximately HK$1,310,147,000 (2021: HK$1,233,393,000).

The Company’s reserves are available for distribution to the shareholders as at 31st
December 2022 included special reserve and retained earnings totaling approximately
HK$99,099,000 (2021: HK$96,806,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31st December 2022, addition to (also included the amount of
reassessment of lease term, if applicable) property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately HK$59,460,000 (2021: HK$21,488,000).

Details of these and other movements during the year ended 31st December 2022 in
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of the Group’s purchases and sales attributable to major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 32.4% and 17% of the
Group's revenue from continuing operations respectively. The five largest suppliers and
single largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 40.2% and 13.6%
of the Group’s purchases from continuing operations respectively.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2022 did a Director, an associate of
a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share movements during the year ended 31st December 2022 in
share capital of the Company are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors
Wang Weihang
Wang Yueou

Non-Executive Director
Cui Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pan Xinrong

Deng Jianxin

Or Siu Ching, Rerina

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company, Mr. Wang Yueou, Mr. Pan Xinrong
and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, be eligible, offer themselves for election.

As at the date of this report, each of the Directors has entered into a service contract
or a letter of appointment with the Company. All Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors are independent. Please also see page 39 of the “Corporate Governance
Report” for the assessment by the Nomination Committee in this regard.
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of

Directors of the Company are set out below:

Details of changes

1.

Mr. Wang Weihang, the Chairman of the Board, has entered into a service
agreement which entitled to an annual basic salary and allowances of
HK$2,000,000 and performance-related incentive payment based on measurable
performance contribution of the Group and other benefits in kind with effect
from 1st June 2022.

Mr. Deng Jianxin, an Independent Non-executive Director, was a non-executive
director of Jiangxi Bank Co., Ltd., a company listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1916) from November 2016 to June 2022. With effect
from 22nd December 2022 and 9th August 2022, Shanghai 4Smart Technology
Co., Ltd.* (H/EREES sERHE AR A F]) and Hangzhou Zhuoyuan Ledao Holding
Co., Ltd.* (MM ECLEBITR AR A F]) of which Mr. Deng serves as chairman
were deregistered respectively.

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina, an Independent Non-executive Director, retired as a
senior vice-president of Schneider Electric SE, a company listed on the Euronext
Paris Stock Exchange (Stock Code: SU) with effect from February 2022. Also, Ms.
Or completed her term of office as a member of Energy Advisory Committee of
The Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region with effect from
July 2022.

For identification purpose only

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected and Related Party Transactions”

below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the

Company, or any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was

a party and in which a Director of the Company or his/her connected entity had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended

31st December 2022 or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31st December
2022, the following Directors were considered to have interests in the businesses
which competed or be likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, particulars of which are set out below:

Name of Director

BEEng

Name of the entities which were
considered to compete or likely
to compete with the businesses
of the Group
BRRESEEEBERD
THERRE 2 EREH
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Description of businesses of the
entities which were considered to
compete or likely to compete with
the businesses of the Group
YRS IS S e
BRREBR XML

Nature of Director’s
interest in the entities

ESRRSER EENE

Wang Weihang

T#M

Wang Yueou

B

Cui Yong

Pan Xinrong
B

Deng Jianxin

falted]

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid companies,
and as none of the above Directors controls the Board, the Group is capable of
carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
the aforesaid companies.

Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd.
("Teamsun")

EREBRRHERNERAT
(MR )

Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited
("Hong Kong Teamsun")

EBRRNER(BA)BRAT]
(IBBEBRA))

Certain subsidiaries of Teamsun

EBREZETHBRF

Teamsun

N

Teamsun

N

Shanghai Boke Information
Technology Co., LTD
DERRERRNERAT

Shanghai 4Smart Technology Co., Ltd.
HERERREREARAF

IT product service, application
software development, value-added
distribution and system integration
BAMBERRE  ERREASRMRE
BENHERZGES

Window company of Teamsun in
Hong Kong and mainly provides
administrative support to the clients of
Teamsun in the PRC and Hong Kong
EBTAEEEREARA TEMEBRK
ZEPRHEREBRBIIE

IT related
BBERBE

IT product service, application
software development, value-added
distribution and system integration
BHAMBERRS  EREARHRE
BESHRESES

IT product service, application
software development, value-added
distribution and system integration
BHAMBERRS  EREARMRE
BESHRESES

Software engineering automation research

management and new generation of IT service

ERGHTREDCHR RN —RESKNRS

Cloud computation and cloud services
EHERERS

Chairman, director and
substantial shareholder

BER EERIERR

Sole director

E—-E%
Director
EZ

Director

BE

General manager of key client accounts
business (division 1)

REFPEHB—Hh@ER

Independent Director
BUEE

Chairman

BER

HREZEBEUN LUARZEEGNIA LEFHE
EHEEE  AEEAEYRN LU AR 2 EBIARF
BEREARRELE -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z 5B ER A A

79



Directors’ Report

EFEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2022, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

EERBETRASZRHREH
IR0 2 R

R-ZE-—F+-A=+—8 EERAAAEST
BABRARR REMMIEEEE(ExRLES &K

BB (BERERIE ST 2) ([ EHRAEED D EXV
#R) 2 Bty - BB K EEE TR AR () RIEEF R
HY RIS XV ERE 7 J2 8 D AR /B AN AR A T B3 P
2 R R 75(@THE%mﬁ&/ﬁﬁéﬂﬂﬁlJZ%Z%ﬂ%Y
§$&$ ?TE&)\E?&‘%E?%&“‘*VH%EZTE%
KRR $ETJ‘5 85 NS (R PI5E 352 1R AL

//ﬁﬁﬁZiquﬂﬁﬁfruEﬁZ%ﬁn& KR 3 $ETFJ:

the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which the Directors and chief executives of the Company were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were

required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed =~ M#/T ABBHEITHEH X HIIZAEST A ([ZX4ESFE]])
Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange  BHIEA QG REZroigmsiis [EER&EE1T
("Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as  EA B Z & RAERAR (D 2w ) K -
follows:
(a) Shares (R) K#H
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
NRER Bz fHAER By AR Hih @zt RESQEIL
Teamsun, the ultimate holding Wang Weihang 58,221,939 - - - 58,221,939 530%
company of the Company T
ERRK - ARAZ
S YN
Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. Wang Weihang 25,395 - - - 25,395 0.03%
("GDH") T -
Wang Yueou 25,395 - - - 25,395 0.03%
Tog
(b) Underlying shares (Z) +tERERR
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
NEER £ fHAER Rk NERR Hih @t RESQEAL
The Company Wang Yueou 4,620,000 - - - 4,620,000 0.55%
YN TERE
Cui Yong 1,320,000? - - - 1,320,000 0.16%
EB
GDH Wang Yueou 42,397 - - - 42,397 0.06%
TER

80 Annual Report 2022 4%




DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:
1. Common stock of GDH granted under the restricted stock units of GDH.

2. Share options to acquire ordinary shares of the Company under a share option scheme
adopted on 13th March 2017, further details of which are set out in section headed “Share
Option Schemes” below.

3. Share options to subscribe for shares of common stock of GDH under the equity incentive
plan of GDH effective on 4th March 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2022, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company had any Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
A. 2002 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”) on 8th August 2002. The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on
7th August 2012. As a result, the Company can no longer grant any further
share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. However, all share options
granted prior to 7th August 2012 will remain in full force and effect. A summary
of the 2002 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

The purpose of 2002 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and rewards
to any employee and/or Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the Directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
A. 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
2002 Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general requirement
that an option must be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised
but the directors of the Company are empowered to impose at its discretion any
such minimum period at the time of grant of any particular option. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the directors of
the Company at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board and shall not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share of
the Company. Details of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 38(i)
to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year:

BRERTE @)

A.

—EE_FHERETEE)

BIE =TT — FR AR 8 L B AR R AR 1D
B EANRETSBRANRREBITRGH
10% ° TR —F A + o] E AR L8R RES
BAD4AEK - TR ETEBIBARD R C TR
BHI1% °

ERBBRESAREE B R =+ KA
W ENEERERAIMNIVETERRE - —
AR AR E ME B AR N M AT AT RIS B 2 Ry
fl - AR R ERARIBEN R EAERIE R
BB T TA&E 2 HEHR - BERERTEZ
HRBEARNFNESHIEET - EHERBERERY
AR FRITEE

TRERITHERSET  EETEIRUT=
ERZREE (@) AR RGO D B EIERR
g RRERMINZEHE (D) ARBRNDNE
EBARER H B AT DA S X R P AR
BRHY|ZFHRTHE R —BRAARRRDE
H{E - —TT_FBERREA B ZFHERTHRAM
TS 3RAR M 38() ©

ARA =TT B BIE T 2 AR
N2 BT

Number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

RTEBRERABTZRE

Adjusted At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Adjusted At 31st

Date of Exercise January during during during during during December

grant Exercise Price 2022 the year the year the year the year the year 2022

Participants R Period RE W-B-=F REE REE REE REE REE W-B-=F

28 RERH e e -A-H Wi Wi R&M Wit wEE  +ZA=t-H
HKS
BT

Other Employees  19.3.2012 1932013t0 0.704 185,700 - - (185,700) - - -

AfblER 183.2022
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
A. 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

1. All of the above share options were vested equally on each of the first, second and
third anniversaries of the date of grant.

2. No Director held any share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the
year ended 31st December 2022.

3. The weighted average closing price of the share of the Company immediately before
the dates on which the share options were exercised was not applicable.

2017 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2017 Share Option
Scheme”) on 13th March 2017. The 2017 Share Option Scheme will expire on
12th March 2027. A summary of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

The purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Company and/or the subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary shares of
par value HK$0.10 each of the Company. The eligible participants include any
employee, executive or officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors of each of the
abovementioned companies).

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (if any) shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 13th March 2017,
the date of approval of the adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme. The
maximum number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2017 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares of the Company available for issue under the
2017 Share Option Scheme is 52,618,335, representing 10% and 6.31% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme and as at the date of this annual
report, respectively. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares of the Company may be issued upon exercise of options which available
to be granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme is 22,854,250, representing
2.74% of total number of issued shares of the Company as at that date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

B.

2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The Board may at its absolute
discretion impose any minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which must be achieved by
the eligible participant before the option can be exercised. The period during
which an option may be exercised will be determined by the Directors at its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years
after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and shall be at least the higher of
(a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date an offer is made; (b) the average of the closing
prices of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date an offer is made; and (c) the nominal value
of a share of the Company. Details of the 2017 Share Option Scheme are set out
in Note 38(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options under
the 2017 Share Option Scheme during the year:

BRERTE @)

—E-tFBRETE )
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il AR T {68 O B P ) JE T8 1T 3897 St T 37T R0
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1% °
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BA TR AER2EERER I EFRRAR
1B o AIATRERE IR H A AR EE2ER
BEEE - AR — 2 T ERE N BT
THEIBERITE

TEENHREFEET TS LRUT=E
FrREE @ARARNRIZEZLNZ AHE
B3P ARERATS 2 WTHTE © (o) AARRRGD
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Number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

WMIEBRERARTZIRE
Vesting Period At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled At 31st
Date of and Exercise January during during during during December
grant Period Exercise 2022 the year the year the year the year 2022
Participants Rt HEA Price RIBZZF REE REE REE REE RIBZZF
5% KERS RAT6EH T -A-H W w17 AER Wit TZA=t-B
HKS
AT
Directors
Bz
Wang Yueou 31.3.2017 (Note 1) 0.970 4,620,000 - - - - 4,620,000
Tag (Mt
Cui Yong 31.3.2017 (Note 1) 0.970 1,320,000 - - - - 1,320,000
EB (Mt
Other Employees  31.3.2017 (Note 1) 0.970 10,742,300 - (33,800) (377,575) - 10,330,925
AfblER (k)
28.4.2017 (Note 1) 0.909 7,260,000 - - - - 7,260,000
(k1)
13.12.2017 (Note 1) 0.867 785,550 - (78,500) (203,650) - 503,400
(Mt
Total 24,727,850 - (112,300) (581,225) - 24,034,325
A

=]
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
B. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

1.

On 31st March 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of
19,140,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.28. The share options
are divided into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share
options and is associated with performance targets within a specific financial period,
the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 31st March
2017.

On 28th April 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible participants
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of 6,500,000 shares of
the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.20. The share options are divided into four
tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share options and is associated
with performance targets within a specific financial period, the details of which are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28th April 2017.

On 13th December 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of 1,388,000
shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.04. The share options are divided
into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share options and is
associated with performance targets within a specific financial period, the details of
which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 13th December 2017.

The vesting period and exercise period of each tranche of the share options granted
on 31st March 2017, 28th April 2017 and 13th December 2017, respectively, are as
follows:
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Z+NBZRER -

RZZE—+F+=ZA+=H ' ARFARE=F
—tFEREFERNETEERS2EERHER
- LARREE A ££ 1,388,000 R AN A RIS + 1T{E(E
£1.047%8 7T - WML ZBRES (ETHL - SHEE
My — 2 BEARE RS TSR RA B R
£ #EEERARARIBHA-Z—tF+=
A+=B22%R -

DRR—E—+F=ZA=+—H  ZZ—+FN
AZ+N\BERZZ—tF+-A+=AREZE
AR 2 BB LA TR ERN T ¢

Percentage of options
of each tranche shall
be exercisable

Date of grant  Tranches Vesting Period Exercise Periods BRI E
R A HER BEH TEH AFTEZEDL
31.3.2017 First tranche 31.3.2017 to & 1.4.2019 31.3.2017 to = 30.3.2027 50%
E—Ht 1.4.2018 to & 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2019 to & 30.3.2027 25%

Second tranche 28.3.2018 to & 1.4.2020 28.3.2018 to & 30.3.2027 50%

Fit 1.4.2019 to = 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2020 to & 30.3.2027 25%

Third tranche 20.3.2019to & 1.4.2021 20.3.2019 to = 30.3.2027 50%

F=4 1.4.2020 to & 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2021 to & 30.3.2027 25%

Fourth tranche 25.3.2020 to & 1.4.2022 25.3.2020 to & 30.3.2027 50%

Erit 1.4.2021 to = 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2022 to & 30.3.2027 25%
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EFEHRE

e
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) BREE
B. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) B. —E—tFBREE®)

Notes: (Continued) Mzt : (88)

1. (Continued) 1. (&

Percentage of options

of each tranche shall

be exercisable

Date of grant  Tranches Vesting Period Exercise Periods ERERE
R AH #R BEH 1T6EH AFIEZEDL
28.4.2017 First tranche 1.6.2018 to & 1.6.2020 1.6.2018 to & 27.4.2027 50%
st 1.6.2019 to = 27.4.2027 25%

1.6.2020 to % 27.4.2027 25%

Second tranche 1.6.2019 to & 1.6.2021 1.6.2019 to & 27.4.2027 50%

Fit 1.6.2020 to & 27.4.2027 25%

1.6.2021 to = 27.4.2027 25%

Third tranche 1.6.2020 to & 1.6.2022 1.6.2020 to = 27.4.2027 50%

E=Ht 1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027 25%

1.6.2022 to & 27.4.2027 25%

Fourth tranche 1.6.2021 to &£ 1.6.2023 1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027 50%

Uik 1.6.2022 to & 27.4.2027 25%

1.6.2023 to = 27.4.2027 25%

13.12.2017 First tranche 1.4.2019 to £ 1.4.2021 1.4.2019 to & 12.12.2027 50%
E—4t 1.4.2020 to & 12.12.2027 25%

1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027 25%

Second tranche 1.4.2020 to & 1.4.2022 1.4.2020 to & 12.12.2027 50%

Fit 1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027 25%

1.4.2022 to 2 12.12.2027 25%

Third tranche 1.4.2021 to £ 1.4.2023 1.4.2021 to 2 12.12.2027 50%

E=4t 1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027 25%

1.4.2023 to & 12.12.2027 25%

Fourth tranche 1.4.2022 to & 1.4.2024 1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027 50%

Eukiig 1.4.2023 to & 12.12.2027 25%

1.4.2024 to 2 12.12.2027 25%

2. The offer for a total number of 6,500,000 options was made to eligible participants, 2. HMAEERSEZERLEE6,500,000 RERERN
in which an offer of 1,000,000 options was not accepted by an eligible participant, Z49 - H1,000,000 [EERENZL R —BE
pursuant to the 2017 Share Option Scheme, the offer of these options was BRSGEEEN BE_S—+-FHERETE
automatically lapsed and became null and void. ZEREZOG AR - WIEEREY -

3. The closing prices of the shares of the Company immediately before 31st March 2017, 3. REBE-Z—tF=-A=+—H ZZT—+LFNQN
28th April 2017 and 13th December 2017 on which the share options were granted A=+ NBR-_ZE—+F+-_A+=A8RE_-F
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme were HK$1.25, HK$1.08 and HK$0.90 per share — L FERERT B LB ARERT - AR EIRRG IR
of the Company, respectively. TEDRASR.2547T « 1.08%7TK%0.90/4 T ©

4. The weighted average closing price of the share of the Company immediately before 4. ARARBEITEERER ARG & INE T
the dates on which the share options were exercised was HK$1.18. MEA1.18ETT ©

5. There was no grant of any share option under the 2017 Share Option Scheme during 5. FRWEERE-T—LFERETIREEMA
the year. HEARHE -
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Schemes” above, at
no time during the year ended 31st December 2022 was the Company, or any of its
holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or their connected entities to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st December 2022, none of the related party transactions
entered into by the Group set out in the section headed “Related Party Transactions”
in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements constitutes connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2022, so far as the Directors and chief executives of the
Company are aware, the following persons (other than the interests of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:
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ESRERDEER 2ER

BEX TEERESTRAE Z RGO MR 2 #
| R (MRSt 8] PR EE SN ARE - EEM
ERRR] ARMBARKMBARNREE-"T =
FHZA=t+—HLFERNEARRTEELERNR
B BREEERHEARERR A EBREARRHEM
HitE AR 2 iy S EEMER -

BERBEALIRS
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLFEBRESRNZE
IS HRARMI A5 [BBEA TR S ] —fiAL@EEEE
AT SERBERE LR T UEEOBER H
SIBERER S - ESHR - ARFDIRE MR
FIAANZEETEBMRT -

FERR

RIB-—F+-A=+—H REFRARAES
TTHRABMA > THAL(BEEXARRRSITHA
BERIN) RARE 2 i SRR O A RIERE 5
R BRE RN EE XV #8552 12 3 73 #B Y 6 S /BRI R A A3
BRRIBES MGG 336 A RRIATHTLZ
Bz BEmsokn » AEMEARDA LR
Fir

(a) Shares (a) B
Number of
ordinary Percentage
shares of the of issued
Company held share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity Nature BEAXAT HE 81T
REREE BE =1 ZERZROEAE BAEAZBDE
Hong Kong Teamsun Beneficial owner Long Position 564,110,657 67.66%
BBEBRK ZmA ey}
Teamsun Interest of controlled corporation Long Position 564,110,657' 67.66%
ERRK RN AR e
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Note:

1. Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Teamsun and was
therefore deemed to be interested in the 564,110,657 shares of the Company in which
Hong Kong Teamsun was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2022, no other person (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had any interest or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the Company, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st December
2022, except as noted below:

With respect to the CG Code provision C.1.6, a Non-Executive Director was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30th May 2022 due to
other commitments.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors regarding any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the year ended 31st December 2022, and
they all confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on the information publicly available to
the Company and to the best of Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

As permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director and other officers
shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company from and against all losses
and liabilities incurred or sustain by him/her as a Director, to the extent permitted by
Bermuda law. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force during the year
and as of the date of this annual report.

The Company has also arranged directors’ and officers’ liability insurance during the
year, which provides appropriate coverage for legal action against its Directors and
officers.

As permitted by the articles of association of the subsidiaries of the Company’s in
Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director or a former director of the Hong
Kong Subsidiaries may be indemnified out of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries’ assets
against any liability incurred by the director to a person other than the Hong Kong
Subsidiaries or an associated company of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries, to the extent
permitted by law. Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force at the time
of approval of this annual report.

DONATION

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to HK$5,000 (2021: HK$25,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee met four times during the year ended 31st December
2022. During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group including the review of the
annual results and interim results, and discussed various auditing, financial reporting
and risk management and internal control system matters.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2022 have
been audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (“Grant Thornton”), who will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be tabled in the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Grant Thornton as the independent
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29th March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A B EM R

Q Grant Thornton
3]

To the members of Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BBRGEEERRAR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated Systems
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 95 to 201, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st December 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
BRFELEE

Revenue recognition

LON::2

Refer to notes 3(t), 4(b)(ii) and 7 to the consolidated financial
statements

FRIFE IR 3() - Ab)i) R 7

For the year ended 31st December 2022, revenue was approximately
HK$2,215,486,000. .
BE-Z-__F+-A=+—HIEE - ¥A%2,215486,000#

JC °

Revenue included revenue from contracts with customisation or
integration work of HK$264,254,000, which recognised using the
cost-to-cost method to estimate progress towards completion, which
is calculated as a ratio of “total cost incurred” to “total estimated
costs for each contract”. Based on the stage of completion, the
Group recognises revenue as a percentage of the total contract
amount at the end of reporting period.

WA IE TR ES I 4 3k S K TERI 2 K049 264,254,0008 7T + 3%
FUWAEREBRAE K AE LT ERGEE » TRGEEREHN AR
2 TR | B [fafhat iR | R EHE - SEEUTRER RE
B RBREHEREHEER D LS DR ERRKA -

Revenue recognition is identified as a key audit matter because
of the significance of the amount of revenue to the consolidated
financial statements. )
gﬁgﬂgkﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%éﬁﬁ%i&%E’Ui%'l& AR AR R R E
Z 518 ©
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HMERERGAMBRER L AR E RRET
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How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

RN ERNAERERREERER

Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition included:

B ARRNEZIZF 21

understanding the revenue and business process of the Group and
the internal controls on revenue cycle and testing, on a sample
basis, the effectiveness of key controls;

B A 5 5 [ B MO\ B 3 TSR VR AR DA R W A TR IR B N BB R ) - I
CATER T 0B B SR IR I 0 B R

assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s revenue recognition
accounting policy in line with HKFRSs; . .
AR ESEN B ARSI BREL N AT BV HREEN

performing analytical review on revenue and gross profit margin to
identify significant or unusual fluctuation on revenue;

HWAMENZETAOMIEEZ - ABBIBANEARET S

testing, on a sampling basis, the existence of revenue transactions
recorded during the year by comparing the details of the underlying
documentation, including the underlying sales invoices, contracts
and relevant documentation evidencing the delivery and acceptance
of the goods or services;

VAT ZURI S AR SR A R S EVTFAE N, @i b AR S
;ﬁg%ﬁ\ﬁ#@%%%ﬁ‘%—i - B EAKLBREYSARIS N ME XK

2 AT

selecting samples of revenue transactions recorded close to before
and after the year end and comparing the details, including the
date of the underlying sales invoices, contracts and relevant
documentation evidencing the date of delivery and acceptance of
the goods or services to assess whether the related revenue has
been recognised in the appropriate accounting period in accordance
with the Group’s revenue recognition accounting policies;

TR RRIR L SR AL SRR 3838 b U S R A
g BREEER - S RMEREYRIRE M X B HHE
X URHEHEBRRAR BRI EEENKR AR ST BERE
HEN ST HREAER

testing, on a sampling basis, the accuracy of the revenue recognised
using cost-to-cost method by comparing the estimated cost and
the actual cost incurred, such as material costs and labour costs etc.
with the supporting documents; and \ )
DA 7 34 80 S PR B A AR A% 5 S R RESR M A MO S 7
14 BB AT AR BB R B A RN (I RIS - A TR
F) MERHEITHE : &

identifying any significant adjustments to revenue during the
reporting period and after the reporting period, understanding
the reasons for such adjustments and comparing the details of the
adjustments with relevant underlying documents.
BRI R BN 3R & IR A O] B KR - B AR AR
R 10 % e B 1) A 67 A B 1 R SR AEE AT L o
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BB E

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the 2022 annual report of the Company, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

e  obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

ZEE P BERE S M ERRARE
HEF @)

EREBEFEBRDERETEROBES  BHMERT
HEAL  AEREFRZEETHRSIEREREE - R
1975

o BBIFNEH AR HEF S R T E B A ISR
FESRFERRANER - R RPITERZER
AR E LR - A RIB R RIEENBRZR
& EABMERER - ARNGEA RS RS
e FEERER BRI - S0RBERAE
ok o Sl e N= 2 S ES TR R GO E AN
R ER SN AREEREERMEBNEX
SRR AR -

o THREEVABMNEES - URHEEHEZ
TEFF - 8 B e 3EETE R B AR ey A A B
RER -

o FMEEEMRASHBEEMNREERAEL SR
EEH AR R A IR 1 -

o HEFERABKELLSHARNREMERS
W WIREAMEHMERZEE  RESOHFAERSE
HRERERNERNHEEN - MA G ESEE
FESCE R NELESRIER - WERMRBTE
EATHEEN - MBEERBMBRETRABELRE
I BEEMEWMRTNERBEEEN KA
BEERTR  AERIRFINER - HPINES
TENBERBENHRE B HILABSHERZE
& o AT KRB RBER TG E EETHE

o HERAMBHE (BEREAR) WEREIHS
A BEEAT  UREAMBHREETAAR
BREZ NI o

o HREKETERIEBRIPNTBEMNERTS
MEENBEZEE  NWHGEAHBRRERE
R BMEEREY  BERRTEEER - &M
EHRMNEZE RAEERET -

BEMEREIN  BRARBZZE BB T ENEX
HBE BEZH  EABRZERETER 8RB MAE
FE MR R R S R E R E AR

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z 5B ER A A

93



94

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

29th March 2023

Lau Kwong Kei
Practising Certificate No.: P07578
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

— A= £

o=

B

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iF=3 FET FHET
Revenue A 7 2,215,486 2,049,620
Cost of goods sold SHEKA (945,735) (923,434)
Cost of services rendered RALARTE 2 B AR (996,459) (894,996)
Other income EAbYA 8 4,427 3,584
Other gain/(loss), net HFa (&i8) 9 61,467 (20,838)
Fair value loss on investment properties BEYFEZ A EEEE 20 (2,300) =
Selling expenses HEEH (90,188) (87,409)
Administrative expenses THER (61,729) (62,506)
Finance income RN 10 158 271
Finance costs B TS AR R 1 (3,545) (3,956)
Share of results of associates i NCIE S 22 (62,196) (30,427)
Profit before income tax R A8 Bt AT R 12 119,386 29,909
Income tax expense FriSfi sz 16 (17,801) (25,777)
Profit for the year attributable EABREEHE AL
to equity holders of the Company Frial 101,585 4,132
HK cents HK cents
A il
Earnings per share attributable to EABREFTEA
equity holders of the Company: EEER2R : 18
— Basic - EK 12.19 0.50
- Diluted - #E 12.18 0.49

The notes on pages 102 to 201 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e ZEBER

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -4
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
iF=3 FHT FET
Profit for the year FRREF 101,585 4,132
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hih 2@ (EE) -
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently RG T ERENT LB &
to profit or loss: HIEE -
Revaluation (loss)/surplus of land and buildings T RIEFER (EIE) 2Bk 19 (753) 10,630
Deferred taxation arising from revaluation T RAEFERG
of land and buildings EAEZEERIE 36 124 (1,754)
Fair value loss on equity investment IR E 2 AR BEEE - (598)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to REFIGERES TR
profit or loss: B HEE
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINEG 2 EREZR
overseas operations (6.017) 6,651
Share of other comprehensive loss of associates FE(RE & A B E fh 2 E &S 22 (589) (924)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENEERE
attributable to equity holders of the Company 94,350 18,137

Annual Report 2022 &R

The notes on pages 102 to 201 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R

As at 31st December 2022 R—ZE-—F+—-A=+—8H

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FET FAExT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - B NEE 19 339,757 306,419
Investment properties REYZE 20 52,000 54,300
Intangible assets mpEE 21 - =
Interests in associates NG 22 1,192,897 1,191,768
Financial asset at fair value through other RARBEEBEMEEKE
comprehensive income (“FVOCI|”) PR S MEE 23 3,899 =
Finance lease receivables FEU B E T ERRIE 27 2,362 2,044
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTIS R EE 36 1,213 1,293
1,592,128 1,555,824
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 25 286,532 234,017
Trade receivables JEUE 5 5/E 26 192,079 171,478
Finance lease receivables FEW B & T & RIE 27 2,656 2,244
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAbFEWEIE - Re RIERRIE 28 28,713 21,872
Contract assets BHEE 29 368,298 284,880
Tax recoverable EEEEE 14,242 12,415
Bank balances and cash BITFERREE 30 547,635 603,947
1,440,155 1,330,853
Total assets wEE 3,032,283 2,886,677
Equity s
Share capital [N 31 83,370 83,358
Share premium R B ER 403,164 403,043
Reserves (e 1,573,285 1,503,924
Equity attributable to equity holders EATRAIFE AEGER
of the Company 2,059,819 1,990,325
The notes on pages 102 to 201 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ #5102 25201 B 2 s Bk iRE M S HRE 2T

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma BRI R

As at 31st December 2022 R=E==F+=A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE FEx FAT

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTIS T BE 36 169,423 169,209
Lease liabilities HEAE 37 2,166 6,176
171,589 175,385

Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables FERTE 55038 32 313,598 258,508
Other payables and accruals HAh NI R EFHE R 33 169,077 156,738
Receipts in advance TR = 34 246,561 195,898
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRIS R B & 7,724 2,768
Bank borrowings RITEE 35 56,347 101,099
Lease liabilities HEAE 37 7,568 5,956
800,875 720,967
Total liabilities HaE 972,464 896,352
Total equity and liabilities BERKAE 3,032,283 2,886,677
Net current assets REEEFE 639,280 609,886
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 2,231,408 2,165,710
WANG Weihang WANG Yueou
FHM TERE
Director Director
EZ 4

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GORREDE

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARARAFEAES
Share-
based
Special Property payment
reserve  revaluation Fair value reserve
Share Share (Note (i) reserve  Translation reserve LARR AR Retained
capital premium bl MEER reserve AREE AR eamings Total
BRA  RIDEER (FzE()) wE ENGE fE  ERREE REEA et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET AT THET AT THET AT FHET TAT FTHET
At 1st January 2021 R-Z-_-%-fA—H 83,031 399,272 34,350 253,528 (5,462) - 8,644 1,420,430 2,193,793
Comprehensive income: 2EWE :
Profit for the year FREF - - - - = = = 4,132 4132
Other comprehensive Hir2EKE
income/(loss): (58)
Revaluation surplus of THRETERRH
land and buildings - - - 10,630 - - - - 10,630
Deferred taxation arising T REFER
from revaluation of BEEZEERE
land and buildings - - = (1,754) - - - = (1,754)
Exchange differences on BERINEBZ
translation of overseas ERER
operations - - - - 6,651 - - - 6,651
Share of other comprehensive  FE{SEE & A R M2
Joss of associates (Note 22) s (M 22) - - - - (924) - - = (924)
Fair value loss on equity RAERE 2 DA BEBE
investment - - - - - (598) - - (598)
Derecognition of equity R FRERIRER &
investment - - - - - 598 - (598) -
Total comprehensive income £R2E K3
for the year Eit ] - - - 8,876 5,727 - - 3,534 18,137
Transactions with owners:  £2#H AZ?&% :
Final dividend for the year BE-T-ZF
ended 31st December 2020  +=A=F+—HItFE
and special dividend ZRERE RERIRE
(Note 17) (GEaV - - - - - - - (24979)  (224979)
Issue of ordinary shares IERRERRETZ
upon exercise of share Limik (faE31)
options (Note 31) 327 3,771 - - - - (1,006) = 3,092
Recognition of equity-settled  HERRLARR (A AERE
share-based payment % zR% - - - - - - 282 - 282
Lapse of share options BREZREENZ
transferred to retained KERE
earnings - - - - - - (58) 58 -
Total transactions with REBAZRZ B
owners 327 3,771 - - - - (782) (224,921) (221,605)
At 31st December 2021 R=B--%
+=A=+-H 83,358 403,043 34,350 262,404 265 - 7,862 1,199,043 1,990,325

HRE102EFE 201 B2 WFBKEGEMBEHRER 2T
AJ S ERE D o

The notes on pages 102 to 201 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FAEREHE

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AQARRATE AL
Share-
based
Special Property payment
reserve revaluation Fair value reserve
Share Share (Note (i) reserve  Translation reserve SR Retained
capital  premium  BEIRE  WESH reserve  AREE BE#  earnings Total
BE  RGREE (G fiE  ERRE fHiE  XARE RERA ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FEx TER FEr TER FER TER FER
At 1st January 2022 R=B=-=%#-F—-8 83,358 403,043 34,350 262,404 265 - 7,862 1,199,043 1,990,325
Comprehensive income: 2EKE
Profit for the year FREA - - - - - - - 101,585 101,585
Other comprehensive Htr2EkRE/
income/(loss): (&#8) :
Revaluation loss of T RETERER
land and buildings - - - (753) - - - - (753)
Deferred taxation arising D REFER
from revaluation of EEZIEER A
land and buildings - - - 124 - - - - 124
Exchange differences on BEEINEBZ
translation of overseas EHER
operations - - - - (6,017) - - - (6,017)
Share of other comprehensive ~ [ESES & AR E 2 HE
Joss of associates (Note 22) Eia (P 22) - - - - (589) - - - (589)
Total comprehensive income/ £RZE K%,/
(loss) for the year (F58) 88 - - - (629) (6,606) - - 101,585 94,350
Transactions with owners:  SEAAZRS :
Final dividend for the year HE-Z-—-F
ended 31st December 2021 ~ +=A=1+—RILFE
(Note 17) ZRERE (£ 17) - - - - - - - (25011)  (25011)
Issue of ordinary shares IERRER T2
upon exercise of share Limik (pizE31)
options (Note 31) 12 121 - - - - (31) - 102
Recognition of equity-settled  HEFRLARR S AERE
share-based payment SLapd5 - - - - - - 53 - 53
Lapse of share options BRZREEFZ
transferred to retained RRERE
earnings - - - - - - (180) 180 -
Total transactions with BREAZRZEE
owners 12 121 - - - - (158) (24,831) (24,856)
At 31st December 2022 R-BZZF
+=RA=+-H 83,370 403,164 34,350 261,775 (6,341) - 7,704 1,275,797 2,059,819
Note (i) The special reserve of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its () BBRREERERAR((ARAR]) REKBAR (4

W IARE ] ZFFREER AN EERR AR
3 EHAETEBEAR - WRBEZHBATEH
TR ZEE - B2 REMETHAR RN Z
HE MEZEZEHE -

subsidiaries (together the “Group”) represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of
the Company’s shares in 1997.

HRFE 10225201 B2 MFERES
A SR ER D

BEHKRZ T

The notes on pages 102 to 201 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERETMEBR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff5E FET FHET
Operating activities REER
Cash generated from operations KRB 2B WA 40(a) 102,940 90,831
Tax paid EAHIE
— Hong Kong profits tax - BERMEH (13,787) (16,240)
— Overseas tax - BHNGIE (439) (53,736)
Tax refunded REIFIA
— Hong Kong profits tax - BBFIEH _ 169
Net cash from operating activities REEBBREWANRE 88,714 21,024
Investing activities RETE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BBV - BB R&E (54,525) (9,343)
Net proceeds from disposal of partial interest in HEBE N Ry R
an associate Fr{S I F 58 - 533,967
Professional fees in relation to the disposal M EBE QRSO EREE 2
of partial interest in an associate HEEH - (1,640)
Transaction costs in relation to disposal of subsidiaries & B A FHERE 2 X A A (1,521) (34,437)
Proceeds from disposal of property, REWE - BE RRHISRIEA
plant and equipment - 101
Investment in financial asset at FVOCI BEBEAREESBEMEERE
SRR B RIE E (3,925) =
Interests received BUFE 398 43
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities RETH B (XH) WMAFE (59,573) 488,691
Financing activities A& ES
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBRITEE (45,000) (45,000)
Principal portion of lease payments HERNFAEBH (6,613) (6,521)
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BT ERRMS IS 102 3,092
Interests paid [EEREESS (3.297) (3,805)
Dividends paid BRIARE (25,014) (224,979)
Net cash used in financing activities METH RS HFEE (79,822) (277,213)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRFESEBYZ
and cash equivalents (A2 /s (50,681) 232,502
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FHzHReREEEEY
the year 603,947 370,521
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNFEFE R B B 2 R (5,631) 924
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRz2HeRIREEEY 30 547,635 603,947

The notes on pages 102 to 201 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M EE

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). At 31st
December 2022, its immediate holding company is Teamsun Technology (HK)
Limited ("Hong Kong Teamsun”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its
ultimate holding company is Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”),
a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and its
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda, and 15th Floor,
Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of its major
associates and subsidiaries are set out in Notes 22 and 46 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”)
on 29th March 2023.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are summarised in Note 3. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except for land and buildings, investment properties and equity
investment classified as financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI"), which are stated at fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The impacts of the adoption of the new and amended HKFRSs are discussed
below:

(a) Amended HKFRSs that are effective for the annual
periods beginning on 1st January 2022:

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the following
amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group'’s
operations and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning on 1st January 2022:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling

a Contract
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020
Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control
(Revised) Combination

The adoption of these amended HKFRSs has no material impact on how the
results and financial position of the Group for the current and prior periods
have been prepared and presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs:

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements,
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but are not yet
effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related
amendments’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 52

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction’

T Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2024

3 Effective date not yet determined

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be adopted in the
Group's accounting policy for the first period beginning on or after the effective
date of the pronouncement. The new and amended HKFRSs are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power over the entity, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised losses
on sales of intra-group asset are reversed on consolidation, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group's perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted
by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the period between
non-controlling interests and the equity holders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Where
certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or

a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, unless the investment is
classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost is adjusted
to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee's pre or post-acquisition profits are

recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

(b) Business combination

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-

related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at

their fair values at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Business combination (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value on the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as bargain purchase gain.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date. Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date. The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not subsequently
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounting for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as a
financial liability is subsequently remeasured at each reporting dates at fair
value with changes in fair value being recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity before the
acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains
control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end
of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period,
or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but
not control or joint control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control

or joint control of those policies.

In consolidated financial statements, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using equity
method. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of
the acquisition-date net fair values of the investee’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. The cost of acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by the
Group, plus any costs directly attributable to the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the determination of the Group’s
share of the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment is

acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the associate is carried
at cost and adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the associate’s net assets less any identified impairment loss, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). The Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting

policies that may exist.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Where
unrealised losses on assets sales between the Group and its associate
are reversed on equity accounting, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Where the associate uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, adjustments are made, where necessary, to
conform the associate accounting policies to those of the Group when the
associate’s financial statements are used by the Group in applying the equity

method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFTHE®

(Continued)

(c) B&NRIHER (B

(c) Interests in associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

After the application of equity method, the Group determines whether
it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group’s
investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in associate
or joint venture is impaired. If such indications are identified, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the
recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) of the associate or joint venture and its carrying amount. In
determining the value in use of the investment, the Group estimates its
share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate, including cash flows arising from the operations
of the associate and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of the investment.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the date when it
ceases to have significant influence over an associate. If the retained interest
in that former associate is a financial asset, the retained interest is measured
at fair value, which is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a
financial asset in accordance with HKFRS 9. The difference between (i) the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the associate; and (ii) the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the equity method was discontinued, is recognised in the profit or
loss. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same basis
as would have been required if the associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by the investee would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the entity
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Segment reporting

(e)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal

reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief

operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the

executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

0]

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HKD or HK$), which is the Company’s functional currency and
the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement
of profit or loss on a net basis within other gain/(loss), net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain
or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFTHE®

(Continued)

(e) HNEITE ()
(iii) EERF]

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date;

(if) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss presented
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
translation reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the translation reserve in equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operation
attributable to the Group are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed to non-controlling
interests are derecognised, but they are not reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are stated at fair value. Property, plant and equipment,
other than cost of right-of-use assets as described in Note 3(x) and land and
buildings, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Land and buildings are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair values at the reporting

date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings is
credited to the property revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously recognised
as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged.
A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt
with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the

revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Land and buildings
50 years, whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures 10% - 33/3%

Motor vehicles 20%

Computer and office equipment  162/3% — 50%

Right-of-use assets
2 -5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in

other reserves are transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. TEEFHE®

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment properties. Investment property is
measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment property.

After initial recognition at cost, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting date
by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Research and development expenditure

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as incurred. Costs that are directly attributable
to development activities are recognised as intangible assets provided they
meet the following recognition requirements:

demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective product for
internal use or sale;

there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

(c) the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is demonstrated;

(d) the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits through
internal use or sale;
(e) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are available for

completion; and

(f) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be reliably
measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is
the sum of the direct costs incurred from the date when the intangible asset
first meets the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Direct costs include employee
costs incurred on development activities along with an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is
reported at cost less amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 3
years.

The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:

e Intangible assets;

e Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets);
e Interests in associates; and

e The Company’s investments in subsidiaries

All assets are tested for impairment whenever there are indications that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions
less costs of disposal, and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some
are tested at cash-generating unit level. Corporate assets are allocated to
individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGTHHE =

(Continued)
() eMEERAE
(i) 2EHEE

(j) Financial assets and liabilities

(i) Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

° debt instruments to be measured at amortised cost; and

o equity instruments to be measured subsequently at FVOCI.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For debt instruments, the classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and its contractual cash flows
characteristics. For investment in equity instrument, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in
profit or loss.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flow represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other gain/(loss) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.

The Group’s financial assets are amortised cost comprise “trade
receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”, “finance lease
receivables” and “bank balances and cash” as set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity instruments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends from such equity
instruments continue to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive dividend
payments is established. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity instruments at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGTHHE =

(Continued)
() eREEREE®
(i) £HEE

(j) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include “trade payables”, "“other
payables and accruals”, “bank borrowings” and “lease liabilities”.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. Financial
liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially measured at fair value,
and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the Group
designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method except
for derivatives which are not designated and effective as hedging
instruments and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which are
carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss.

All interest related charges are recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note 3(v)).

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in Note 3(x).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Trade payables and other payables and accruals

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Bank borrowings

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

They are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.
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e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(iii) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

(k) Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses
("ECL") associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
contract assets as recognised and measured under HKFRS 15.

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 6(b) details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, contract assets and finance lease receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

For all other financial assets, the Group adopted a “three-stage” model for
impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as
summarised below:

e The receivables with low credit risk on initial recognition is classified in
“Stage 1" and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the Group;

e If asignificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is identified,
the receivables is moved to “Stage 2" but is not yet deemed to be credit
impaired;

e |f the receivables is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then
moved to “Stage 3".

Receivables in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the
portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events possible within the
next 12 months. Instruments in Stage 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based
on ECL on a lifetime basis.
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. TEEFHE®

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

)

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

When estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

e 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

e lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the expected lives of the items to which the
ECL model applies.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables, contract assets,
and other financial assets measured at amortised cost are set out in Note
6(b).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue (see
Note 3(t)) before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in Note 3(k) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become unconditional
(see Note 3())).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue (see Note 3(t)). A contract
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see Note
3(j)). Contract liability is disclosed as receipts in advance in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Inventories

0]

(ir)

Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods pending for
customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer
which are not capitalised as inventory (Note 3(m)(i)), property, plant and
equipment (Note 3(f)) or intangible assets (Note 3(h)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the group
incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained e.g. an incremental sales
commission. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised
when incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will be recognised in
a future reporting period and the costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate directly to an
existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used to provide goods or
services in the future; and are expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable to the customer
and other costs that are incurred only because the group entered into
the contract (for example, payments to sub-contractors). Other costs
of fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as inventory, property,
plant and equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are recognised to
the extent that the carrying amount of the contract cost asset exceeds
the net of (i) remaining amount of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or services to which the asset
relates, less (i) any costs that relate directly to providing those goods or
services that have not yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to profit or
loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is set out in Note 3(t).

Annual Report 2022 %

3. TEEFHE®

(m)FE

) 75

FEEERFEEZERMNERERPE
MzEm ARARAZRFEMRE
ZBEEARR o AN L AR
F o IERFERBDEEBBIET 24
AHEEREE I EHEREHE

(i) BE#EA

HEMEHRARRSEP RN ZIEENR
AERBOTRPANZIKA » B &
AR RFE (HE3mMG) - 1% - B
B R kA (BT RE3(F) s & & (i =t
3(h)) »

RSANZIEERARASERIEE
FamES - WARERSSMAITE
EEZRA(PIIEEHERE) - WE
R s 2 PRSI FEAR SRR &5 a2
AR AU E - BIRSEHZEE
BRAREEREERL - RSRHIZE
PR AR E LR S5 -

HETTE # 2 AN IR A & K93 Al 33 A
ZHEMANEERAR  EEFREAER
ARAREHRERKIRB ZEIR - WA
HimJ e - AlgEA L - BIBA R LI
A 2 REIE M E R A B 2 AR AT BE
BREERST  BEMH - KADE
BRHEA) B A REZ A R B AR A SR B
RIS A #IME L Z B AR A (I an i o
BREXMNHRIER) - EMETEHZKA
(R BERMEREE W% BER
RIBRELEE) REER I -

ERMEZ & KRR AR BT # &
WEEBRIIER - WEKKRABEZRE
EHEIB () AN B TR B EUA I B B %
BEZERIRBEIAEHR TSR B
(i) BT EEA Rt FE MR -
MARER RS ZRAZFE - QST
RIREREE

BHEERN WRERRE - AL
ZAKIRAEHEE B RET R o W
PR B AT IR B M RE 3(1) ©




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFTHE®

(Continued)

(n) BWE ZFHE

(n) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that
is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 26 for further information about the Group’s accounting for
trade receivables and Note 3(k) for a description of the Group's impairment
policies.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

(p) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost directly attributable
to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction, net
of tax, from the proceed.

(q) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
and other payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

(o)

(p)

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the
current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

0]

(ii)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the places/
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

For investment property measured using the fair value model in
accordance with the accounting policy above, the measurement of
the related deferred tax liability or asset reflects the tax consequences
of recovering the carrying amount of the investment property entirely
through sale, unless the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the average tax
rates that are expected to apply to the taxable income of the periods in
which the temporary differences are expected to reverse.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(ii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

The determination of the average tax rates requires an estimation of (1)
when the existing temporary differences will reverse and (2) the amount
of future taxable profit in those years. The estimate of future taxable
profit includes:

— income or loss excluding reversals of temporary differences; and

— reversals of existing temporary differences
Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(s) Provisions, contingent liabilities and financial
guarantee contract

(i

(ii)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the
contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the net cost of continuing with the contract.

Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s) Provisions, contingent liabilities and financial
guarantee contract (Continued)

(iii) Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer (or
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

Subsequently, financial guarantees are measured at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with ECL under HKFRS 9 and the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee period.

(t) Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of IT products and contracts for the IT

Services.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows a 5-step

process:

1.

2.

Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated amongst the
various performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. The transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts collected
on behalf of third parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFTHE®

(Continued)

(t) WA (@)

(t) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the
Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised goods
or services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition policies
are as follows:

(i) Sales of goods and rendering of services

Revenue from the sale of goods for a fixed fee is recognised when (or
as) the Group transfers control of the assets to the customer.

For stand-alone sales of goods that are neither customised by the
Group nor subject to significant integration services, control transfers at
the point in time when the customer takes undisputed delivery of the
goods.

When such items are either customised or sold together with significant
integration services, the goods and services represent a single combined
performance obligation over which control is considered to transfer
over time. This is because the combined product is unique to each
customer (has no alternative use) and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for the work completed to date. Revenue for these
performance obligations is recognised over time as the customisation
or integration work is performed, using the cost-to-cost method to
estimate progress towards completion. As costs are generally incurred
uniformly as the work progresses and are considered to be proportionate
to the entity’s performance, the cost-to-cost method provides a faithful
depiction of the transfer of goods and services to the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Installation service

For sales of goods together with installation service, where the
installation is simple and does not include an integration service and
could be performed by another party, such installation is accounted
for as a separate performance obligation. In this case, the transaction
price will be allocated to each performance obligation based on the
stand-alone selling prices. Where these are not directly observable,
they are estimated based on expected cost plus margin. For sales of
goods, control transfers at the point in time when the customer takes
undisputed delivery of the goods. Where the installation is complex
and goods or services are highly interdependent or interrelated (i.e. the
sales of goods are significantly affected by the successful installation
services in the contract), the installation and goods or services are not
separately identifiable and revenue is recognised upon completion of
the installation.

Maintenance service

The Group enters into fixed price maintenance contracts with its
customers. Customers are required to pay in advance and the relevant
payment due dates are specified in each contract. Revenue is recognised
over time based on the maintenance service period.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Finance income

Finance income implicit in finance lease is recognised as interest income
over the period of the lease so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of return of the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u) Retirement benefit costs

(v)

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all
qualifying employees. The MPF Scheme is established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group’s contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme and other defined contribution retirement benefit
plans.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

(w) Share-based payment

The fair value of services received were determined by reference to the fair
value of shares and share options granted at the grant date and expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the shares and share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).

At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
shares and share options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share-based payment reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
After vesting date, when the shares or share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(x) Leases

(i) The Group as a lessee

3. TEEFHE®

(x) HE
(i) FEFEBEHAA

Definition of lease

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether a contract is, or
contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract,
that conveys the right to use an identified asset (the underlying asset)
for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets
three key evaluations which are whether:

e the contracts contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly
identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at
the time the asset is made available to the Group;

e the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of
use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract;
and

e the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use. The Group assess whether it has
the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use.

For leases of office premises and office equipment in which the Group
is a lessee, the Group elects not to separate non-lease components and
instead accounts for the lease and non-lease components as a single
lease component.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability on the consolidated statement of financial position.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the
initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred
by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made
in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any lease incentives
received).

While the Group’s land and buildings presented in property, plant and
equipment are carried at revaluation model, the Group has elected not
to apply revaluation model to right-of-use office premises held by the
Group as the Group exercises its judgements and determines that it is a
separate class of asset apart from the land and buildings which is held
for own use.
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFTHE®

(Continued)

(x) HE @
(i) ZEEESRAA (F

(x) Leases (Continued)

(i) The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee (Continued)

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis
from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the
useful life of the right-of-use assets or the end of the lease term. The
Group also assesses the right-of-use assets for impairment when such
indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at
the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available
or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are
made up of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable payments based on an
index or rate, and amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee. The lease payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payment of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for lease
payments made and increased for interest cost on the lease liability. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or if there
are changes in in-substance fixed payments. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in
the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment

occurs.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is
reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use
asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases using the
practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and
lease liability, the payments in relation to these leases are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

On the consolidated statement of financial position, right-of-use assets
have been included in property, plant and equipment and lease liabilities
have been presented separately.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(x) Leases (Continued)

(ii) The Group as a lessor
Assets leased out under finance leases as the lessor

When assets are leased out under finance leases, the risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred out to customers. When assets are leased
out under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments is
recognised as a receivable.

(y) Government grants

(2)

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grants are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that compensate the Group for staff cost incurred are
set-off with relevant staff costs included in the respective line item of “cost
of services rendered”, “selling expenses” and “administrative expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in the year
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

(aa)Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(aa)Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related
to the others).

(2) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(7) A person identified in (a)(1) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the
parent of the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's

accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant effect

on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

(i) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in which the Group
operates. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

year in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and certain
tax losses are recognised as management considers it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax and tax in the periods in which such estimate

is changed.

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Provision for impairment of trade receivables within the scope of ECL

under HKFRS 9

The provisioning policy for trade receivables of the Group is based
on the evaluation of the risk of default and the expected loss rate.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, which include the current
creditworthiness, the past collection history, the realisation of any
repayment pattern promised as well as forward-looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period. Details of which are as set out in Note
6(b). As at 31st December 2022, the aggregate carrying amounts of
trade receivables amounted to HK$192,079,000 (net of ECL allowance
of HK$9,115,000) (2021: HK$171,478,000 (net of ECL allowance of

HK$8,483,000)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. E K E5H 5T R HE
JUDGEMENTS(Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

Revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 3(t), the Group
uses the cost-to-cost method to estimate progress towards completion
for revenue recognised over time. The progress is measured by reference
to the actual costs incurred up to the reporting date as a percentage of
total estimated costs of completion. When the outcome of a contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it will be probably recoverable.

Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair
values estimated. In making its estimates, the Group considers the
information from the valuations of investment properties and land and
buildings performed by external professional valuers by using the market
comparison approach. The market comparison approach is referenced
to recent sale price of comparable properties on a price per square foot
basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the quality of the
Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales.

Had the Group used different valuation techniques, the fair value of the
investment properties and land and buildings would be different and
thus may have an impact to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

At 31st December 2022, the carrying amount of the Group's land
and buildings and investment properties carried at revalued amount/
fair value were HK$319,075,000 (2021: HK$281,700,000) and
HK$52,000,000 (2021: HK$54,300,000) respectively.

Estimated impairment of interest in an unlisted associate

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

The value in use was determined based on the estimated present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the
unlisted group, namely i-Sprint Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
("i-Sprint Group”), including cash flows from the operations of i-Sprint
Group and estimated terminal value. Based on the assessment, the
recoverable amount of i-Sprint Group is higher than its carrying amount.
Hence, no impairment loss (2021: Nil) on interests in i-Sprint Group was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the
year ended 31st December 2022.
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS(Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(v) Valuation of financial asset at FVOC!

As at 31st December 2022, financial asset at FVOCI amounted to
approximately HK$3,899,000 are measured at fair value with level 3 fair
value measurement being determined based on significant unobservable
inputs using valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the
relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these
factors could result in material adjustments to the fair value of these
instruments. See Note 6(d) for further disclosures.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the directors of the Company prepare the annual budget taking into
account of the provision of funding. Based on the proposed annual budget, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the management of the
Group, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues, bank borrowings and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

As at 31st December 2022, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 2.7% (2021:
5.1%), which was calculated as follows:
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2022 2021

—E-CHF T —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Bank borrowings RITEE 56,347 101,099
Equity attributable to equity holders RARIRAEIFE AEGER

of the Company 2,059,819 1,990,325

Debt-to-equity ratio HBETS E B ERR L R 2.7% 5.1%

There are no changes on the Group’s approach to capital risk management
during the year.
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and United
States dollars (“USD"). Foreign exchange exposure to USD of the Group
will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to peg the HKD to the
USD remains in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations in
exchange rates, and therefore no related hedging financial instrument
was applied during the years ended 31st December 2022 and 2021.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation in relations to variable interest rate on bank balances and
bank borrowings. The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments including bank
balances and bank borrowings, at the reporting date and the stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the reporting period in the case of instruments that
have floating rates. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31st
December 2022 would increase/decrease by approximately HK$273,000
(2021: HK$167,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure
to interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings and bank balances.
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank balances and cash, trade receivables, contract
assets, other receivables and deposit and finance lease receivables.

Credit risk was managed on a group basis. The Group’s policy is to deal
only with credit worthy counterparties. Credit terms are granted to new
customers after a credit worthiness assessment by the credit control
department. When considered appropriate, customers may be requested to
provide proof as to their financial position. Where available at reasonable
cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers are obtained and
used. Customers who are not considered creditworthy are required to
pay in advance or on delivery of goods. Payment record of customers is
closely monitored. It is not the Group’s policy to request collateral from its
customers.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating;
e external credit rating;

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to
the debtors’ ability to meet its obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the
debtors;

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the
same debtors; and

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of
the debtors, including changes in the payment status of debtors and
changes in the operating results of the debtors.
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. I RAKREE R A AEES
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) B

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) SERBR (&)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring ECL which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract

EWEZHEREHEE

AEBRAEBMBIMELRFE IR 2B
A EBERERER - ERBBEERER

assets using a provisional matrix. FrERWESFIERENEEEL 2 ETEH
E1EREE -

The Group has policies in place to ensure that receivables with credit
terms are made to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and
management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the counterparties.
The credit period granted to the customers and the credit quality of
these customers are assessed, which takes into account their financial
position, past experience and available forward-looking information. The
management would make periodic collective and individual assessment
on the recoverability of trade receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience, current external information and forward-looking
information. Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue receivables.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates
for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.

As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

ECL loss rates are based on past actual loss experience. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

REBEEHIEHE - BRIAWEAE RIFEH
sk 2 X B E KR A E B IR 2 UK
R BEEEeRBURSERETERRT
il - AREGZEREP 2HHAMN - BEL
BRI AREEERFERTERPZEES
hZEREPZEEER - EERESKEESL
ERGE o BERLRR - EHISNBER RATHE
MEE R R 5 R IR B Y1 T HAE B
BB R MERIRTE o At EER T IR & ERAIT
BRAE T VEDA D Y8 B FE W R0H

R ERHEEER  BREZFTARAD
BECRERGEERREEIAH A BE
INM - BREEERARZIDEETZT
1EER - BEFRRA N EIE ZTIR%E
REAERZ BRRAFE o Bt - NEE AL
FERE ZHIBZ RHERRASNEEZE
BEAGEEEERE -

REAEEBEZ FEBRLR - ARTRE
BEP R ZEEMNRIL BN TR - FER
B E 2 BIRRET EE - PRAE
EAREPEZEED °

BMEREERZBRERDENBEERER
REBAH - ZETBHRESELHEE - IR
R sk BUR IR SR HIRR 2 BN - B AT IEIA
REREERREKE HFHIE 2 BT FRA
BN =F 2 EH =R

fisl TNBE & FETE B AT U [0l PRI S 50 0A e & 40
BER - ASEME - T EBEM Ak
FIR PR B (R B A ASREAR
SEERCEETE ©
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 #;

=

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the Group has large number of customers.

For trade receivables and contract assets, ECL allowance as at 31st

December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

FH—RA=t—RHLLFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

6. HEEREERAAEBES
= (a)
(b) SERR (&)
W ST A M & E (1)

HRASBEZREFHERS  ERKEBE SR
HAETEEFHEERR

REZEZZFR T =_—F+=A="1—
B BRESREERANEENTEREES

BRENT:
Trade receivables Contract assets
EKESHE BNEE

ECL ECL
ECL rate Gross  allowance ECL rate Gross  allowance
B amount BHREE B amount BHEE
FEERE o) BEEE GFEFBX Eok ] BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TET TR

At 31st December 2022 RIBZZHF+ZA=+-H

Collective assessment AT

—Current to 1 year past due - B EmE—4F 0% 192,318 543 0% 368,641 343
—1-2 years past due - B —ZEmF 25% 404 100 - - -
— Over 2 years past due - BB 100% 2,087 2,087 - - -
Individual assessment (ERIFTAE 100% 6,385 6,385 100% 504 504
201,194 9,115 369,145 847

At 31t December 2021 RZZZ—F+-A=1—H

Collective assessment AT

— Current to 1 year past due - BNEAZ=m A —4F 0% 171,059 452 0% 285,223 343
—1-2 years past due - B —EmF 27% 1,195 324 = = =
— Over 2 years past due - BB 100% 1,435 1,435 = = =
Individual assessment &R 100% 6,272 6,272 100% 504 504
179,961 8,483 285,727 847
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

6. ¥ EMEER N EER

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(9]

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include finance lease receivables,
other receivables and deposits and bank balances and cash.

The Group applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime ECL for
finance lease receivables that results from transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 16. Based on individual assessment, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

For other receivables and deposits, the management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement records, past experience
and available forward-looking information. Management believes that the
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding other receivable balance is not
significant. Besides, management is of opinion that there is no significant
increase in credit risk on these other receivables and deposits since initial
recognition as the risk of default is low after considering the factors above.

While bank balances and cash are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the Group only places deposits in reputable banks
and financial institutions, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board,
which has built a liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The Group relies on its operating cash flows as a
significant source of liquidity.

The table below shows the Group’s financial liabilities analysing into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.

B (&)

(b) SERBR (&)

(c)

KBRS R B b2 B EE

HEER AR BN AR E E BRI
AREHIE - EfERGFARIRE RIRTTIF
ARRE -

AREE A BB B REERE 1657
IREES ZEEREHEFRFRAB/ES
FHEREHEMEEERE - RIFEHI
fly » MEBRZREEBBLRERX °

SEMERFIBRZENE @ EEEEHT
HRFRARENBEAERE - BELHRR
] FR O AT IE 1M B R E At R R IR 1T ()
il o ERERE - ARERED 2 B
WA 2 BEEERBIY TERX © 1o - &
BERR  REEMEYGEREEZEE
[2\B B ) A HERR A SR SRR IR A0 - R
ZE AR ® ZEORRBIE o

BERTERLBRENX BN RS ER
FIRZMEERAHRR - REEEHFR
RN EBBEZZRITRSRER - REH
AZREBBLTERX -

AR

mBERRREHETSREEE B9
RAEEZEH  hHERPES 2 EIEE
MPESERZER  BY—EREZRB
TR E RS - ARBIEBSEEER
REBRRERE  URECHEERSRE
B2 REESETIR S RGEIF TR FHE LR
TREE - femEE B RAR - AEEKE
RERSRARPDESZERIR °

TROMASERRAZAHNEHA 284
THRZEBISMARNS S 2 EBAE - R
AR E 2B ERBAEZANARMERR

Su=1
@/}\Li °©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

B2 (&)

(c) mBMER(®

On demand Over 1 year

6. ¥BEMEER X REER

or within  but within

1 year 5 years Carrying
BRERR EiB—F Total amount
R—FR ERAEFA st IREE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THET FTHERT THET FHERT

At 31st December 2022 R-B-=F+=-H=+—H

Non-derivative financial liabilities HFTETASRBEE

Trade payables FERTE 55038 313,598 - 313,598 313,598
Other payables and accruals E bR RIE R IEET & R 169,077 - 169,077 169,077
Bank borrowings (Note) IRITIEE (MiFE) 56,347 - 56,347 56,347
Lease liabilities HEBE 7,765 2,224 9,989 9,734
546,787 2,224 549,011 548,756

At 31st December 2021 R-ZE_—F+_-_HA=+—H

Non-derivative financial liabilities TETESFRAE
Trade payables FERE 558 258,508 - 258,508 258,508
Other payables and accruals HAh RN FIE R EFHE R 156,738 - 156,738 156,738
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (M) 101,099 = 101,099 101,099
Lease liabilities HEAE 6,292 6,314 12,606 12,132
522,637 6,314 528,951 528,477
Note: BfsE

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on demand
or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31st December 2022,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of such bank borrowings amounted to
HK$56,347,000 (2021: HK$101,099,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the banking facilities.

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank borrowings with
repayment on demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
banking facilities. The amounts include interest payment computed using contractual
rates.

B 4R Z SR E R R IRITIERE L B8 A &
Wt A [ERERS N —F AN ] FERSER - B
—T—F+ZA=1t—8  ZERTERHR
8537 R & 4 %8 556,347,000 L (=2 = —F :
101,099,000 7T) © & R EI A KB A B SAR R -
AR R ERABERIT A BT BB E Sk ANRS
B ARAIEREE  Z2FRTEFERER
TiIREZ EEmMERFETET BHIER -

TR R B R E R R IRTT IR R R IR
TTRLE P AT B I E BV B IR B B B R 5 AT
ZECHEBERAANNRTENFIE

Over 1year Over 2 years
but within but within
Within 2 years 5 years
1 year BiB—F BBmME Total
R—FR BERMER BREFA et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET
At 31st December 2022 R-B-_—_F+=-A=+—8H
Bank borrowings RITIEE 47,441 11,377 - 58,818
At 31st December 2021 R=E=—F+=A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITIEE 47,170 45,957 11,300 104,427
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. I RAKREE R A AEES
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) B

(d) Fair value measurement (d) 2REEFE

Financial instruments and non-financial assets measured at fair value RSP BEARRARANUAREBEFEZ S/

in the consolidated statement of financial position are categorised into TERICREE  DA=EAAEBERER

the three level fair value hierarchies as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair Value (EBERBBMBHRELENFE13R[AAE

Measurement”: B2 :

e Level 1: Fair value measured only using level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted o F—E UE—EBABEFEZANE
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the B BIAEREEXAENGERERE
measurement dates. BTISHEARFHRRETE ©

e Level 2: Fair value measured using level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs e BE:NUF_EWABBFRELAAE
which fail to meet with Level 1, and not using significant unobservable B BNEEABEIBREWARAE—
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not E#@AE - BEBABLTERTATEH
available. R - PAIBR 2B ABRIET

SEIBEAELE ZBAE -

e Level 3: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs for o EZE: HABENBEITAIEBRH
the asset or liability. BIEEZBMABUGIEZAAEE -

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities () EHEERZHEEZAALEE

At 31st December 2022
R=B==F+=HA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 E £=E st

HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET TR FET FET

Recurring fair value measurement && M A R EEE

Financial asset at FVOCI RARBEEBHMER
KSR S mEE
Unlisted preferred stock (Note 23) JE_ETE R (FiRE23) - - 3,899 3,899

At 31st December 2021
RZZEZ—F+-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—IE E_E E=E “eEt

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR THIT

Recurring fair value measurement && M A R EEE
Financial asset at FVOCI RAABEEREMEZE
WEIENERMERE
Unlisted preferred stock (Note 23) FE ETE LR (MHEE23) = = = -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

The following table gives information about the fair value determination
of the financial asset at FVOCI.

6. ¥BEMEER X REER

=
B2 (&)
(d) R REEE @
() EHEEREHEEZALEEGE)

TR2SIEERARBESBEMRE
WP SMAEL AR EELE
¥

Valuation techniques

fRERE

Unobservable input

EEES PNt

Range

gE

Investment in unlisted
preferred stock
measured at FVOCI

RARBEEE
Hih 2 HE e
FIRRMET &2
FEEMEBERIRE

Equity value based on backsolve

method with reference to recent
market transaction price allocated

to series A preferred stock

EREHEE - 2EHREARFT
BB SR HEEN

mfEE

Weighted probability rate
under qualified IPO
scenario and liquidation
scenario*

SERERAABEEER
REBRBRETZ
IR = *

Volatility
R

Risk-free rate
# B ) 2

Weighted probability rate
of 20% and 80%, respectively
under qualified IPO scenario
and liquidation scenario*
SERERAABEEER
MOBRIERIE T 2 IRt
D RIA20% K% 80%*

32.91%

4.15%

*  Qualified IPO scenario represents the circumstances in which the preferred
stock converted to common shares and are available to sell to the public.

An increase/decrease in weighted probability rate used under liquidation
scenario would result in an increase/decrease in fair value. An increase/
decrease in weighted probability rate used under qualified IPO scenario
would result in a decrease/increase in fair value.

An increase/decrease in volatility would result in a decrease/increase
in fair value. An increase/decrease in risk-free rate would result in a
decrease/increase in fair value.
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VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follow:

6. WBABEER A ABER

E®)
(d) RAREEFE®
() zHEEREHBEZA

RAABERBRE=ZBADENAEE
EREERBENRNT:

S 1EE (AE)

Financial asset at FVOCI
RARBEZERBEMZMREDIR

ZEMEE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1st January 2022 RZZE-_—F—H—H -
Additions 0 3,925
Exchange realignment bE A (26)
At 31st December 2022 R-B-—f+=-A=t+—H 3,899
During the year ended 31st December 2022, there were no transfers REBE_T-_—F+-A=+—HLHF
between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2021: Nil). B £—B Z_EBERF=-EzRILE

BE(CE—F 8-

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of other financial

assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

EERR/NGREMBIRAERA - Bt s
REEMTREBZREAEOUARE
I
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e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(if) Fair value of non-financial assets

The following table presents the Group’s properties measured at fair
value on a recurring basis categorised into the three level fair value
hierarchies:

6. ¥BEMEER X REER

B2 (&)

(d) R REEE @

(i) F2HEELTIEE

TREJAEEREEEEEUARRE
BB zW%  SERAAEBEN=(E
=N

At 31st December 2022

R-B-Z-f+=-A=+—H

Level 1
1B
HK$'000
FHExT

Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT £=E st

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET

Recurring fair value measurement Z&E M QA A EBETE
Investment properties (Note 20) "E Y (MizE20)
Land and buildings (Note 19) T RAEF (FfEE19)

52,000 52,000
319,075 319,075

371,075 371,075

At 31st December 2021

RZE=Z—F+=-A=+—H

Level 1
E—E
HK$'000
FAET

Level 2 Level 3 Total
F_E F=E et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FAET FABT

Recurring fair value measurement && M A R EETE
Investment properties (Note 20) &2 (fisE20)
Land and buildings (Note 19) + b R AEF (KEEE19)

= 54,300 54,300
= 281,700 281,700

= 336,000 336,000

The Group's investment properties and land and buildings were stated at
valuations made at 31st December 2022 and 2021 by an independent
professional valuer at market value basis which is determined by
reference to market evidence of recent transactions for similar
properties.

The Group’s management reviews the valuation performed by the
independent valuer for the financial reporting purposes. Discussion of
valuation processes and results are held at least once every year, which
is in line with the Group’s annual reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(if) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

The valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs of the fair
value of investment properties and land and buildings are as follows:

Valuation techniques

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

6. ¥ EMEER N EER

B (&)
(d) RAREEFE®
(i) FEFEELTIEE(F)

REMER LHRETRABENMGE
FTHREETAERRABIENT

Unobservable input

TABER AHE

Range

HEEE

fREF RN

Investment properties ~ Market comparison approach
— Hong Kong

REME MG BA
-B%

Land and buildings Market comparison approach
- Hong Kong

THIRIETF TS B
- &%

Land and buildings Market comparison approach
—The PRC

T REF iR 15 197
—

The fair value of investment properties and land and buildings located
in Hong Kong and the PRC are determined using market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties
on a price per square foot basis, adjusted for a discount specific to the
quality of the Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales of similar
properties. Higher discount on quality of the buildings will result in a

lower fair value measurement.

Discount on quality of the buildings 9% to 16%
(2021: 9% to 12%)
& 9% £ 16%

—E—F 9% E12%)

BFHE

fin

9% to 16%
(2021: 9% to 12%)

Discount on quality of the buildings

BFEENE 9% & 16%
(Z2Z—F 9% ZE12%)

Premium on quality of the buildings 3%
(2021: N/A)

BFEERE 3%

(ZZ=—F : TEA)

UNEERPEZIREMER LR E
FZARBEDERTSELEESZER
RASROALBRYEST IR ZHE
BRMETE  WIASEYEESEH
HE - MEEENREIE - TEHR
EHRAEERE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

6. MBERERER QX AEES

- {C)
(d) X AREEE @)

(i) HFEHEENLIEEE)

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the Group’s investment RARBEERE=ZENSENAEE
properties and land and buildings classified within level 3 of the fair TEYHER T RIEFIREE SR
value hierarchy is as follows: N
Investment Land and
properties buildings Total
REME T REF wEt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1st January 2021 RZZE=—F—H—H 54,300 281,700 336,000
Depreciation charge e = (10,630) (10,630)
Revaluation surplus BE{HAR = 10,630 10,630
At 31st December 2021 R=-Z-_—H+-A=+—H
and 1st January 2022 kE=—Z2-_—"%-HF—H 54,300 281,700 336,000
Addition NE - 49,175 49,175
Depreciation charge e - (11,047) (11,047)
Fair value loss AREEEE (2,300) - (2,300)
Revaluation loss HEEE - (753) (753)
At 31st December 2022 R-—ZB_—_f+=-HA=+—H 52,000 319,075 371,075
Fair value loss of investment properties is recognised under line item “fair KEMENRAABEEENGEERRK

value loss on investment properties”

profit or loss.

in the consolidated statement of

Revaluation (loss)/surplus of land and buildings are recognised under
line item “revaluation (loss)/surplus of land and buildings” in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income and included under
“property revaluation reserve”.

During the year ended 31st December 2022, there were no transfers
between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2021: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

7. BAR 7 EBER

The Group’s revenue is analysed as follows: REBHBASTAT :
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Sales of goods HEEM 1,090,786 1,051,860
Revenue from service contracts R E RIS E £ .2 WA 1,124,700 997,760
2,215,486 2,049,620

The executive directors have been identified as the chief operating decision
maker. The executive directors have reviewed the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess the performance and allocate resources. The executive directors
have determined the operating segments based on the Group’s internal
reporting.

The Group is currently organised into two (2021: two) operating divisions —
Information Technology Products (“IT Products”) and Information Technology
Services (“IT Services”). These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information to the chief operating decision maker. The
business nature of each segment is disclosed as follows:

IT Products

Being the business of information technology in supplying of information
technology and associated products.

IT Services

Being the business of information technology in providing systems integration,
software and consulting services, engineering support for products and solutions
and managed services.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

Year ended 31st December 2022

HTESCHRRATBEERES - NTES
EHAKEONBERAEFERERSEE
- BTEFREARE AHEGRTEED
-

AEEAME(—T—— &) A& & BBFIAAAK
- BArHEmR ([ BB ER ) REARHRR

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁwﬁn AR AEE 2 RE
EAMERFEIBLERRE 2 ELE - KED

ﬂZ%%E%&%WT-

BB EER

B A AN ER RANER 2 SRMEE
7& o

BB AR

EfR R - B RERRT - EmKRER
ARz IREEREB RS 2 EARHRER

ZEXRBZ D BEM2TIET

BE-Z__HF+-A=1t—-RHLHFE

IT Products IT Services Total

EAREER BB RS et

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET FHER

Revenue from external customers REINEBE P 2 WA 1,090,786 1,124,700 2,215,486

Intersegment revenue 2 EBEULA 2,433 21,695 24,128

Segment revenue DEWA 1,093,219 1,146,395 2,239,614

Reportable segment profit AR 5 B0 F) 101,600 77,818 179,418

Segment depreciation DEITE 3,432 13,531 16,963
Additions to property, REME -

plant and equipment * e = 61 4,314 4,375

* Additions to property, plant and equipment of HK$55,085,000 were related to
unallocated assets.

* BERARDEEEZIRNEVE  BERR

55,085,0008 7T °

(=
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BRI

=

FH—RA=t—RHLLFE

(Continued)
Year ended 31st December 2021 HE_T-—F+-A=1+—HIFE
IT Products IT Services Total
BREHREM BB AR #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET
Revenue from external customers REINEBE P WA 1,051,860 997,760 2,049,620
Intersegment revenue D EBEUA 2,474 18,875 21,349
Segment revenue DEBWA 1,054,334 1,016,635 2,070,969
Reportable segment profit HO AR 91,782 45,838 137,620
Segment depreciation DEITE 2,514 10,059 12,573
Additions to property, NEWE -
plant and equipment * e 135 6,811 6,946

* Additions to property, plant and equipment of HK$14,542,000 were related to

unallocated assets.

* BRERRIEREZRENE  BERSHER
14,542,000 87T

The Group’s assets and liabilities by reportable segments as at reporting dates are AEBRNE K QIRABE S LE D EEREEE
presented below: S5 ¢
As at 31st December 2022 N-B——#+=-H=+—8
IT Products IT Services Total
EAREER BB RS et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET FET
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 467,958 398,915 866,873
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHBE 378,680 226,424 605,104
As at 31st December 2021 RZEZ—F+=-A=+—H
IT Products IT Services Total
B AR E ERHR AR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAxT
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 376,687 329,333 706,020
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE 306,208 194,421 500,629
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R D EER @)

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Segment accounting policies

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group'’s accounting policies described in Note 3(d). Performance is measured
based on segment profit that is used by the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance. Income tax expense is not allocated to reportable segments.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group are allocated
based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segment profit is profit before income tax, excluding unallocated
other income, unallocated other gain/loss, net, share of results of associates,
unallocated depreciation for property, plant and equipment that are used
for all segments, fair value loss on investment properties, finance costs and
unallocated corporate expenses (mainly include staff costs and other general
administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates, deferred income
tax assets, tax recoverable, bank balances and cash and unallocated
corporate assets (mainly include property, plant and equipment and
investment properties that are used by all segments, prepayments, deposits,
other receivables and financial asset at FVOCI).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax liabilities, deferred
income tax liabilities and unallocated corporate liabilities, which mainly
include lease liabilities, accrued charges of the head office and bank
borrowings.

Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities are
reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

(a) B BEFBE

AR 7 BPATER A By & BT IR SR T B 5E 3(d)
Pt A S B &5 BERARR - RIBIIRIEE
BRERKERNRD B R KD RIRR
D EENFE o SHAX T E DR

WEDEL -

REBENBA - Bz - BEMBETHZDE
MRTEEEDRL

AI3RE D BRROE T BBRASRADER - T8
EADEEMKA - ROBEMFRES B
18 BIEBERRRE NAAEDEERZ
ME  WEMRBZADENE  EHRE
WEZ AREBEBR - MEKRAREIRER
ZARDBEARRAX (EERFE TRARE
L —ARITHER) °

AMEDNEETBREBE A R#ER &
EFFSTRARE - FIWEBIE - SRR AR
ERADEAREE (ERBREMRE D #BE
RzM%E - BEMRRBARKEYSE - BN
PR e ARWFRREAREEE
BEMEEKGRIIROSRERE)

AESHNABTEEMNSMERHASE
BERBHABRASEARAB(ZER
FHERE  ENFRZEFERARRITE

&)

(b) AIHE 2D BBRA - B - BER

B ENHER

ARGz WA - B EERBBEAX
KEZRGERBEERBAGBYRNOT

follows:

Revenue 'ON 2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Reportable segment revenue ATHRE D HBUA 2,239,614 2,070,969
Elimination of intersegment revenue HiEE 7 B A (24,128) (21,349)

Revenue per consolidated statement of Wi & BRI

profit or loss FIdA 2,215,486 2,049,620
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R D EER @)

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) AIHE 2D EWA - B - BER
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BENHERE®
Intersegment revenue is charged at cost plus a percentage of profit mark- 53 BB A = B 2 Nk 1 B o
up.
Profit or loss Bz 2022 2021
—E-CF = —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Reportable segment profit AR B A 179,418 137,620
Unallocated amounts: ROBLKIE
Unallocated other income RO BLE MK 4,046 3,337
Unallocated other gain/(loss), net Ko FEAF RS (E51E) 61,467 (20,838)
Fair value loss on investment properties BHREMEZ AREEFIE (2,300) =
Unallocated depreciation RoBECITE (7,709) (10,940)
Share of results of associates i NS (62,196) (30,427)
Finance costs B R R AR (3,545) (3,956)
Unallocated corporate expenses KOBARFXS (49,795) (44,887)
Profit before income tax per consolidated RERE B RER IR
statement of profit or loss R PTG A Al A 119,386 29,909
Assets BE 2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Reportable segment assets AIREDHBEE 866,873 706,020
Unallocated assets: ROBAE
Interests in associates NG ] 1,192,897 1,191,768
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTEE 1,213 1,293
Tax recoverable CIEEEE 14,242 12,415
Bank balances and cash FITEREE S 547,635 603,947
Unallocated corporate assets ROBAREE 409,423 371,234
Total assets per consolidated statement ARG IS ARR R DI 3R
of financial position BERLTE 3,032,283 2,886,677
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R 7 &R )

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) AIHE 2D EWA - B - BER
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BENHER®
Liabilities =N 2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Reportable segment liabilities AHREDHEE 605,104 500,629
Unallocated liabilities: ROBAE :
Current income tax liabilities BNERFR1S T B & 7,724 2,768
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHBE 169,423 169,209
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAOMARBE 190,213 223,746
Total liabilities per consolidated statement — F4RE BRI R 53R A
of financial position BfEERE 972,464 896,352
The following table sets out information about the geographical segment TREIIEAAREERBINIES 2 WA K
location of the Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-current ERBEE (@R ITAMRLEMEH & ER
assets (other than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets). SN 2B BE SRS - P ZHRAE TR
The geographical location of customers is based on the location at which RAERHARIS S E HEY 2 FrfEsh - BtE
the services were provided or the goods were delivered. The geographical BRBEEZHEMLENS  WE  BE
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location RBERIREMEDREZEAE 2B
of the asset in the case of property, plant and equipment and investment i MILAERBEE DX 2 FIE
properties, the location of the operations to which they are allocated in the i A B R Al HE EL SRS PR ©
case of intangible assets, and the location of operations in case of interests
in associates.
Revenue from external
Place of domicile FriEits customers Specific non-current assets
REIMBES ZWA EEERBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F —E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET T FAT
Hong Kong b 2,117,204 1,948,100 335,461 355,246
us ESEY - = 1,172,146 1,172,303
Singapore i - - 19,952 18,736
Mainland China R IR 4,154 3,531 52,545 4,816
Macau LA 29,917 37,841 3,688 1,183
Thailand Z=H 47,529 42,948 333 124
Taiwan = 16,682 17,200 529 79
2,215,486 2,049,620 1,584,654 1,552,487
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Information about major customers

The Group has one (2021: one) customer with whom transaction exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$377,407,000
(2021: HK$294,697,000) during the year ended 31st December 2022.
The revenue attributable to IT Products segment and IT Services segment
amounted to approximately HK$220,549,000 (2021: HK$169,058,000)
and HK$156,858,000 (2021: HK$125,639,000) respectively during the year
ended 31st December 2022.

(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time
and at a point in time, details of the Group’s timing revenue recognition
during the years ended 31st December 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

7. AR D EBER =)

(b) AIHEZDEBBRA - B - EER

(c)

SENHER @)
FEEFEN

HE-_T-_—_F+=-_A=+—H
FEFE XAEBE—U(ZF = —
F: ) BFPFHRHIEHBAEH
ZEBUW AR 10% & B8 4 A& 377,407,000
BT (T ——4 294,697,000/ 7T) - &
E_T__FA+_A=1+—HBIFE BE
REMEHEE @5 50 R A B R 5 50 /9
W A5 Bl #) 4 220,549,000/8 L ( =T = —
£ 169,058,000 7T ) & 156,858,000 % 7T
(ZZF=—4 :125,639,000/87T) °

REAFEFEHNZBATE

ANEBA— BRI REsFE R RS E Rk
REAPTERA  AEEHE_Z_—FK
—E - F+ZA=+—HIEFEZRARE
REFBRIA ¢

2022 2021
—E-C_F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Timing of revenue recognition WA TR
At a point in time KRR 1,256,420 1,196,861
Over time — BRI 959,066 852,759
Revenue from external customers REINEBRF Z WA 2,215,486 2,049,620

Revenue relates to performance obligation that are unsatisfied as
at 31st December 2022 amounted to HK$1,395,613,000 (2021:
HK$1,214,337,000) are expected to be recognised within one to five years.

Annual Report 2022 %

R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H ' KX=KE
HEEZWA E1,395,613,0008 L (==
——% :1,214,337,00078 ) WIB R — =
AFNER °




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. H A

2022 2021

—E-CF —E -4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FiBx FiET

Interest on bank deposits 398 43

Rental income from investment properties REREYZE 2 HSRA

2,751 2,425

1,278 1,116

4,427 3,584

vy 2 - 4=
9. OTHER GAIN/(LOSS), NET Hb R~ (E58)

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE&EYIZE « [RE Mk 2 Wz - 98

Gain on additional interest in an associate ks N AR ME R E A 2 W - 25,909

Gain on disposal of partial interest in an associate &% A A]F D st 2 Was - 129,617

Exchange (loss)/gain, net X (BR) Wz /FE (2,460) 9
Net gain/(loss) on deemed disposal of partial WL S A RIS w2 F s/ (518)

interest in an associate (Note 22) (Ff5E22) 64,063 (176,471)

Others A (136) =

61,467 (20,838)

10.FINANCE INCOME

Finance income represents accretion of discount recognised upon initial
recognition of finance lease receivables to their fair values.

11.FINANCE COSTS

10. B B U A

MW AENFRENABERACEHEEE
FIRIEHER N REIRIE N o

1. B B 2

2022 2021

—E-CF —E -

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

Finance charges on lease liabilities HEABZMKER 387 530
Interest on bank borrowings RITEENE 3,158 3,426
3,545 3,956
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ArE BIIEER R EE
For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

12.PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 12.BRFrBH AnaF

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Profit before income tax is arrived BRETAS B AT A Thae 0k,
at after charging/(crediting): (BT A) F3I&I8 -
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEET NS -
Audit services ZE RS
— Current year - REFE 2,183 2,172
— Over-provision in respect of prior year - BAEFERERE (120) (32)
Non-audit services I E RS 950 1,601
Depreciation: e
— Property, plant and equipment — owned - - BEREE-BBEE
assets (Note 19) (BzE19) 17,844 16,708
— Property, plant and equipment — right-of-use - ¥1% « BE R &k # - FREEE
assets (Note 19) (BE19) 6,828 6,805
Professional fee related to partial disposal of PEBE QRO ESEENIR S
an associate - 1,640
Lease charges: HEMES :
— Short term leases - RHEE 2,008 1,236
ECL allowance of trade receivables (Note 26) FEWE 55078 2 TR ER(E B 18 B 45 (i3t 26) 1,207 3,768
Reversal of ECL allowance of trade receivables FEWE 55038 2 TRHAE B AR B E Rl
(Note 26) (Kf=E26) (396) (2,934)
ECL allowance of contract assets BREE TR EEEEEE - 847
(Reversal of provision for)/provision for obsolete ~ [REFE (BHERE) /B F5E
inventories, net (48) 63
Write off of inventories TFEMSH 64 74

13.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

BEEERIRAXX(TEBEES
<)

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHT

Salaries and other benefits (Note (a)) e REAMERN (3 (@) 483,218 418,118

Performance related incentive bonus FRIBHRE 2 REITEAL 77,212 63,177

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARRD REEE ST 2 B 47 241
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RNEFETEI R (3T (b))

(Note (b)) 18,715 15,534

579,192 497,070
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

BEERIFAX (TEEES

13.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

(Continued)

Note:

(a)

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the Group received government grant
of HK$19,662,000 (2021: Nil) from the Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”), which
aims to retain employment and combat COVID-19, under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set
up by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The purpose
of the funding is to provide financial support to enterprises to retain their employees
who would otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group
is required not to make redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the
funding on paying wages to the employees.

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the Group received government grants
amounting to HK$220,000 (2021: HK$524,000) from government authorities in
Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan for supporting the Group's foreign operations.

During the years ended 31st December 2022 and 2021, there were no contributions
forfeited by the Group on behalf of its employees who left the plan prior to vesting
fully in such contribution, nor had there been any utilisation of such forfeited
contributions to reduce future contributions. As at 31st December 2022 and 2021, no
forfeited contributions were available for utilisation by the Group to reduce the existing
level of contribution.

14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure

M<E)

FRE -

(@)

BHE-_TZ_—_F+-_A=Z+—HBLEEE" &
CEEAEARARLZRAEFEPEST
19,662,000 (=T =—F : B)Z2ESZH -
EEFREREMTE 2019TMRESHK - B2 2B
M ATEREMBE S WREJESHES
ZET - BB ZIER  AEBWEREMIE
HETETHE  YHEMEESARINETIT
ﬁo

BHE_T-_—F+_A=+—HULFE K&EH
TVERS R B R JRPT R & KT B0 T B8 Bh
220,000 7T (—F =~ —4 : 524,000787T) * LA
RASERNBEINER 2 28 -

HE-_T-_—_F+-_A=t+—HBNM=F=—F
TZA=+—BLEFE AEELBERRETE
FERZERZ AR T EIAE B UER - t#
REERAZERRERIFDARRER - R
T_—_F+-_A=+—BM=F=—F+=A
=+—H - AEE QUK AT 4 R AR KR
BEFKE -

11 EEiNE

RIE ETRA - FBECRAERGIDE 383 (1) 1K IA
AT (BRBEESHRER) RPDE 2 R FEA

of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: EZMeMT ¢

2022 2021

—EB-CF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHBT

Fees we 487 525
Other emoluments: EAbBHE -

Salaries and other benefits e RHEMEF 3,867 2,755

Performance related incentive bonus FRIRA M2 RENIEAL 8,319 7,710

Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIREHET B 18 18

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR D AERE S 4 2 B 6 41

12,697 11,049
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HEZ =T ==

14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

FH—RA=t—RHLLFE

BVEEHE o

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2021: six) directors were as AARBNSREM N (ZE=—F : NM)ES
follows: ZMEIT
Year ended 31st December 2022
BE-E-__E+-A=+-HLEE
Performance
related Equity-settled
incentive  Retirement  share-based
Salaries bonus benefit payment
and other (Note a) scheme expenses
benefits ~ ®EHFMZ contributions LR
Fees FeR REBEA BHREN  BEEXE Total
Name of director EEEB ne HitEH (HizEa) IR ZHX “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Executive directors BTEE
Wang Weihang (Chairman) T4Hm(ER) 23 1,167 1,810 - - 3,000
Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer) TEE(1THAH) - 2,700 6,509 18 5 9,232
Non-executive director FHITES
Cui Yong ER 55 - - - 1 56
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Pan Xinrong RS 134 - - - - 134
Deng Jianxin B 161 - - - - 161
Or Siu Ching Rerina RNE 114 - - - - 14
487 3,867 8,319 18 6 12,697
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14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

BVEEHE o

Year ended 31st December 2021

Bz T--—41+_A=1+-HILFE
Performance
related Equity-settled
incentive Retirement  share-based
Salaries bonus benefit payment
and other (Note a) scheme expenses
benefits ~ &RIAHZ  contributions WARRD
Fees ek REEAL RIVER  RERS( Total
Name of director EELRE e Hith iz (FizEa) SR ZRX Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Executive directors HITES
Wang Weihang (Chairman) T (ER) 55 - - - - 55
Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer) — TEE (7HH) - 2,755 7,710 18 32 10,515
Non-executive director FHTES
Cui Yong 35 55 = = = 9 64
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Pan Xinrong BN 147 - - - - 147
Deng Jianxin Bz 147 - - - - 147
Or Siu Ching Rerina RNE 121 - - - - 121
525 2,755 7,710 18 41 11,049
Note: B

(@)  The performance related incentive bonus are determined as a percentage of profit for

the year of the Group.

During the year ended 31st December 2022, no remuneration has been paid by

the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group

and no directors have waived any remuneration (2021: Nil).

(@) FRRAMZEEEATVEAEBFEGETEE

EE—-—T——

—E-—F )

=

F+ZA=+—HIEFE - ~&E
VERFEENALSEBMI M ZME - IEE
ESWEEAHE (
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

15.FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included one (2021:
one) director, details of whose emoluments are set out in Note 14 above. The

BLEBREEHZES

FALERSFLRERE R (2T _—F:
—R)EF REZMSFBER EXMFE 148

emoluments of the remaining four (2021: four) highest paid individuals for the

B FANESINA(CTE_—F: IR ZEaH

year were as follows: EEZMEFFBIT
2022 2021
—E-CF —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHT
Salaries and other benefits Fre REMET 5,407 5,945
Performance related incentive bonus FIRE A REEAL 20,038 20,111
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIET B LR 201 198
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR 1 BB 2 2 B sZ 6 41
25,652 26,295

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HEZMENFTFIEE

Number of individuals

BRAE

2022 2021

—E-CF T —F

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T % 4,500,00078 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T Z 5,500,000 7 7T 1 -
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T E 6,000,000 77T 1 -
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7T 7,500,000 77T 1 2
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001 & T2 8,000,000 77T 1 1
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

16. FTSHi B <

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBx FiET
Current taxation: BNEARRIR :

Hong Kong profits tax (Note (i) EEFER (BHEEG)) 17,943 14,814
Overseas taxation (Note (ii)) YEHNRIE (FIEE (i) 1,417 11,879
Overseas withholding tax (Note (iii)) SN (L (i) - 1,745

Overprovision in respect of prior years: BT FE R
Hong Kong profits tax BATER (63) (196)
Overseas taxation TSN (1,939) (126)
17,358 28,116

Deferred taxation (Note 36): IRIEFTE (PFI7E36)
Current year REE 443 (2,339)
Income tax expense FriS Rz 17,801 25,777

Notes:

@

(ii)

(iii)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
qualifying entities will be taxed at 8.25%, and the profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at 16.5%. For the years ended 31st December
2022 and 2021, Hong Kong profits tax of a subsidiary of the Company is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.

Taxation on overseas profit has been calculated on the assessable profit for the year at
the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Pursuant to the US Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act, a tax law enacted in the US,
a 30% withholding tax is levied on interest income received by a non-US resident from
a US resident. The Group is liable to withholding tax on the interest income received
in cash by non-US subsidiaries from the US subsidiary during the year ended 31st
December 2021.

i -

@)

(ii)

(iii)

RERBFFESHREGE A EEEEEEY
B2ESETEER825% HE - MBE2EE
FEITHY A B B2 16.5% BF o TR A MR H F
BEHBXSENEEEEGEEIZ16.5%WETE
REBH -BE_ZT-_—FR_FT_—F+_4
=+—BLEFE  ARARZ—ZRMBRRAZES
FEHEBREMRGIFEH LG ETH -

SN FIBIE T A B E A B R 2 BAT R
R RRBURFITH -

BIREBVEIINE S B A FER - —1RREEHI
FE2FE - EEBERAERERKEAF S U
ABHEBU30% 2 BIF - AEBERERIEE
BfMEBARREBE—_T-_—F+_A=+—H1t
FEAREZENE A RIBEIF S 2R S AR
TEHL ©
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ArE BIIEER R EE
For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

16.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits
of the consolidated entities as follows:

16. PR 1S BBA 2 )

7 S B FS B AT 2 BB BUR AR & B
BEEN BT OREBE Y BheEs 28
T

2022 2021
—E-C-HF —ET-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before income tax FRETS BRI S T 119,386 29,909
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% BREBFEHHE16.5%THEH2HIE
(2021: 16.5%) —ZT=—%F:165%) 19,699 4,935
Tax effects of: BT E
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose R E AR 2 13,392 37,284
Income not taxable for tax purpose TERL TS 75 T FE AR 2 A (14,353) (13,415)
Effect of different tax rates of overseas operations Z/&/NEEATER 2 TR R 2 £ (41) 3,592
Effect of temporary differences not recognised AERZERERE T E 675 -
Effect of two-tiered profits tax rate regime ARSI RIS TR R IS 2 2 (165) (165)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised 3 F3 5t Al R FERR 2 Bt T &5 18 (161) (946)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBRERE (2,002) (322)
Overseas withholding tax on interest income FEMWA Z BINEEL - 1,745
Others EAth 757 (6,931)
Income tax expense FriSHiF 2 17,801 25,777
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 14.9% (2021: 86.2%). MEFHBERAMERI49% (2T = —F:
86.2%) °
17.DIVIDENDS 17.1 2
2022 2021
—E-— T
HK$000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Dividend approved and paid: BERZABRE
Final dividend in respect of the year ended HE_Z-—F+_A=1T—HILFE
31st December 2021 of 3.0 HK cents Z REARR B AR 3.0 5L
(2021: in respect of the year ended (ZZB=—F:HE-Z-ZF
31st December 2020 of 3.0 HK cents) per share  +—A=+—HIFFE AF3.0781(l) 25,011 24,973
Special dividend of nil FRIMR S - &
(2021: 24.0 HK cents per share) (ZZE=——%F : B8 24.0580l) - 200,006
25,011 224,979
Dividends proposed: B S,
Final dividend in respect of the year ended BHE—Z-—_F+-_A=T—HILFEZ
31st December 2022 of 3.0 HK cents NERAR B A EAR 3.0 (L
(2021: in respect of the year ended T —F EHET—F
31st December 2021 of 3.0 HK cents) TZA=T—HIEFE
per share (Note) B 3.071L) (FIaE) 25,011 25,008
The Directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend in EEERARRNEBEE S F+ = A=1+—

respect of the year ended 31st December 2022 of 3.0 HK cents per share subject
to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Note:

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2022, as referred to above,
is calculated on the basis of 833,696,492 (2021: 833,584,192) ordinary shares in issue as at
31st December 2022 and at a final dividend of 3.0 HK cents (2021: 3.0 HK cents) per share.
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LUp s E S

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

18.EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 18. &R TIRAZEHAEBESR

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company is based on the following data:

’%'5—"_/\

=)

vkl

ARBREFFE ANERIEFRERREERF TR

THERRE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Profit attributable to equity holders RN ESRERRE SR
of the Company for basic and ZANRERAFEE AEIERT]
diluted earnings per share 101,585 4,132
Number of shares
REBEAE
2022 2021
—E-CF - —F
‘000 ‘000
TR AR
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R EBREREF 2 LBk
for basic earnings per share (Note (i) e (FsE () 833,671 832,673
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BESENE 2 BBk e
— Share options (Note (ii)) — B RS (B &E i) 346 6,238
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RUAHEBRESERT 2
for diluted earnings per share TBAR hniE T8 834,017 838,911
2022 2021
—EB-=H —T-—F
HK cents HK cents
L P
Earnings per share BREF
— Basic - ER 12.19 0.50
- Diluted - 12.18 0.49

Notes:

@

The 833,671,000 ordinary shares are derived from the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue during year ended 31st December 2022.

The 832,673,000 ordinary shares are derived from the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during year ended 31st December 2021.

(ii)

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31st December

2021 and 2022 assumed the exercise of the share options of the Company granted in
2012 and 2017 but has not taken into account the effect of the dilutive instruments
issued by the Group’s associates as they are considered as anti-dilutive.

e -

(i) EMA833,671,000KENEE—S=_—F+=
A=1+—RHIEFEHHEBBTEBRAMETS

2o

I3FA% 832,673,000 AR 3R B A EL
A=1+—HIEFEHHEBBTE @R mMETH

o

(iy BE-—Z-——FKR-FT-_—
FEZEREERANDIBRARAR=2ZT—=
FER-Z—tEREZERECETE - BER
BEAEERERNRETZ AREERNTIAY

E-TC

F+-—A=+—Hit

g ARl RARERIEIER -
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e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

19.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19.912% - RERRE
Furniture Computer
Land and and and office
buildings fixtures Motor  equipment Right-of-use
it BRK vehicles ERR assets Total
REF R®E AE BAERE CERAREE @t

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL THEL TEL TAL TAL

At 1st January 2021 R=B=-%-HF-A
Cost or valuation RASKEE 281,700 27,128 1,779 124,151 20,179 454,937
Accumulated depreciation 2EIE = (25,563) (1,779  (116,053) (13,831)  (157,226)
Net book amount RAFE 281,700 1,565 - 8,098 6,348 297,711
Year ended 31st December 2021 BE-E_—Ft-A=t—HLEE
Opening net book amount HAREE 281,700 1,565 - 8,098 6,348 297,711
Additions B - 2,728 - 6,615 5,739 15,082
Reassessment of lease term BIGTEMTHEN - - = = 6,406 6,406
Disposal HE - - = B) = 3)
Depreciation bk (10,630) (953) - (5,125) (6,805) (23,513)
Exchange realignment B 5 A% - 7 - 29 70 106
Revaluation surplus BHRH 10,630 - - - - 10,630
Closing net book amount BARRETE 281,700 3,347 - 9,614 11,758 306,419
At 31st December 2021 W-E-—-§+-A=t+-H
Cost or valuation A EE 281,700 29,812 1,754 125,964 32,424 471,654
Accumulated depreciation EE - (26465 (1754)  (116350)  (20,666)  (165.235)
Net book amount REFE 281,700 3,347 - 9,614 11,758 306,419
Comprising: '
At cost AR - 29,812 1,754 125,964 32,424 189,954
At valuation fife 281,700 - - - - 281,700
281,700 29,812 1,754 125,964 32,424 471,654
At 1st January 2022 R=B==%-A-H
Cost or valuation Ak 281,700 29,812 1,754 125,964 32,424 471,654
Accumulated depreciation 2EthE - (26,465) (1,754)  (116,350) (20,666)  (165,235)
Net book amount REFE 281,700 3,347 - 9,614 11,758 306,419
Year ended 31st December 2022 BE-E__F+-A=1t—HLEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 281,700 3,347 - 9,614 11,758 306,419
Additions N 49,175 500 - 4,850 - 54,525
Reassessment of lease term BIGTENHED - - - - 4,935 4,935
Depreciation & (11,047) (1,085) - (5,712) (6,828) (24,672)
Exchange realignment EapE - (22) - (160) (515) (697)
Revaluation loss EfhEE (753) - - - - (753)
Closing net book amount HREmFE 319,075 2,740 - 8,592 9,350 339,757
At 31st December 2022 R-BE--§+-A=t-H
Cost or valuation A EE 319,075 30,191 1,746 129,045 37,052 517,109
Accumulated depreciation 25tHE - (27,451) (1,746)  (120,453) (27,702)  (177,352)
Net book amount BRmFE 319,075 2,740 - 8,592 9,350 339,757
Comprising: B
At cost A - 30,191 1,746 129,045 37,052 198,034
At valuation f&E 319,075 - - - - 319,075
319,075 30,191 1,746 129,045 37,052 517,109
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e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

19.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group’s land and buildings were stated at revaluations made at 31st
December 2022 and 2021. The land and buildings were revalued by an
independent professional valuer, at 31st December 2022 and 2021, at market
value basis which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties. The revaluation gave rise to a revaluation loss
net of applicable deferred income taxes of approximately HK$629,000 (2021:
revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred income taxes of approximately
HK$8,876,000) which has been included in the property revaluation reserve.
Details of fair value measurements are set out in Note 6(d).

As at 31st December 2022, if the land and buildings had not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial statements at historical
cost, less accumulated depreciation, of approximately HK$78,947,000 (2021:
HK$31,840,000).

Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment have been charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

19.9% - BERRZRE @

REB T HMREFIRR_Z__FR=F
Z—FF+ZA=+—B2Z@HEVER - THREF
BV EEGEMR - E - —FR T ——%F
T A=t+—BERMEEEFETER  H2E
i EREMERRAR S 2 BRETE - EHE
briERIRERTS A E A EHEE L A629,000
BT(ZE=—F  EHENRERAREMSEH
ELEEHAKL 58,876,008 L) WEH
ERMEEGHRE - AR EEFEFBIHNME
6(d) °

RZZEZ_F+ZA=+—H " MLt REF
REEML HSREFELRANGRAHE
HIRMEL 578,947,000 (=T = —F:
31,840,00087T) st AR & M TE K ©

AEEZME  BERRBZIECKEGARE
RAPMBAT

2022 2021

—E-= —E -4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBx FHET

Cost of goods sold and services rendered SHE PN R IR AR TS 2 B AN 15,336 14,364
Selling expenses HEEBM 3,494 3,258
Administrative expenses 1TERER 5,842 5,891
24,672 23,513

As at 31st December 2022, the Group had pledged land and buildings with
carrying amount of HK$159,600,000 (2021: HK$166,700,000) to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 44.

i a4pmit c R-E-—FE+=-_A=+—
B A&EEKRE$35159,600,0008 (==
Z—% : 166,700,000/ 70) 2 L R EFE K
| LESETASEEZRITHE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

19.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (ontinvesy  19. ¥13€ ~ BB R & (a0)

As at 31st December 2022 and 2021, the net carrying amount of right-of-use RZTZ=FR-ZT-_—F+=A=+—H A

assets included in property, plant and equipment are as follows: Y - BERSEEAEEEZRESRRNT

Carrying amount Depreciation

RESHE e

For the year

As at 31st As at 1st ended 31st

December 2022 January 2022 December 2022

BE—Z-_F

R-E-—F R-T=-Z +=A=+—8H

+=A=+-—H —A—H LHFE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FER

Office premises NS Y ES 8,964 11,000 6,456

Office equipment N 386 758 372

Total Rk 9,350 11,758 6,828

Carrying amount Depreciation

REE% e

For the year

As at 31st As at 1st ended 31st

December 2021 January 2021 December 2021

%Z:l:_ = —_E

i S i +=A=+—8

+=A=+—H —HA—H IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FHET FABT

Office premises WAEYE 11,000 5,220 6,433

Office equipment PAERE 758 1,128 372

Total Fk 11,758 6,348 6,805
During the year ended 31st December 2022, total additions to right-of-use assets BE_Z - —_F+-_A=+—HILFE AP
and right-of-use assets with reassessment of lease term included in property, ¥ BERIBZEAREERBERENTE
plant and equipment amounting to nil (2021: HK$5,739,000) and HK$4,935,000 WEEMZERAEEAES A ARE(ZE :—i :
(2021: HK$6,406,000), respectively, which all are related to office premises. 5,739,000/ 7T) & 4,935,000/ L (Z T =——4 :

6,406,000/87T) %%i;ﬁ#ﬂ#”*%%*ﬁﬁ%
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

20.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 2. REWE
2022 2021
—EB-CHF —ET-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
At valuation &E
At 1st January n—A—H 54,300 54,300
Fair value loss N BEEE (2,300) -
At 31st December W+=—A=+—H 52,000 54,300
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated statement of AT EEERRAEBRRER
profit or loss:
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Rental income (Note 8) HE WA (Fi7E8) 2,751 2,425
Direct operating expense arising from investment EAMSWA 2B EELZ
properties that generate rental income BEELERX 381 373
The investment properties of the Group were revalued by an independent REEZHEMERB Y EEGEMR =S ==
professional valuer at 31st December 2022 and 2021 at market value basis, FR-E-—F+-A=+—HEHEEEFE
which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent transactions for TEM - I2EWMS LREMEIIRR 5 2 &8
similar properties. Details of fair value measurement are set out in Note 6(d). EBE - AnBEEFBEIHNHE6M) -
The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable RBE TP HEH S EHA Y 2 R R KRB R 4B5E
operating leases are set out in Note 41. SN IR AN
As at 31st December 2022, the Group had pledged investment properties with A AAFRE  RZEZ_F+A=1+—
carrying amount of HK$52,000,000 (2021: HK$54,300,000) to secure banking B AEBRM$EE52,000,0008 (2 =—
facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 44. £ : 54,300,000 7T) 2R EWHED THEM - LA
BERTAEEZBITRE
/ ~,
21.INTANGIBLE ASSETS N.8BEE
Development
cost
BRRAE
HK$'000
FHT
At 1st January 2021, 31st December 2021, N=—TB=-_—-%—fF—H —B=-—%+=-A=+—8"
1st January 2022 and 31st December 2022 R CF-A—-HBR=ZEBE-=Ft+=A=+—H
Cost (DN 5,006
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ST NORE (5,006)
Net book amount RS E -
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2. BN TR

2022 2021
—E-= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Listed (Note) i (BRE) 1,172,146 1,172,303
Unlisted JE LT 20,751 19,465
1,192,897 1,191,768
Note: PR -

The Group’s interest in listed securities represents the Group’s interest in Grid Dynamics
Holdings, Inc. (“GDH"), of which its shares are listed on NASDAQ. As at 31st December
2022, the fair value of the Group’s interest in GDH was USD 166,085,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,294,963,000) (2021: USD562,054,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,383,175,000)), which is based on the quoted stock price of GDH on NASDAQ of
USD11.22 (2021: USD37.97) per share as at 31st December 2022 and is within Level 1 of
the fair value hierarchy.

REBR ETHEF 2 e BIEARS ER Grid Dynamics
Holdings, Inc. ([GDHJ) Z # % - H IR DR ETER £
MeRZFZ=ZF+=ZA=+—H  AEENGDH
2 Z A B E AR166,085000% 7T (HHE R4
1,294,963,000% 7T ) ( =2 — —4F : 562,054,000 3% 7T
(1HE 1 #94,383,175,00047T)) * KRR _T=—4F
+=ZA=+—HERGDHRENRRETER 2 RE 11.22
EL(ZE=—F:3797%7T) - AABEIHERTS
HKEABANEBEEIEE -

2022 2021

—E-CF —E -

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi&xT FAT

At 1st January n—HA—H 1,191,768 1,769,196

Additional interest in an associate (Note (i) B N Al gEoME R (BEE () - 25,909
Net gain/(loss) on deemed disposal of partial RIELEHE QR IER L

interest in an associate (Note (ii)) FW s, (E518) (HIRE (i) 64,063 (176,471)
Disposal of partial interest in an associate B A N R R (FTEE (i)

(Note (iii)) - (403,147)
Share of results of associates JE(RERE DRI EE (62,196) (30,427)
Share of other comprehensive loss of associates ~ E{GH & A G H 2 HEEE (589) (924)
Exchange realignment RS (149) 7,632
At 31st December R+=—A=+—AH 1,192,897 1,191,768

Notes:

@)

(ii)

During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Group received additional 112,275
consideration shares as a result of the post-closing adjustment in relation to the
disposal of GDH in 2020.

During the year ended 31st December 2022, certain restricted stock units and
performance stock units granted by GDH to its employees were vested, certain
employees had exercised the vested stock options of GDH and GDH concluded a
follow-on public offering of 6.6 million shares of its common stock at USD17.5 per
share (2021: certain restricted stock units and performance stock units granted by GDH
to its employees were vested and certain employees/warrants holders had exercised
the vested stock options/warrants of GDH and GDH had a public offering of 11.6
million shares of its common stock, which included 5.5 million shares offered by GDH
and 6.1 million shares offered by certain selling stockholders, at a price to the public
of USD15.03 per share). As a result, the Group’s interest in GDH was diluted and a net
gain on deemed disposal of partial interest in an associate of HK$64,063,000 (2021:
net loss on deemed disposal of partial interest in an associate of HK$176,471,000) was
recognised in “other gain/(loss), net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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MZRNEMNEEE  ETEEE/IEGDHES
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e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22 Bi& N T RERR )

Notes: (Continued) e : ()

(iiiy  During the year ended 31st December 2021, the Group entered into an underwriting )y #BEZF-_-—F+_A=+—RHILFE x5EH
agreement with GDH, the other selling stockholders and the underwriters. Pursuant BAGDH + Hfth SRR R B IHRE ] LB 15 1%
to which, among other things, the Group and the other selling stockholders agreed to o B AEBEREMERKRRERE (AR E
transfer to the underwriters, and the underwriters agreed to receive and hold from the ) REHEEHE - REHERRERERREER
selling stockholders. The disposal of was completed on 6th July 2021. kB HERRFAHED GDHAR®D © thiHE

ERZZE-—FLANATK °
Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December 2022 and 2021 are as RZBZZFR-ZT-_—F+-HA=+—H ' &
follows: SEZEE NBFBNT ¢

Country/place Percentage of nominal value
of incorporation  of issued ordinary share capital
and operations  held indirectly by the Company

Name of associate EMR Y REE 2 AATBERE Principal activities
BENTEB xR i 2 ERTEBERETZEHGL FEEYK
2022 2021

—E-—fF —ZE-—F

Unlisted associates

HLHHEAT
iN Systems (Macao) Limited Macau 24% 24% Provision of engineering and
BEZRGRE CRF) BRAF] JRFT software services
TR T2 R AR TS
ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited Thailand 49% 49% Provision of engineering
R and software services
RET IR
i-Sprint Holdings Ltd. (“i-Sprint”) Cayman Islands 35.42% 35.42% Investment holding
eSS &R
i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited Hong Kong 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing, and
L (BB BH AR AR B implementing technology
risk management products
TR 5 85 K% B pi il
ARERERLH
Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd. The PRC 35.42% 35.42%  Provision of software development,
IR EHAERHEREEAR & distributing, implementing and
supporting technology risk
management products
RRHEMARE - 2t Bk
IR B R E B S
i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd. The PRC 35.42% 35.42%  Provision of software development,
Zifle QLR B AREE AR H distributing, implementing and

supporting technology risk
management products
RRHEMARE - 2 Bk
XERMEREEERES

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z B ER A A 167




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22.BEE AT HER o)

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December 2022 and 2021 are as RIBZZFR-ZF-_—F+-A=+—H &K
follows: (Continued) SE B RRIFHBOT - (4

Country/place Percentage of nominal value
of incorporation  of issued ordinary share capital
and operations  held indirectly by the Company

Name of associate MR R 2 AAREESE Principal activities
BE AT ER Bx i 2 ERTEERETZEHL FTEEK
2022 2021

—E--F —E-—4F

Unlisted associates (Continued)
FLEHBERNT ()
i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd Singapore 35.42% 35.42% Investment holding, provision of
i developing, distributing,
implementing and supporting
technology risk management
products
REER - TRt -
DiH -~ Btk X EEMTERR
EREMER

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing,
BRF R implementing and supporting

technology risk management

products

REDH - Bt KRR

[EVB TR E m TS

i-Sprint Innovations Inc. The US 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing and
£S5 implementing technology risk

management products

1RG5 85 K BT

[RBRE IR E L ETS

i-Sprint Investment Limited Hong Kong 35.42% 35.42% Investment holding, provision of
BB distributing and implementing

technology risk management

products

REER - R F#E -

D8~ Btk X EEIMER

ETRE MR

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co. Ltd Thailand 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing,
R implementing and supporting

technology risk management

products

RO - B KSR

[ B B PR S
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22 Bi& N T RERR )

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December 2022 and 2021 are as RIBZZFR-ZF-_—F+-A=+—H &K
follows: (Continued) SEZBERRFBOT - (88)

Country/place Percentage of nominal value
of incorporation  of issued ordinary share capital
and operations  held indirectly by the Company

Name of associate MR RAEE 2 AAREESE Principal activities
BE AT ER Bx 2 ERTEERETZEML FEEK
2022 2021

—E--F —E-—4F

Listed associates

EHEE AT
(Note)
(HaE)
Grid Dynamics Holdings Inc. The US 19.96% 22.15% Provision of enterprise-level
Eer digital transformation in the
areas of search, analytics, and
release automation
REENES - o &b
B #Mb 2 (b3 [ B 855 55 7%
Grid Dynamics International, LLC The US 19.96% 22.15% Provision of service in Information
E3E0 technology (“IT") engineering
BafibHs ([ EEHR ) T2 RS
Grid Dynamics DOO Beograd — Novi Serbia 19.96% 22.15% Provision of service in computer
Beograd ERgD programming
B TIZRG
Limited Liability Company Russia 19.96% 22.15% Provision of service in software
“Grid Dynamics Russia” kAT development, consulting and
relating professional service
PR - R RAEEEERS
Limited Liability Company “Grid Poland 19.96% 22.15% Provision of service in software
Dynamics Poland” g development, consulting and
relating professional service
BRI - B RABE R RS
Limited liability Company “Grid Ukraine 19.96% 22.15% Provision of service in software
Dynamics Ukraine” | development, consulting and

relating professional service

IR - R RAAEERERE
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22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22.BEE AT HER o)

Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st December 2022 and 2021 are as RIBZZFR-ZF-_—F+-A=+—H &K
follows: (Continued) SE B RRIFHBOT - (4

Country/place Percentage of nominal value
of incorporation  of issued ordinary share capital
and operations  held indirectly by the Company

Name of associate MR R 2 AAREESE Principal activities
BE AT ER Bx i 2 ERTEERETZEHL FTEEK
2022 2021

—E--F —E-—4F

Listed associates (Continued)

EmEE QT (%)
Limited Liability Company “Cometera Ukraine 19.96% 22.15% Provision of service in software
Ukraine” B development, consulting and
relating professional service
R - BRI RAAA R RS
Limited Liability Company “GD Ukraine” Ukraine 19.96% 22.15% Provision of service and support
S on behalf of Grid Dynamics and
its customers
R Grid Dynamics R HE PR
ARFS A 1%
Daxx Web Industries B.V. The Netherlands 19.96% 22.15% Provision of service in software
G| development, consulting and
relating professional service
PR - BEREREEEERS
Tacit Knowledge Inc. United Kingdom 19.96% 22.15% Provision of global consultancy
B services focused on digital
commerce
BT R BIR RS A 2 IREA R AR TS
Mutual Mobile Inc. The US 19.96% - Provision of end-to-end design
3 and development of
next-generation applications,
combining mobile,
augmented/virtual/mixed reality,
and cloud edge/IoT practices
R — R AR 7 RO 21 2k E
R - EE%E - BT R
BEERNKEEE EELE
Note: The Group had 19.96% interest in the listed associate, GDH, as at 31st December 2022 Mz : BE_T-—F+=-A=+—H " ' ~&EFAL
(2021: 22.15%) and had significant influence through its representation on the Board THt % AR GDH 19.96% MfgEm (=T = —4F :
of Directors of GDH and participates in all significant financial and operating decision. 22.15%) BENEFENRKXEGOHBEEKR
Therefore, the Group equity accounted for its share of GDH’s results. HEWSRMAEAMBMEERE - Bt - K
=B RE (G GDH R4 AR ARR o
All associates have a reporting date of 31st December and held indirectly by the FrEBERRINFEABHENT=—A=+—8
Company. WA R RIEERS -
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oY — a2z
22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. Bt N R R )
The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the EREVN AR RESTRAHASBFTFRNEERFE
directors of the Company, principally affected the results of the year or form FENERASEEEFBEEXENBH) 2AEHE
a substantial portion of the new assets of the Group. To give details of other BEERNAIMER - ARBIEERA - IR M
associates would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in ERAMFFEREEURENERIBRITE

particulars of excessive length.

The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated financial information TREMFAEREARZ EZHE N7 (GDH
of GDH and its subsidiaries (“GDH Group”) and i-Sprint Group, which are MEWE AR (58 A [GDHER |) K&i-Sprint &
material associates accounted for using the equity method, adjusted for fair value B) ZEREMBERRE - WHERKERAR
adjustments on acquisition (if any) and any differences in accounting policies and BEAE(NE) KGR EEZREREEGSH
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements: BHEFNRE S5 2 B8R
Listed Unlisted
= LT
GDH Group i-Sprint Group
GDHEE i-Sprint &£ E
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F —ECHF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FET FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEAE 813,915 667,395 74,624 41,000
Current assets MENE E 2,519,413 1,503,270 114,687 72,985
Current liabilities RBEE (301,822) (197,645) (108,449) (75,700)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (108,789) (73,732) (7,898) (8,808)
Net assets FEE 2,922,717 1,899,288 72,964 29,477
Revenue for the year FABA 2,431,837 1,643,179 115,419 119,481
(Loss)/Profit for the year FW(E1E) mFl (300,076) (107,791) 344 2,485
Other comprehensive (loss)/fincome — FREMZE
for the year (F518) Mas (5,692) = 2,669 (2,608)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income FREE(EE)

for the year WassazE (305,768) (107,791) 3,013 (123)
Group's share of: AEE L
(Loss)/Profit for the year FAN(EER) aF (62,388) (31,287) 122 880
Other comprehensive (loss)/income — FREAL2H

for the year (E18) e (1,534) = 945 (924)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income — ER2E (EE),/

for the year s 185 (63,922) (31,287) 1,067 (44)
Dividend received BHARE - - _ _
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oY — a2z
22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. B8 N B R ER ()
The financial information of iN Systems (Macao) Limited, which is not a material WIAEBE R 2 &R RIRE ZFHRH CRFT)
associate of the Group, is as below: BRARZHBFERAT -
2022 2021
—E-CfF —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Group’s aggregate share of net assets of REEE e — AR QA
an associate IR AELBER 799 729
Group's share of: AL B
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEREF, (B8) 70 (20)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FRAZEWE (E18) 4858 70 (20)
A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying LB ER B E RN GDHEE « i-Sprint& &
amount of each of the investments in GDH Group, i-Sprint Group and iN Systems REEZRFRHE CRPY) AR ARE B 2IREKRE
(Macao) Limited are set out below: BZ2HERAT -
iN Systems (Macao) Limited
GDH Group i-Sprint Group REZGNE
GDH£E i-Sprint £ 8 (M) BRAR
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F —E-CF —E-—F —E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART THET TAT FHT THET FHL
Total net assets of associates ~ BE AR FEERS 2,922,717 1,899,288 72,964 29,477 3,329 3,035
Portion of ownership interests ~ ANEBFE 2 fEH
held by Group BIERTH 19.96% 22.15% 35.42% 35.42% 2% 24%
Group's share of net assets ~ ANEEE(EE AN F]
of associates FEE 583,411 420,735 25,844 10,440 799 729
Others HAth (116,776) (29,488) (21,088) (6,811) - -
Goodwill HE 705,511 781,056 31,496 31,407 - -
1,172,146 1,172,303 36,252 35,036 799 729
Less: Provision for impairment ~ Jii : JBU/ERE - - (16,300) (16,300) - -

Carrying amount of interests in - F43 & B HREFR
associates in the consolidated ~ FABEE 1\ RIS
financial statements REE 1,172,146 1,172,303 19,952 18,736 799 729
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22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

For the years ended 31st December 2022 and 2021, the Group has discontinued
recognition of its share of losses of ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited.
The amounts of unrecognised share of results of this associate, extracted from
the relevant management accounts of the associate, both for the year and
cumulatively, are as follows:

22 B N R ERR o)

BE-Z-_—_FR-F-_—F+-A=+AHIE
FE  AEED KR IEEREFE(S ASL Automated
Services (Thailand) Limited E518 o FE{5 3% & A &)
ZFEARBHZAEREESE (BEaHER
AIZABEEERE)MT

2022 2021
—E-CF —EF-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
Unrecognised share of: REERPEAG

(Loss)/profit for the year FM (&) wmF (77) 12
Other comprehensive income Hfb 2 EWa= - -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year FANZE (B1) W8 (77) 12

Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of REFARTEREG— B E QR
an associate o) it 627 550

23.FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVOCI

BEAARBEEZBEMEZEK

@R ERMEE

2022 2021

—E-CF —E -

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT FiET

Preferred stock of an unlisted US company —MFELETERR ARE L 3,899 =

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the Group completed the
subscription of 759,301 series A preferred stock of an unlisted US company at a
consideration of USD500,000. The Group designated the investment as financial
asset at FVOCI.

Details of the fair value measurement of the investment are set out in Note 6(d).

BE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=1+—HIFE  A&E
B ek R —MIE EMEBE AR/ 759,301 AR A
ZHELEE  REASOBET - AEEEZE
BREREANEBEBREMEARGESIRNE
BMEE -

RAEZRABEZFE  SRMRE6) °
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24.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line

UBRZBRE D 2EMTH

ERMTAZEFTBREEARTIIREA

items below:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost RBHERARIEZEREE
Trade receivables EE 558 192,079 171,478
Other receivables and deposits H A FEUGRIE iz & 12,455 8,910
Finance lease receivables FEU B E T E R IE 5,018 4,288
Bank balances and cash RITEREES 547,635 603,947
757,187 788,623
Financial asset at FVOCI RARBEEBHMEEIKNESIEREZ
(non-recycling) SRMEE (FRE)
Financial asset at FVOCI BAREESBEME KSR
SRIEE 3,899 -
761,086 788,623
Financial liabilities SEAas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHEBAIEZERMEE
Trade payables FERTE 53 IE 313,598 258,508
Other payables and accruals H AT RRIE R ERT B 169,077 156,738
Bank borrowings HRITEE 56,347 101,099
Lease liabilities HEAE 9,734 12,132
548,756 528,477
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‘€
25.INVENTORIES 5. F7E
2022 2021
—E-CF —E -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAxT
Inventories IEa=y
— Goods held for resale - FHIEEEZEY 94,465 81,058
— Goods pending for customers’ acceptance - BRERPEMNZED 83,565 59,300
178,030 140,358
Other contract costs E & KIRAS 108,502 93,659
286,532 234,017

Goods held for resale and goods pending for customers’ acceptance mainly
represent computer equipment and software products.

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the cost of inventories recognised
as expenses and included in “cost of goods sold” and “cost of services rendered”
amounted to approximately HK$893,392,000 and HK$183,604,000 (2021:
HK$885,808,000 and HK$166,861,000), respectively.

Other contract costs relate to the incremental sales commissions paid to
salesperson whose selling activities resulted in customers entering into sales
contacts and fulfillment costs that generates or enhances resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying performance obligations and expected to be
recovered.

Other contract costs are recognised as expenses and included in “cost of goods
sold” and “cost of services rendered” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the period in which revenue is recognised. The amount of capitalised
costs recognised in profit or loss during the year was HK$309,859,000 (2021:
HK$285,869,000). There was no impairment in relation to the opening balance
of capitalised costs or the costs capitalised during the year ended 31st December
2022 (2021: Nil).

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES

26.

FEBEZENREGEPEMZENTIERE
MRERRMGER -

BE_ZT-_—F#+_-_A=+—HBILFEE B
RAMZIWET A THERA] & [RERE 2K
K] 2 FEEKA D R4 £893,392,000% 7T &
183,604,000 7T ( —Z — — 4 : 885,808,000,8
7t} 166,861,000 7T) °

HEMEHRARALHEED TP AILHE
BRZHEAENZBEBHEMS REREE
FIE MK ANETRAOE EL TR AT @ 2 R
SEERZBORLER -

Hih &R AN RS ERRZ HEANERE B
mRTHERAMY Wt ATHENAN] R [12
HEREZEA] - FRREBRPERZERNE
X 7K & %8 £309,859,0008 T ( =T = — & ¢
285,869,000 7T) © EAMERK AN 2 AT 4 eR gl i
HE-_Z-_—_F+=-A=+—BUIEFERER(
ZRANEBERE(ZE=—F &) -

W E 5 IR

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FixT F#T

Trade receivables — gross JEWE 55078 - 4B%E 201,194 179,961
Less: ECL allowance B TEEEEEIERE (9,115) (8,483)
Trade receivables — net EURE HFIE - FEE 192,079 171,478

The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for 30 days
and has credit control procedures to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in Note 6(b).

AEBZMAERFPEALEHZHI0RAEEH -
AEBERREEEZES BB EERBBER
1K - BREEE LR 2 FORBERIMEL E T
& o AEENEEBERFET SN 6(b) ©
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables, is

26. FEWRE 5 FIE =)

REBEERR - BRE SR ZREDTT

as follows:
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
0 - 30 days 0E 30K 128,816 87,954
31 - 60 days 31 260K 26,553 47,096
61 —90 days 61290k 15,575 19,663
Over 90 days BB 90K 30,250 25,248
201,194 179,961

The movement in the Group’s ECL allowance of trade receivables is as follows:

AEEREWE S HRIENRREEBIEREZ SN

T
2022 2021
—E-CF —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAxT
At 1st January n—A—H 8,483 7,646
ECL allowance TEEE R EIE R G 1,207 3,768
Reversal of ECL allowance TEEE BB R AR R (396) (2,934)
Bad debt written off during the year F i AR (119) -
Exchange realignment HE 3, B (60) 3
At 31st December W+=—A=+—H 9,115 8,483

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there ERERNGR 2B —RREBHTS R EEING
is no expectation of recovering additional cash. The Group does not hold any SR NEEYEIFEEAERRERE
collateral as security. R

JEWE 5 FRIBAEFEIA T OB HEETHE

The gross trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

HKD BT 185,787 158,036
usD ETT 4,987 4,982
RMB AR 48 302
Thailand Baht (“THB") ek ([REk]) 5,688 11,534
Macau Pataca (“MOP") SEPTHEE (DRFIEE 1) 1,374 1,366
New Taiwan dollars (“NTD") HeE(Hma]) 3,310 3,608
Other currencies Hh & - 133
201,194 179,961

As at 31st December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of trade receivables

approximate their fair values.
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27. B mh EH E I8

AT RIRERERERER AR R 2 &EEKE

27.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The total minimum lease receivables under finance leases and their present values

at the reporting date are as follows:

BBk ERE:

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHExT
Non-current receivables: e ED RIS ¢
Gross finance lease receivables FEU B B T E S IEAREE 2,552 2,111
Unearned finance income RERELZ BE WA (190) (67)
2,362 2,044
Current receivables: TENEURFRIE ¢
Gross finance lease receivables FEURRYE TR E FIEAREE 2,833 2,395
Unearned finance income REELZ @B WA (177) (151)
2,656 2,244
Gross receivables from finance leases: RERMERSE 2 EWRIEHALE :
Not later than 1 year —FR 2,833 2,395
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years —FIERWEA 965 1,908
Later than 2 years but not later than 3 years MFER=FN 782 197
Later than 3 years but not later than 4 years =FHEENFER 764 6
Later than 4 years but not later than 5 years P& R AFA 41 -
Gross finance lease receivables FEW BT E SRIER R 5,385 4,506
Unearned finance income REELZ @B WA (367) (218)
Net finance lease receivables RS ERE R 5,018 4,288
The net finance lease receivables are EUmEHEEREFHELIR
analysed as follows: DTEHDH
— Not later than 1 year - —FR 2,656 2,244
— Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - —FERAFA 2,362 2,044
5,018 4,288
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28.0THER RECEIVABLES,

=

DEPOSITS AND

FH—RA=t—RHLLFE

28. HL ft FE W RRIH -

REREN

=h
PREPAYMENTS FRIE

2022 2021

—E-_F —E-—F

HK$000 HK$'000

FExT FiET

Other receivables H b FEU IR 2,082 2,108
Deposits Ze 6,652 4,896
Prepayments TERRIE 16,258 12,962
Amount due from ultimate holding company PR A RIRR 832 832
Amounts due from associates Bk N AR 3,239 1,501
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary —MER ZHEB A RIRK 482 405

Other receivables, deposits and EHAbEYGRIE - e RTER - 2%

prepayments — gross 29,545 22,704
Less: ECL allowance B TEEME B ETE R (832) (832)
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — net E-4th JEU T « & M FEN FIE — F58 28,713 21,872

As at 31st December 2022 and 2021, amounts due from ultimate holding
company, associates and a fellow subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to

their short maturities.

The balances (before ECL allowance) are denominated in the following currencies:

RZB-_ R "ZE-—F+-"A=+—H K
BERARRN - BERRARIE—FRRNE
RAIRFREEIR - S REERER - BB
NS - HEZREEREQAEERS -

i GEATREYE B IR AMAAT) TUA TS EHE -

2022 2021
—E-CF T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FiET FAET

HKD BIT 17,371 13,660
THB B 3,692 1,715
RMB AR#E 3,173 2,876
NTD e 703 822
usD =TT 3,049 1,664
MOP ko 1,557 1,967
29,545 22,704

REZBEZZFR-F-—F+-A=+—H H

As at 31st December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of other receivables
and deposits approximate their fair values.

29.CONTRACT ASSETS

As at 31st December 2022 and 2021, the balance represented contract costs
incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses and progress billings.

M ROR R IRE 2 FRE SRR E N A EERE -

0.5NEE

R-E—— —E_—F+-_fF=+—H" &
FRIBFTE A 2 & AR A NN B HER s Tl Rk B 1 72 JES
BAEERR -

MEFENENEELE TR AERNEENS
BWEER RNZT-_—F+=-A=+—H &
HEEZEN(ZE=—F : M EZHRFR
EEETEAEMN (22 =—5F « &) -

The movement of contract assets for both years is due to the progress of the
projects and various billing patterns. As at 31st December 2022, the increase
(2021: increase) of contract assets is mainly due to increase (2021: increase) of
ongoing contracts during the year.
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/= 7= Eh
30.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 0.J/ITERKREE
As at 31st December 2022, bank balances carry interest at market rates with an RIZZEZZFF+A=+—8 " RIOIEBRETS
average interest rate of 0.10% (2021: 0.03%) per annum. MEFTE  FHENEE010% (ZT=_—F :
0.03%) °
Bank balances and cash are denominated in the following currencies: SBITER MBS U T ERERHE -
2022 2021
—E-CF -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
HKD BT 209,207 145,699
RMB ARE 8,634 59,374
NTD A 9,355 10,351
usb = 293,545 362,262
THB R 8,109 11,341
MOP P 18,679 14,807
Other currencies Hih &5 106 113
547,635 603,947
31.SHARE CAPITAL 31. A<
Number
of shares Amount
R EE &8
HK$'000
FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREEI0EB T ZEER
Authorised: EERA :
At 1st January 2021, 31st December 2021, R=-—E=—%—-HA—8"
1st January 2022 and 31st December 2022 —Z=-—%+=-H=+—8 -
—E-"f-A—-HRK
—E-—F+=-A=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
At 1st January 2021 RZE=_—F—H—H 830,307,964 83,031
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of REEREE TR R 1T 2 B mAR
share options 3,276,228 327
At 31st December 2021 and 1st January 2022 R=—Z-_—F+-—A=+—-HEK
—E-_—"%—-H—H 833,584,192 83,358
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise RERERITER T2 EER
of share options 112,300 12
At 31st December 2022 R-ZB-_—_F+=-H=+—H 833,696,492 83,370
All the shares in issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing REFERNBITHMBERMIEEARRRERESH
shares of the Company in all respects. HRERND =6 RSER °
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. ENEZFIE

PN E SRR R AR BN R A 2 ARk

32.TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the reporting date, based on

payment due date, is as follows: IR UNNE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Current BNHR 204,746 180,403
Within 30 days 30 KA 69,145 51,341
31 - 60 days 31 260K 20,663 13,522
61 —90 days 61Z290K 2,059 1,473
Over 90 days BB 90K 16,985 11,769
313,598 258,508

The balances are denominated in the following currencies: BERTIA TSI E W E
2022 2021
—E-—F —T-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET T
HKD BT 235,957 183,623
RMB AR # 4,139 4,020
usD = 57,557 56,647
THB B 14,075 12,350
NTD EriN=Nis 1,621 1,383
Other currencies Hih 5 249 485
313,598 258,508

At the reporting date, the carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair

values.

33.0OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

RERA - ENESRAEZRAEEERAAEE

>

BE -

B.HEMEMNRERETER

2022 2021
—E-= —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Other payables E b BT RIE 5,026 5,871
Accruals (Note (a)) st & A (M3 @) 162,778 149,591
Amount due to ultimate holding company REHAE IR A1 30 (T EE (b))
(Note (b)) 1,247 1,276
Amounts due to associates (Note (b)) IR A ) FE (B EE (b)) 26 =
169,077 156,738
Notes: PREE -
(@) As at 31st December 2022, accruals mainly included provision of employee benefit @ RZTE-_—F+-—A=+—H E:tEFRTER

expenses amounted to HK$131,298,000 (2021: HK$111,466,000). R ERAMA LR 49131,298,0008 T(=F

——% : 111,466,000/87T) °

(b)  The amounts due to ultimate holding company and associates are unsecured, interest (b) REKZRDRREE QR 2 HIAY REER
free and are repayable on demand. R B RBEREKRREER -
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33.OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

B.HMEENRERETER @

REERTIA TSI’ EHE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

HKD BT 142,180 129,926
usD =PI 12,434 13,392
RMB AR 10,171 8,318
NTD etk 2,166 1,373
THB B 1,169 2,586
MOP SERPHE 957 1,143
169,077 156,738

At the reporting date, the carrying values of other payables and accruals
approximate their fair values.

34.RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to delivery
of goods which is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
upon the delivery of goods; and provision of service which is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the service period stipulated in the
respective customer contract. Contract liabilities arising from billings in advance
of performance recognised and from receiving deposits of orders are reported as
receipts in advance.

The increase (2021: decrease) of receipts in advance as at 31st December 2022
is mainly due to increase (2021: decrease) in billings in advance and deposit
received from customers during the year.

As at 1st January 2022, receipt in advance amounted to HK$195,898,000 (2021:
HK$239,629,000), of which HK$161,415,000 (2021: HK$213,671,000) has been
recognised as revenue during the year ended 31st December 2022.

35.BANK BORROWINGS

/tﬂi%

HIRA - B ENIAREA &R 2R (EE
AREERE -

_E{

A

34. A U &=

kIR N E AT R B R (ERERR
NEERE BRRER &TEWHE%“HIJH&HXZ
BR(EREETF &N ANREHRELGS
BRRER J%%’JZ%EHMIE&EEH&HXJ 5 1R
BAELZ & HE BB AR R

R-ZE-_F+-_A=+—0  BEldkEZEM
(Z2 =% @) TZARAFERLTLES
ZIRNFIBRAZSEM(Z T —5F - F{D) o

R=ZT==—F—H—H B A 195,898,000
BT (ZZT = —4 : 239,629,000/87T) * BEFEHE
161,415,00078 7L ( = Z = — £ : 213,671,000/
TLERBE_ZT—F+-_A=1+—HIFEMHE
BEA -

3. RITEE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fix FiET
Current TENER
Bank borrowings, secured BIRRRITEE 56,347 101,099
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B.BITREE W

AEBERTEEERGAMT

35.BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

2022 2021

—E-—F —T-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year or on demand —F AN SIREREE 56,347 101,099

RITEER T NF=A =t A BE+H
FASEDHNTEE  LRFHF KL -

The bank borrowings are repayable by 60 equal monthly instalments commencing
from 29th March 2019 and bears interest at floating interest rate. As at 31st

December 2022, the bank borrowings bears interest at floating interest rate and WR-ZB-—F+=-A=+—8" fﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁ LA
are denominated in HKD with an effective interest rate of 5.60% (2021: 3.39%) TTREN  BEREFEMNEA560%(ZT=—%F:
per annum. 3.39%) °
As at 31st December 2022, the bank borrowings are secured by: RZBZZF+-A=+—H  RITEELATII
BIAMEHEA -
(1) the legal charges over the Group’s land and buildings with carrying amount (1) 7<% [ AR M {8 49 159,600,000 st ( = &
of approximately HK$159,600,000 (2021: HK$166,700,000) (Note 44); — —%F : 166,700,000/ 7T) 2 L RIEF
R (MisE44)
(2) the legal charges over the Group's investment properties with carrying (2) A&EHEKRM{ES2,0000008L(=F = —
amount of HK$52,000,000 (2021: HK$54,300,000) (Note 44); F : 54,300,000/ 7T) IR E M 2 EFE
#(HizE44)
(3) the guarantees given by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group () HARFEARE IH:FWE“ﬂf’EtHZ?

= IR %8 /330,000,000 T ( =& = —
330,000,000 87T ) ZHELR

up to a limit of HK$330,000,000 (2021: HK$330,000,000);

(4) assignment of rental and sales proceeds from the Group’s land and buildings (4) HBEAEELMREFRIEEVEZASR
and investment properties; and 65 W

(5) assignment of insurance of all insurance policies (other than third party (5) HEAEELHNEBFREREMEMERE
liabilities and public liabilities) over the Group’s land and buildings and 2R (B=FEERDEEERIN) ©

investment properties.

iﬁﬁ%meEﬁ%ﬁém FERAEEETHEA

ZETHBRIFM R ERE T AEE -
aiﬁ?@”‘*‘“ RES BB 2 B EZHE - fi
AEBE R - PHRERE AR EREE -

The banking facilities of term loan is subject to the fulfilment of certain financial
and non-financial covenants relating to certain subsidiaries of the Group, which
are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group was to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
repayable on demand.

REETEHERHE

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants, is up to
the date with the scheduled repayments of the loans and does not consider it
probable that the banks will exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so
long as the Group continues to meet these requirements.

Subject to repayment on demand clauses which can be exercised at the banks’
sole discretion, the above bank borrowings are classified as current liabilities as at
31st December 2022 and 2021.
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36. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movement during the year
are as follows:

36. EEIEFT IS

FANGAM MR RIER ZBELERSH
BE/(AE) 2B REEHFITAT

2022 2021

—E-_F —T-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At 1st January n—A—H (167,916) (203,373)
Tax credited/(charged) to other comprehensive BEM2EUKESET A (ER) I8

income 124 (1,754)

Tax (charged)/credited to profit or loss Bi8a (F0kR) FEARIE (443) 2,339

Disposal of partial interest in an associate S SRR RS =S - 35,613

Exchange realignment b 5 R 25 (741)

At 31st December ®+=—A=+—8 (168,210) (167,916)

The investments in Thailand and the US incorporated operations give rise to
taxable temporary differences arising from the distribution of profits by way of
withholding tax.

As at 31st December 2022 and 2021, no deferred income tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Thailand and the US. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investment in a subsidiary in Thailand and the US for which
deferred income tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$10,311,000 (2021: HK$9,281,000) and HK$1,135,927,000 (2021:
HK$1,133,563,000), respectively as at 31st December 2022.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31st December 2022, the Group had total tax losses
of approximately HK$14,177,000 (2021: HK$16,343,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred income tax asset has been recognised in
respect of tax loss of approximately HK$7,370,000 (2021: HK$9,246,000)
due to unpredictability of future profit streams, of which approximately
HK$7,270,000 (2021: HK$8,931,000) will expire within 1 to 5 years, none of
them (2021: HK$215,000) will expire within 6 to 10 years and HK$100,000 (2021:
HK$100,000) with unlimited expiry date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for the consideration shares received
by a US subsidiary, GDD in 2020. Such consideration shares will be taxed until
they are sold. As at 31st December 2022, the Group had deferred tax liabilities
in relations these consideration shares of approximately HK$110,197,000 (2021:
HK$110,219,000), which is calculated based on the US federal tax rate of 21%
(2021: 21%) and the applicable US state tax rate.

RENRE R EBAKIL 2 A B E £ R R
Z82 - [RERATEIBZ A 2 M AT o

R ZFRZT_—F+ZA=+—H ' &
SEWERNRE R EBRK L HBARZRE
EBFFFEE 2 BINRERELFEH - A7)
EERA  ZEWEBQRRAI GRS
ERBRET - HERRERERMKBARRES
AHNEREERES £S5 54 7%10,311,000% 7T
—T——% :9,281,000%7%) & 1,135,927,000
BT (ZZT = —4 : 1,133,563,00078 7T ) I £E fE
RIBEFTSBIAME -

AR IBER IR A B IBRRIEA LB RAR
RPERBE AN T AR IR E BRER BIETEFTEH
BE NZE_—_F+-_A=+—08 ~x&E=EH
FRIBEIBEEAA14,177,0008 T (Z = —F :
16,343,000 7T ) °] A{EHE SR AR T o RK
RETERI R AR F R - iR LA IBBIEZ 4
7,370,0007870 (=2 =—4F : 9,246,000 47T )
RIBEFTSTIEE + EH 497,270,000 (=%
——%F : 8,931,000/ 70) R —E=RFANEE -
M8 EHERER(ZT=—F : 215,00087T) 1
RAZE+EREIH K4 100,000/8T (T =—
4 100,0007870) BEERRER ©

EIEFTSF B &y — BB B 2 7 GDD # R
T _EFHEFHERBMZBOHNRE FUARER -
ZERMDREAL SR FER - R=ZT==
+ZA=+—8  AEEB@EZEROHREBZE
ERHEAFEA110,197,0008 (- - — 4 :
110,219,000 37T JHiRIEE BB FBRL R 21% (=
T —F :21%) MBRAERZSMBIERTH -
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36. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The
movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of
balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year are as follows:

36.

EILEMER @

BEAASAMHREER NN RAGENR
FOEMTHER - AZEEERAERER-—HBE
RS ER - RIS EE A BRI
FfSH B EEREE - RFR - BIEMSHEE
ke (REFER—HIAEER AR T

Accelerated
tax
depreciation Revaluation Interests in
and others of properties associates Tax loss Total
MR E
HEREM NEEL BEEANE BBER &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TAL TAL
At Tst January 2021 RZZ-—5-A-H (6,499) (50,183) (147,077) 386 (203,373)
Charged to other comprehensive income BEMZERET R - (1,754) = - (1,754)
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss (f8) /FHAEB& (432) - 1,986 785 2,339
Disposal of partial interest in an associate HERENFDI B - - 35,613 - 35,613
Exchange realignment e - - (741) - (741)
At 315t December 2021 and 1st January 2022 RZEZ—F+ZA=1—H
h=2-_—%-A—H (6,931) (51,937) (110,219) 1171 (167,916)
Credited to other comprehensive income Qﬁ@i@%ﬁ%ﬂ\ - 124 - - 124
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss (%) /3 AB& (392) - - (51) (443)
Exchange realignment X A% - - 2 3 25
At 31st December 2022 W-E--%+-A=t-H (7,323) (51,813) (110,197) 1,123 (168,210)
The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows: BIEFSRRZ AT
2022 2021
—E-CF B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Deferred income tax assets LLﬁfr SHEE 1,213 1,293
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTST B & (169,423) (169,209)
(168,210) (167,916)
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37.LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s
lease liabilities:

3.VHEAE

TRENAEEREA B2 A OFHERE

2022 2021
—EB-CF —T-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Total minimum lease payments: RIRB SRR -
Due within one year —F R 7.765 6,292
Due in the second to fifth years —ERFANEE 2,224 6,314
9,989 12,606
Future finance charges on lease liabilities RRHEEBEZHBER (255) (474)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 9,734 12,132
2022 2021
—E-= —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Present value of minimum lease payments: HEAERE -
Due within one year —FRE|H 7,568 5,956
Due in the second to fifth years ZERENEE 2,166 6,176
9,734 12,132
Less: Portion due within one year included B BIEEREAER —FA
under current liabilities ZHAR) 5615 (7,568) (5,956)
Portion due after one year included under BREEFRBEER —FE
non-current liabilities EHR Y FL D 2,166 6,176

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the Group entered into six (2021:
seven) lease agreements for use of office premises with remaining lease term of
one to three years (2021: one to two years). The Group makes fixed payments
during the contract periods. Two (2021: Two) of the lease agreements contains
an option for further extending the lease period by giving three to six-month
notice before the end of the lease. The Group considered that no extension or
termination option would be exercised at the lease commencement date.

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the Group entered into two (2021:
two) lease agreements for use of office equipment with remaining lease term of
one to two years (2021: two to three years). The Group makes fixed payments
during the contract periods. The leases do not contain any renewal options. The
Group considered the option would not be exercised at the lease commencement
date.

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the total cash outflows for the
leases are HK$9,008,000 (2021: HK$8,287,000).

HE-TZ-_—_F+-F=1+—HIEFE  ~£H
RN (ZE=Z—F ) ERFB—Z=F

ZE—F —EMF)BEEFERRAEDEZ
HEER - AEEREKHEANERFE K - HAR
MK (ZZ=—%F : M) HEAR2ERHEEH
EEMGTHERA=ZNEABRYNSBUBERHAE
EH 2R - AEEREERIEABEEETTE
ZIER o

HE-Z-_—_F+-A=+—HIEFE  F5H
FiMG (ZE=—F : M) ENFKB—E==F

TEC—F WE=F)BEETRRAEREZ
HEER - AEBERELEANERE K o %A
ETBEEMENRET - AEEREERBBE
BRI TIEZAER) o

BE-_ZEZ-_—_F+-A=+—BItEE HE
Z B[4 159,008,008 T (—T - —F:
8,287,000/ 7T) °
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38.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company'’s share option scheme which was adopted on 8th August 2002 (the
“2002 Share Option Scheme”) was expired and a new share option scheme was
adopted by an ordinary resolution passed at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 13th March 2017 (the “2017 Share Option Scheme"”).

Upon the expiry of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, no further option can be
offered thereunder but any options granted prior to such expiry but not yet
exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable.

(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme

Under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the Directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including Directors and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer,
upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general
requirement that an option must be held for any minimum period before
it can be exercised but the Directors of the Company are empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Directors of the Company at its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will not be less than
the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant of the options; (b) the average of the closing prices of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the options; and (c) the nominal value of a
share. The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on 7th August 2012.
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.
38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coninued) 38. BB I HERT &l o)
() 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —SS-FERRESE®)
The following table discloses details of the share options held by employees TREBGEREERE ST _FHERE
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and movements in such holdings SECERERRBES__FR_F
during the years ended 31st December 2022 and 2021: T+ A=t+—HUIFEZEREZE
B
2022 —EB-CF
Number of options
BRESE
Exercise At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2022 the year the year the year 2022
R-BoZE RZB-ZE
Grant date EHAH SRITEE -B-H FREH FREN i TZA=t-H
19th March 2012 ZE-ZEZAThA HK$0.704 185,700 - (187,500) - -
0.704 7
Weighted average exercise METHERTEE
price per share HK$0.704 - HK$0.704 - -
0.704 & 0.704 7
2021 —E-—F
Number of options
iRER A
Exercise At st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2021 the year the year the year 2021
i S RoB=—F
Grant date st BRITEE —A-H ERgi ERKiR ENffE +ZA=1+-A
19th March 2012 “F-—F=AtNA HK$0.704 185,700 - - - 185,700
0.704/7C
2nd May 2012 e HK$0.728 170,228 = - (170,228 -
0.728%87C
355,928 - - (170,228 185,700
Weighted average exercise MEFHERTER HKS$0.715 = - HK$0.728 HK$0.704
price per share 0.715%7 - - 0.728 % 0.704 T
Number of options exercisable at S S
315t December 2021 R = !
AiTiaER R e 185,700
Weighted average exercise price per RZE-—F
share of options exercisable at +=A=1-H
315t December 2021 AT EERED HK$0.704
EFSEREE 070487
Weighted average remaining METSEIER 0.3 year
contractual lfe AHEH 03%
The options granted on 19th March 2012 and 2nd May 2012 were vested RZB——F=A+hBER=ZT—=FHA
equally on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date. “HERENBERESENEE BBRNE—

—MFEZRFENEENRE
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38.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme

2017 Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 13th March
2017 and is valid and effective for a period of ten years from 13th March

2017.

The purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Company and/or its subsidiaries. The Board may,
at its discretion, grant options to any eligible employee, executive or officer
including Directors of the Company or its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2017 Share Option
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at 13th March 2017, the date of approval of
the adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme. Unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The Board may at its absolute
discretion impose any minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which must be
achieved before the option can be exercised. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Directors of the Company
at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than

10 years after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and shall be at least the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the options; (b)
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant

of the options; and (c) the nominal value of a share of the Company.
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.
38.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 38. BB I HERT &l o)
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) Z=—tFHERETE (@)
The following table discloses details of the share options held by employees TREESERRERE(RRBESF)BE_T
(including Directors) under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and movements —t+FEREFEZERERREBZ_F
in such holdings during the years ended 31st December 2022 and 2021: TR EC—FTZRA=1+—HIEFEZ
EREZEETHE
2022 —EB-CF
Number of options
BREHA
Exercise At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2022 the year the year the year 2022
R-B-Z% j S dambk: 3
Grant date RHAH BRITKE -A-B FREH EREH EnfifE  t=A=t-H
31st March 2017 ZE-tE=A=1-A HK$0.970 16,682,300 - (377,575) (33,800) 16,270,925
097087
28th April 2017 “EZ-tEMA=TNA HK$0.909 7,260,000 - - - 7,260,000
090987
13th December 2017 “E-tE+ZAt=R HK$0.867 785,550 - (203,650) (78,500) 503,400
0.867787
24,721,850 - (581,225) (112,300) 24,034,325
Weighted average exercise NEFHERITER HKS0.949 - HKS0.934 HK$0.898 HK$0.949
price per share 0.949 %7 - 0.934 %7 0.898 7T 0.949 %7

Number of options exercisable ~ R=Z==%
at 31st December 2022 TZB=1-H
UTENERERR 23,442,875

Weighted average exercise pricc  W=F-_%
per share of options exercisable +=F=1-H
at 31st December 2022 WTENBREN HK$0.951

MEFISRITEE 0.951%%
Weighted average remaining ~ MET IR 4,28 years
contractual life AHES 4285
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

38.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

38. IR HERT &l o)
(i) —ZT—LFHERETE ()

2021 —E-—F
Number of options
BREA
Exercise At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during December
per share 2021 the year the year the year 2021
RZB_—% RIZ_-F
Grant date KRS BRITER —A-H EREL ERER ERTE  t-A=T—H
31st March 2017 —Z-tE=A=1-H HK$0.970 19,600,000 = (238,300) (2,679,400) 16,682,300
09704
28th April 2017 “Z-tEMA=+/\A HK$0.909 7,260,000 = = = 7,260,000
0,909
13th December 2017 5 tF+-A+=A HK$0.867 1,281,450 = (69,300) (426,600) 785,550
0.867 4T
28,141,450 - (307,600) (3,106,000) 24,727,850
Weighted average exercise price ~~ MIETHBRITEE HK$0.950 - HK$0.947 HK$0.956 HK$0.949
per share 0.950%7 - 0.94757 0.95% 57T 0.949%7
Number of options exercisableat ~ R=F=—%
315t December 2021 +ZA=t-H
A TRERRERE 21,455,535
Weighted average exercise price i —d
per share of options +ZA=+-H
exercisable at 315t December 2021 A{IfERIERIEH HK$0.952
MEFHERTEE 09527
Weighted average remaining IHETSEIE 530 years
contractual life ANES 530%

During the year ended 31st December 2022, there was no share options
granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme (2021: Nil).

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the Group recognised total
expense of approximately HK$53,000 (2021: HK$282,000) in relation to
equity-settled share-based payment transactions under the 2017 Share

Option Scheme and included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

with a corresponding credited to the share-based payment reserve.
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

39.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39.7 7 8] Bf # AR 3%
THE COMPANY

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 15 41
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIEE 428,893 428,893
Deferred income tax assets EEFTIS T B E 858 1,293
429,766 430,227
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAbFEWEIE - 2e KIERRIE 246 205
Amounts due from subsidiaries N)EEPNCIVE:N 692,361 664,618
Amount due from an associate — R QA RIR K 68 66
Bank balances and cash RITERKES 862 2,117
693,537 667,006
Total assets HwEE 1,123,303 1,097,233
Equity s
Share capital N 83,370 83,358
Share premium s ERR 403,164 403,043
Reserves (Note) e (P aE) 106,803 104,668
Total equity B 593,337 591,069
Current liabilities RENBE
Other payables and accruals EL T RE K FER T B 12,598 17,690
Amount due to ultimate holding company REHAER A B FRIE 86 93
Amounts due to subsidiaries NG 517,282 488,381
529,966 506,164
Total liabilities wnas 529,966 506,164
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 1,123,303 1,097,233
Net current assets REBEETHE 163,571 160,842
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBARE 593,337 591,069

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29th March

BEEeN T _=F=A- TN BAHETRET

2023. %o
WANG Weihang WANG Yueou
FHM TEB
Director Director
BF Exa
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

39.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: The movement of the Company'’s reserves are as follows:

39. A A R B AR R 3R )

Share- Retained
based earnings/
Special payment  (Accumulated
reserve reserve losses) Total
SR RER RERA/
BRIGRE XS (REHEX) st
(Note (i))
(HHEEG))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FTHT FTHT
At 1st January 2021 R=F=——%—A—8 95,513 8,644 4,981 109,138
Profit for the year FREM - - 221,233 221,233
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of share options TI{E AR BT 2 Ll = (1,006) = (1,006)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments RARG RER L2 F% - 282 - 282
Lapse of share options transferred to retained earnings BREERERN 2R ERE - (58) 58 =
Final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2020 BE-Z-_TF+-A=t+—H
and special dividend FFE 2 RBRERAFRIRE - - (224,979) (224,979)
At 31st December 2021 and 1st January 2022 RZZE-_—4+-RA=+—H
k—ZT-—#—H—H 95,513 7,862 1,293 104,668
Profit for the year FREH - - 27,124 27,124
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of share options IERBRER T TER - (31) - (31)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments TERARGD AER S 2% - 53 - 53
Lapse of share options transferred to retained earnings HBREERE BN KUBERE - (180) 180 -
Final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2021 BE-Z-_—F+-A=t—H
IFFEZ RIS - - (25,011) (25,011)
At 31st December 2022 R-B-—%+-A=1+-H 95,513 7,704 3,586 106,803

@

(ii)

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for the issued share
capital of the subsidiaries and the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired
in prior years. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are reasonable grounds for

believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities

as they become due; or

(2)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium

account.

As at 31st December 2022, in the opinion of the directors, the aggregate amount

of reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$99,099,000 (2021: HK$96,806,000).
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

40.CASH FLOW INFORMATION 0.EEREER
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REEBZREWA
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit before income tax B FAS A A A 119,386 29,909
Adjustments for: KRR
— Share of results of associates (Note 22) — FEAGE A R AR (MIRE 22) 62,196 30,427
— Depreciation of property, plant and - W% - R RERETE (MiFE19)
equipment (Note 19) 24,672 23,513
— Net (gain)/Loss on deemed disposal of - RIEHEBE AR H DR F
partial interest in an associate (Note 9) (Wzx) /518 (fEE9) (64,063) 176,471
— Gain on disposal of partial interest in — HEHE N R D w2 W (MR 9)
an associate (Note 9) - (129,617)
— Gain on additional interest in an associate — B4 N FIRBIMERSE A 2 Uk (FIFE9)
(Note 9) - (25,909)
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and - MEME « BE REE 2 W (KiEE9)
equipment (Note 9) - (98)
— Fair value loss on investment properties - REYE 2 A EEEE (s 20)
(Note 20) 2,300 -
— (Reversal of provision for)/provision for -REGFE (BHERE) BEFEFFE12)
obsolete inventories, net (Note 12) (48) 63
— Interest income - FLEHA (398) (43)
— Interest expenses (Note 11) - FIESZH (fFFE11) 3,545 3,956
— Equity-settled share-based payment - AR BERET N 2FAE
expenses 53 282
— ECL allowance for trade receivables - BB 5508 2 TR E B E 1B (MR 26)
(Note 26) 1,207 3,768
— Reversal of ECL allowance for trade - BB 558 2 EHREEEERERR
receivables (Note 26) (FI5E26) (396) (2,934)
— ECL allowance for contract assets - EHNEE BHEBEEREE - 847
— Write off of inventories (Note 12) - TFE M (P7E12) 64 74
Changes in working capital: LERSHE
— Inventories -FE (52,530) (21,429)
— Trade receivables - BB 5518 (22,221) 67,153
— Finance lease receivables - R E R ERIE (730) 2,699
— Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — EfbEZIE « Z& K IE B (7,233) (3,894)
— Contract assets -AREE (83,521) (16,339)
— Trade payables - BB 5518 56,033 (24,774)
— Other payables and accruals - b RIBRIETE A 13,637 19,811
— Receipts in advance - TER = 50,987 (43,105)
Cash generated from operations KEEB 2R SWA 102,940 90,831
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LBy
40.CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued 0. BEREBER =)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) RETBELENEBWEHIER
activities
The table below set out the reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing TREFNBEE_—_FRZF_—F+=
activities for the years ended 31st December 2022 and 2021: A=+—HIEFEREEDEENAGBNE
BE :
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITIEE HEAE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiT F&T FiET
(Note)
(Ff$3E)
At 1st January 2021 R-E-—%5—F—H 145,971 6,436 152,407
Cash flows Rene
— Repayment of bank borrowings - ERFITEE (45,000) - (45,000)
— Interest paid -BRFE (3,275) - (3,275)
— Principal portion of lease payments - HERMZAL D = (6,521) (6,521)
— Interest portion of lease payments - HENFFIEESH = (530) (530)
Non-cash changes FR &)
— Finance costs - BT 3,426 530 3,956
— Entering into new leases (Note 19) - MAFAE (3 19) - 5,739 5,739
— Reassessment of lease term (Note 19) - B AEAECHESR (M 19) - 6,406 6,406
— Exchange difference -ERER - 72 72
At 31st December 2021 and RZZZ—F+ZA=+—HK
1st January 2022 —T-_%—f—H 101,122 12,132 113,254
Cash flows Rene
— Repayment of bank borrowings - ERFITEE (45,000) - (45,000)
— Interest paid -BRFE (2,910) - (2,910)
— Principal portion of lease payments - BEMRAL M - (6,613) (6,613)
— Interest portion of lease payments — HERZFIS 55 - (387) (387)
Non-cash changes FR &)
— Finance costs - BN 3,158 387 3,545
— Reassessment of lease term (Note 19) - Bt AEAE HESR (M 19) - 4,935 4,935
— Exchange difference -ERER - (720) (720)
At 31st December 2022 R-ZB-Z=F+-A=+-H 56,380 9,734 66,114
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40.CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)

Note:

The following table shows the breakdown of the bank borrowings and interest payable
as at 31st December 2022 and 2021:

e SRR

0IAEREER @

(b) BMETHELENEBENYEERE®)

FfRE :

TREIR-_F-_—_FR-_FT=_—F+=A

=t RRITERERENME 2B

2022 2021
—EB-CHF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT AT
Bank borrowings (Note 35) RITIEE (P 35) 56,347 101,099
Interest payable (included in other payables FERFILE (BT E R 508
and accruals) RIESERA) 33 23
56,380 101,122
=
41.LEASE COMMITMENTS 4. FEEHRE
As lessee fERAMBEA
At the reporting date, the lease commitments for short-term leases are as RIWEMARA - GHEECHEAEDT -
follows:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E -4
Office Office
premises premises
WAEYE NS/
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT
Within one year —FR 649 702

As at 31st December 2022, the Group had not committed to any lease in which
the lease had not yet commenced (2021: not committed to any lease in which
the lease had not yet commenced).

As at 31st December 2022, leases for office premises are negotiated for an
average term of one year (2021: one year) and the rentals are fixed over the
terms of the leases.

RZZEZ—F+-A=+—H ' AEEWREIE
ERAEIARFIANFAETH(

— = —

=

REEEFRERRFAGNBEERTA)

R-ZT_—F+_A=+—H8 #Ho=WELA
HFEGR—FREE— R (ZE=—F: —F) M
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

41.LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

As lessor

At 31st December 2022, the Group had contracted with tenants and an associate

N FEERE»
EHBBAA

RZZ_—_F+-_A=+—H  AEBEERHL

in respect of office premises under operating leases as follows: =Y EEBHNEE P kBB E AN
T~
2022 2021
—EBE-CF - —F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Not later than one year —FRA 1,378 3,328
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years —FRERAFA 163 1,541
1,541 4,869

Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of three years (2021:
three years) and the rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

42.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

MAEMEZEOFHR=FEF —R(=F
——%: =F)  HERNEHRREE -

42. 8 A&

2022 2021
—E-—F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Contracted but not provided for: EEEEER -
Capital expenditure in respect of property, M - BEREEERNFEX
plant and equipment 1,407 367

43.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st December 2022, performance bonds of approximately
HK$112,156,000 (2021: HK$102,540,000) have been issued by the bank on
behalf of the Group to customers as security of contracts.

44.PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December 2022, land and buildings with carrying amount of
HK$159,600,000 (2021: HK$166,700,000) (Note 19) and investment properties
with carrying amount of HK$52,000,000 (2021: HK$54,300,000) (Note 20) were
pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings.
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

B.EEAETRS

45.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31st December 2022, Hong Kong Teamsun owns 67.66% (2021: 67.67 %)
of the Company’s issued shares. The remaining 32.34% (2021: 32.33%) of the

R-ZB-_—F+-_A=+—H8 FBEBX
&%*ﬁ$"ﬁﬂ§1"26766%(:?*—¢'

Company’s issued shares are widely held. The ultimate holding company of the 67.67%) ' 8T 32.34% (ZZT=—% : 32.33%)
Company is Teamsun. ROBEMALHFEER - A2 TE*MT [ENGIY=]
FERBERK ©
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) HEFEA T 2R S
2022 2021
—EB-CHF —ET-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Nature of transaction XH5ME
Fellow subsidiaries: ERMEARE :
Service income charged by the Group REBERMZ RIFEWA 15 504
Other income charged by the Group & E Bz B AU A - 9
Service fee charged to the Group RNEE X a0 RS & A 383 449
The associates: B NT]
Sales by the Group REEHE 4,883 2,353
Purchases by the Group REBRE 5,986 4,387
Staff costs charged by the Group AEEFGWK 2z EIHRY 66 66
Rental income charged by the Group REEFU Z B HA 398 387
Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted at normal commercial B &AR Ea&ﬁﬁﬁxﬁ'& BER—HEA

terms that are consistently applied to all customers and vendors.

Rental income was transacted with reference to the rental rates prevailing in the

market.

(b) The Group’s balances with related parties are set out in Notes 28 and 33.

(c) Key management personnel remuneration are disclosed in Notes 14 and 15.

ZIEREEGTETRS

HEWATIBE TSR

(b) A5 E B REE A £ 2 R A0 45 SRR O I 5 28

233

TR S KFET °

() =2EEASBESNME 14515 AKE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE—T—-—F+_-_A=+—HBItFE

46.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

46. T EMBA R 2FH1B

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2022 and RIBZZFR-ZF-_—F+-A=+—H &K

2021 are as follows:

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and fully

paid share capital/

RAZEZMBARFBLT

Percentage of
issued share

and operation registered capital capital held
ML, B L ERITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 BERAK NG g Principal activities
L) YNGR EES: 1 HfER ERTREBEIH TEXK
2022 2021
—E--F —ZT-—F
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
BERL(B8) BRAH B 55,350,000 products and solutions and provision
non-voting of hardware services (including
deferred shares” installation and maintenance services)
HK$55,350,002 and software services (including
2REER software development, consulting
55,350,000 % and professional services)
BERERERER" REZR - HEBRKERRBART R
55,350,002 7T PR RS (BRRERRE
BR#%) RN R s (BRI FE
BERREXRE)
ELM Computer Technologies Limited Hong Kong 12,000,000 100% 100% Sale of computer products and
RSB ER A 5 ordinary shares solutions and provision of hardware
HK$12,000,000 services (including installation and
12,000,000 fx maintenance services) and software
Tk services (including software
12,000,000 /87T development, consulting and
professional services)
HEBIMEMRBR N R RIRMHE
EHRRY (LR RRERE) &
IR (B R - BRI R
BXRY)
ASL Softwing Investment Holdings Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Investment holding

Limited B
PR EERER AR
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

46.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 46. FEMB AT Z5HE @

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2022 and

2021 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully

RZZE_—FR-_T-_—F+=-A=+—H ' &
ARIZEEHBARFBOT : (48)

Percentage of

establishment  paid share capital/ issued share
and operation registered capital capital held
SR, B EBITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HERE VNG iE S Principal activities
) PNGTEE ZES 1] EMER BERTREES TEXK
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
CSA Automated (Macau) Limited Macau Registered capital 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
BE RS ORF) ARAH SRPY MOP$10,000 products and solutions and provision of
AR hardware services (including
BP9 10,000 7T installation and maintenance services) and
software services (including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
BEER  HEBRERMMRATR
R R (BELRERRE
AR ) AR AR S (B FER R 2
BRI REERE)
ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited Thailand 1,110,000 ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
ZRE shares products and solutions and provision
THB50,000,000 of hardware services (including
1,110,000 A% & &R installation and maintenance services)
Z=#% 50,000,000 7T and software services (including
software development, consulting
and professional services)
BEER  HEBRERMMRATR
R R (BELRERRE
AR ) AR AR TS (B FER R 2

BRI REERE)
Guangzhou Automated Systems PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Sale of computer products and
Limited (Note 1) A HK$110,000,000 solutions and provision of
BEINREEEEERBERAR AR hardware services (including
(PF=E1) 110,000,000 %7T installation and maintenance

services) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional
services)

THE B m KRR R IR
R (AELERRERS) X
IR (BAER R - BRI R
HER)
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For the

year ended 31st December 2022 #;

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2022 and

2021 are as follows: (Continued)

BT —F+-A=1+—HIFE

Country/place of
incorporation/

46.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

Issued and fully

Percentage of

6. TEMB AT 2FHE @

RZZE_—FR-_ZT-_—F+=-_A=+—H ' &
ARIZEEHBARFBOT : (48)

establishment  paid share capital/ issued share
and operation registered capital capital held
SR, B L EBITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HERE AT s Principal activities
o) YNGR EE9: ks EMEAR ERITRAEDL TEXK
2022 2021
—s-= T —F
ASL Security Solutions Limited Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding
HEES HK$0.1 REER
1RE R
0.1787T
ASL Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands® 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%*  Investment holding, sale of computer
KBRS usD1 products and solutions and provision
1 RE AR of hardware services (including
E installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting
and professional services)
REZR - HEERERRBART R
RIREEH RS (BELERRE
RS Rt PR 7S (B IS R 2
EILIE S )
ELM Technologies Holdings British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding
Limited RBRLRS UsD1 REER
1B Ak
(E
Express Success Limited British Virgin Islands* 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
KBRS usD2 ESSEE]
2 E B
2ETT
Express Returns Limited British Virgin Islands* 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
HERUES usD2 MERHE
2RE B
2ET
Express Profits British Virgin Islands* 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
Development Limited KBRS usD2 MERE
2[R
2ETT
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For the year ended 31st December 2022 HE-—T—-—F+_-A=+—HItFE

46.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES 46. FEMB AT Z5HE @

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2022 and ®n

2021 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully

al

FA

N
N\
AN

Percentage of

T —FR-FT-_—F+-A=t+—H ' &
ZEEMBRARFBAOT « (&)

establishment  paid share capital/ issued share
and operation registered capital capital held
SR, B EBITR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HERE VNG iE S Principal activities
) PNGTEE ZES 1] EMER BERTREES TEXK
2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Automated Systems Fortune British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding, international
Investment Holdings Limited HBRELEHS" usD1 trading, fund investment and
1IREER treasury management
£S5 wank ERES BSRER
EeER
GDB International Investment British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Investment holding
Limited KBRS USD54,650,001 REER
2R AR
54,650,001 % 7T
GDD International Holding US 100 common stocks 100% 100% Investment holding
Company ESe USD54,650,100 REZER
100 AR @k
54,650,100 37T
Notes: Bfi3E
1. Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the PRC as a wholly foreign- 1. BNREXZEEEMEARAARPEZMRA

owned enterprise. The paid up capital up to 31st December 2022 was HK$95,000,000

(2021: HK$95,000,000).

" The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company, carry practically

no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the Company nor to participate in any distribution on winding up.

# These companies operate in Hong Kong.

* Subsidiaries held directly by the

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

Company.

result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the reporting period.

*

IEBECE -BHE_T-_—F+_A=+—
H B % B % A 595,000,000/ TT(—Z T = —4 :
95,000,000/87T) °

EIRERRERYIFAARR RS - HRENS
FERE - WRARRMEMBRRAGMEE K H
BERARGLNE LRE  28BFRRELEM
IR EAER o

ZERRRBBLE -

ARREERBZMBRTE -

BEE2RR LRAIARBNMBRAREEZEARFE
FESERAKEEEFENERRD - EFR /T
HtMBRRMFE<RIBBRILE o

RAFEHER - HENBRRRTERNEBES o
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Particulars of Investment Properties

REYEF1S

For the year ended 31st December 2022 BE—T - —F+-_A=+—HItFE

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties at 31st December 2022 are as follows:

Location Gross floor area (sq.ft)

i BERRCFAR)

NWZET——
BT :

F+-RA=+—H KREBEZREMEF

Use

Jjikes

Units 1 to 7 and 15 to 21 on 12th Floor 11,761 sq.ft
Topsail Plaza 11,761 FFHR
11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

BB

R

W

LA 11 5%

E|8ES

RBIETHRRISE215REM

Car parking space No. P4 on Ground Floor 125 sq.ft
Topsail Plaza 125 FEHR
11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

BB

R

WH

11 5R

=22

T P4 Bz
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited
— Information of Major Subsidiaries, Assouates and Relevant Centers

QEJJZ%HJLKIEIZE“T TEWE  BE AR RAERLER

HONG KONG

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
16/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2541 9900

Fax: (852) 2541 1338

i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited
Room 6-7, 10/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2608 6226

Fax: (852) 2645 8069

Automated Center of Excellence (ACoE)

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+)

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Service Center

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Service Center

Unit 2303, 23/F,

148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998
Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Unified Operation Center (UOC)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

BE
BB ARG (HE) BRAA
ERHMALH
LE 1155k
|5 1518
1 (852) 2601 6998
f£E& : (852) 2601 6936

M E KRB R A
BEFADHE
ZOE 1158
HEEES 1618

: (852) 2541 9900
fBH : (852) 2541 1338

Ll (BB BB RAR

BEHALH

20 1155
EEEH10186-7E
T ¢ (852) 2608 6226
fEE : (852) 2645 8069

B &) R4 = A0 (ACoE)
HEHADH

ZIMET 11557
E|EES 1518
T 3% 1 (852) 2601 6998
fEH : (852) 2601 6936

L2 iBYEF L+ (SOC+)
FEHALA
ZOE 1155
E|EES 1512

: (852) 2601 6998
f5& : (852) 2601 6936

AR 0
HEMADH
ZE 1155
E|EES 1512
: (852) 2601 6998
fEH : (852) 2601 6936

AR H
HELA
ERIE 1485
23182303 %

: (852) 2601 6998
1 L : (852) 2601 6936

fRAEEEF L (U0C)
BEFALHE
AT 1155
E|EES 1512
: (852) 2601 6998
f8H : (852) 2601 6936
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited

- Information of Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers

BBRAEEERAR - TEWE - BE QR RAEETLER

MAINLAND CHINA

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited
14/F, No.185 Yuexiu South Road

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, China
(Postal Code: 510100)

Tel: (86) 020 2203 8111

Fax: (86) 020 2203 8000

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
14/F, No.185 Yuexiu South Road

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 510100)

Tel: (86) 020 2203 8111

Fax: (86) 020 2203 8000

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
Room (01, 02, 03, 10, 19, 28, 38) 302A, 3/F,
No.136 Linhe Middle Road,

Tianhe District, Guangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 510630)

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)

Room 809, 810, 811,

Lingnan Tiandi Commercial Plaza,

No. 29, Zumiao Road, Chancheng District, Foshan, China
(Postal Code: 528000)

Tel: (86) 757 8203 1609

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
Room 1412A,1412B,1412C, F2 Building,
Lugu Enterprise Plaza, No. 27 Wenxuan Road,
Yuelu District, Changsha, China

(Postal Code: 410000)

Tel: (86) 731 8289 5651

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd

Room 9, Floor 9, Shougang, International Tower,
No. 60 Xizhimen North Street,

Haidian District, Beijing, China

(Postal Code: 100082)

Tel: (86) 108 273 6009

i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd

Room 545, Floor 5, Building 23, East Zone of
Community No.10, Xibeiwang East Road,
Haidian District, Beijing, China

(Postal Code: 100193)

Tel: (86) 108 273 6009

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd, Zhuhai Branch
4/F, Block B2, Southern Software Park,

No.1 Software Road Zhuhai, Guangdong, China
(Postal Code: 519080)

Tel: (86) 756 632 2668

Annual Report 2022 4%

P E A it
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MACAU

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao, No. 180
Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

iN Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao, No. 180
Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

Security Operation Center SOC?
Rua de Lagos, Telecentro, 4/F
Taipa, Macau

Tel: (853) 8891 5000

Fax: (853) 8891 3031

TAIWAN

Taiwan Automated Systems Limited
9F, No.19, RuihuSt., NeihuDist.,
Taipei City 114067, Taiwan (R.0.C.)
Tel: (886) 2 2659 8598

Fax: (886) 2 2659-8569

THAILAND

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building
Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

!

BE) R4 CBPY) BRAR
SRPIR £ A ES 180 9%
REREERD

141 0-RE

3% 1 (853) 2878 6392
fEH : (853) 2878 6390

BERFRE CRP) AR AR
JRPIR £ A E5 180 %%
REEEERDL

141RE

3% 1 (853) 2878 6392

fEH : (853) 2878 6390

WAL 2l EP L SOC
SRPY AT RrET T
BrAKNIE4E

3% ¢ (853) 8891 5000
{8H :(853) 8891 3031

=}

3t

BEREEEEMBBRAR
aitmAHE

A 199k OF

T3 © (886) 02 2659 8598
{85 : (886) 2 2659-8569

ZRE

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building
Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

EiE : (662) 185 3206

B8 : (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

EiE : (662) 185 3206

{EH : (662) 185 3207
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i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

SINGAPORE

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Chai Chee Road

#08-01 ESR BizPark @ Chai Chee (Lobby 1)
Singapore 469004

MALAYSIA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (60) 379 325 688

Fax: (60) 379 315 688

ARMENIA
Engineering Center

6 Bryusov street, Yerevan, 0023
Armenia

INDIA
Engineering Center

HITEC City, Hyderabad, Telangana 500081
India

JAMAICA

2752+84W, Mona Rd, Kingston, Jamaica

MEXICO

Office

Av. Américas 1545, Piso 7 Colonia Providencia,

Guadalajara Jal, 44630
Mexico
Tel: (52) 333 615 4413

206 Annual Report 2022 & %R

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
EiE ¢ (662) 185 3206

f£H : (662) 185 3207

03K

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Chai Chee Road

#08-01 ESR BizPark @ Chai Chee (Lobby 1)
Singapore 469004

FSRA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

BEE ¢ (60) 379 325 688
{#H : (60) 379 315 688

EmERD
TRHL

6 Bryusov street, Yerevan, 0023
Armenia

ENE
TR

HITEC City, Hyderabad, Telangana 500081
India

JAMAICA

2752+84W, Mona Rd, Kingston, Jamaica

SEF

WNE

Av. Américas 1545, Piso 7 Colonia Providencia,
Guadalajara Jal, 44630

Mexico

®iE 0 (52) 3336154413
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MOLDOVA

Engineering Center

38, Serghei Lazo str. business center “AVENUE"” MD-2004,

Chisinau, Moldova
Tel: (37) 322 856 985

NETHERLANDS

Office

Zaandijkerweg 8, 1521 AX Wormerveer
Amsterdam, Netherlands

Tel: (31) 075 302 0011

POLAND

Engineering Center
Tadeusza Czackiego 15/17,
00-043 Warszawa Poland
Tel: (48) 733 732 767

Office

Aleja 3 Maja 9, 3rd floor
Krakoéw, 30-062, Poland
Tel: (48) 733 732 767

Engineering Center

Jaworska Street 13, CU Office A building, 6th floor,
53-612 Wroctaw, Poland

Tel: (48) 734 732 767

Engineering Center

Olivia Star, 19th floor Aleja Grunwaldzka 472C,
80-309 Gdansk, Poland

Tel: (48) 884 777 288

SERBIA
Engineering Center

18 Bulevar Kralja Aleksandra, 11000 Belgrade
Serbia

EERE 2% FLH F B
TRHL

38, Serghei Lazo str. business center “AVENUE"” MD-2004,
Chisinau, Moldova
& ih ¢ (37) 322 856 985

ol

BN

Zaandijkerweg 8, 1521 AX Wormerveer
Amsterdam, Netherlands

EaE  (31) 075302 0011

B

IR

Tadeusza Czackiego 15/17,
00-043 Warszawa Poland
BEE ¢ (48) 733732 767

E N

Aleja 3 Maja 9, 3rd floor
Krakéw, 30-062, Poland
Eih 1 (48) 733732767

IS

Jaworska Street 13, CU Office A building, 6th floor,
53-612 Wroctaw, Poland

EiE 0 (48) 734732 767

TP
Olivia Star, 19th floor Aleja Grunwaldzka 472C,

80-309 Gda sk, Poland
TEaE 1 (48) 884 777 288
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18 Bulevar Kralja Aleksandra, 11000 Belgrade
Serbia
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UKRAINE

Limited Liability Company “GD Ukraine”

Engineering Center

Business Center ArtGarmat,
1, 4 floors, 4 Garmatna str, Kyiv, Ukraine

Engineering Center

5A Pidmurna str,
Tel: (38) 032 242 0475, (38) 032 242 0474

Engineering Center

5 Vesnina St.,
Kharkiv, 61023, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 057 728 5233

Engineering Center

Sviatoslava Khorobroho, 12,
Dnipro, 49001, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 056 785 6829

UNITED KINGDOM

Office

10 Midford Place London, W1T 5AG,
London, United Kingdom

Tel: (44) 020 740 480 40

UNITED STATES

Grid Dynamics Holding Inc.
Corporate Headquarters

5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 520
San Ramon, CA 94583, United States
Tel: (1) 650 523 5000

Engineering Center

5601 Granite Parkway, Ste 720,
Plano,TX 75024,United States

Annual Report 2022 & %R

Limited Liability Company “GD Ukraine”
TRHEL

Business Center ArtGarmat,
1, 4 floors, 4 Garmatna str, Kyiv, Ukraine

TR

5A Pidmurna str,
FEEE 1 (38) 032 242 0475, (38) 032 242 0474

TRHL

5 Vesnina St.,
Kharkiv, 61023, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 057 728 5233

TRHN

Sviatoslava Khorobroho, 12,
Dnipro, 49001, Ukraine
=55 ¢ (38) 056 785 6829

SR E

WA

10 Midford Place London, W1T 5AG,
London, United Kingdom

L (44) 020 740 480 40

EE]

Grid Dynamics Holding Inc.

NCIEEEE

5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 520
San Ramon, CA 94583, United States
E&E : (1) 650 523 5000

TREHL

5601 Granite Parkway, Ste 720,
Plano,TX 75024,United States







A Member of the Teamsun Group

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BEBRALEERBERAA

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Fax: (852) 2601 6936
Home Page: http://www.asl.com.hk
ERDHEZOE 11 REIEES 1548
E75:(852) 2601 6998 H K : (852) 2601 6936
#g3k : http://www.asl.com.hk
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